
 
 

ADA TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
AGENDA 

MONDAY FEBRUARY 22, 2021 
7:00 P.M. 

 
PURSUANT TO PUBLIC ACT 228 OF 2020, THE ADA TOWNSHIP BOARD IN ORDER TO PROTECT 
THE PUBLIC HEALTH WILL CONDUCT ITS MEETINGS VIA ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS. ANY 

MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC WISHING TO LISTEN AND/OR WATCH THE PROCEEDINGS OR PROVIDE 
PUBLIC COMMENT MAY DO SO BY USING THE FOLLOWING INTERNET CONNECTION OR PHONE 

NUMBERS AND MEETING ID NUMBER:  
 

Click to join by computer/tablet/smartphone: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86853004720 

 
Meeting ID: 868 5300 4720 

Passcode: 354126 
 

Dial-in phone audio: 
1-646-876-9923 or 

1-312-626-6799 
 

**Members of the public with disabilities may utilize the Michigan Relay System (7-1-1) to participate in 
the meeting. If other aids or services are needed for individuals with disabilities please contact the 

Township Clerk, Jackie Smith, at jsmith@adatownshipmi.com or 616-676-9191 at least 24 hours prior to 
the meeting** 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
III. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
IV. ROLL CALL 
V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
VI. GENERAL TOWNSHIP BUSINESS 

Motion to approve minutes and accept and file reports/communications under 
consent agenda 
 
A. APPROVAL OF TOWNSHIP BOARD MINUTES 

1. Regular Board Meeting Minutes February 8, 2021 
2. Special Work Session Meeting Minutes January 20, 2021  
3. Special Work Session Meeting Minutes February 11, 2021 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86853004720


B. RECEIVE AND FILE VARIOUS REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
1. Amy Van Andel – Ada Community Center Status Report – February 11, 

2021 
2. Downtown Development Authority Meeting Minutes – January 11, 2021 
3. Parks, Recreation and Land Preservation Meeting Minutes – January 14, 

2021 
4. Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes – January 21, 2021 
5. Utility Advisory Board Meeting Minutes – January 21, 2021 

 
       VII.        APPROVAL OF WARRANTS 

A. Township General Warrants 
B. Pay Application #20 - Amy Van Andel Library & Community Center to Erhardt 

Construction in the Amount of $570,395.03 
 

VIII.      PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

IX.       UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

X.       NEW BUSINESS 
A. Resolution R-022221-1: Board & Commissions Meeting Dates for FY 2021-2022 
B. Award Bid for Adatowne & Adacroft Watermain and Street Improvement Project 

to CL Trucking & Excavating for an Amount Not to Exceed $5,664,310.50 
C. Authorize Treasurer to Call 2011A Series Bond Early and Resolution R-022221-2: 

Resolution to Authorize Issuance of General Obligation Limited Tax Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2021  

D. Letter of Engagement – 2011 Series Bond Refunding 
E. Employee Compensation and Benefits Recommendation for FY 2021-2022 
F. Consider Approval of 2021 Fireworks Display Agreement  

 
XI.       DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

A. Township Manager Report – January 20, 2021 
B. Treasurer Investment Report - September to December, 2020 

 
XII.      PUBLIC COMMENT 
  
XIII.      OPPORTUNITY FOR ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
XIV.      ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



VI A1





VI A2



VI A3



PROJECT STATUS REPORT

Amy Van Andel Library & Community Center
Ada, Michigan
February 11, 2021

VI B1



Name Due Date Actual End Date

Initiate 24-Jan-2018 27-Feb-2018

Plan 25-Apr-2018 11-Jun-2018

Design 23-Aug-2019 23-Aug-2019

Substantial Completion 23-Dec-2020 23-Dec-2020

Complete Lobby Addition 29-Jan-2021 29-Jan-2021

Certificate of Occupancy 29-Jan-2021 29-Jan-2021

KDL 1st Day of Business 29-Jan-2021 06-Feb-2021

Completed Milestones

Schedule:  On Track Budget:  On Track Start Date: 08-Dec-2017 Due Date: 29-Jan-2021 Project Manager: Scott Rantala

Description & Overall Summary

| Schedule Summary

Description Design and construction of a new 25,786 s.f. township library 
and community center.

Summary Substantial Completion Certificate issued 12/23/20.
Furniture install started 12/7/20 and completed 12/29/20.
KDL training & move in from 1/4/21 to 1/22/21.
Certificate of Occupancy inspection 1/29/21.
1st Day of Business 2/6/21.

Phase Closeout

JLL Project Type New Build

JLL role Agent

Ada Library & Community Center 21864P180001



| Budget Summary

By Cost Category Section

Ada Library & Community Center 21864P180001

Name Original
Budget

Total  Projected 
Budget

Total Approved 
Budget

Projected Total 
Commitments Total Invoices

Hard Costs - CAP 8,920,780 10,147,573 USD 10,147,573 USD 10,149,386 USD 9,784,062 USD

FF&E, Moving and Technology - CAP 1,155,250 736,611 USD 736,611 USD 500,428 USD 448,644 USD

Soft Costs - CAP 1,140,614 1,286,867 USD 1,286,867 USD 1,241,803 USD 1,228,260 USD

Contingency - CAP 783,356 428,868 USD 428,868 USD 0 USD 0 USD

Total 12,000,000 12,599,919 USD 12,599,919 USD 11,891,618 USD 11,460,966 USD



| Anticipated Cost Report Ada Library & Community Center 21864P180001

Date: 2021-02-11
Project Manager: Scott Rantala
Project Area: 25,786
Currency: USD

Account Description Original Budget

Approved 
Changes and 

Transfers

Pending 
Changes and 

Transfers
Total Projected 

Budget Cost Per Area
Total Approved 

Budget
Approved 

Commitments
Pending 

Commitments
Projected Total 
Commitments

Additional 
Forecasted 

Costs
Anticipated Cost 

to Complete
Variance of 

Budget to Cost
Approved 
Invoices

Pending 
Invoices Total Invoices

Remaining 
Balance to 

Invoice

Soft Costs - CAP 1,140,614.00 146,253.34 1,286,867.34 49.91 1,286,867.34 1,241,802.99 1,241,802.99 (8,000.00) 1,233,802.99 53,064.35 1,226,790.34 1,469.73 1,228,260.07 13,542.92
Architect - Library 887,550.00 6,000.00 893,550.00 34.65 893,550.00 893,550.00 893,550.00 (8,000.00) 885,550.00 8,000.00 883,788.35 1,469.73 885,258.08 8,291.92
Architect - Arts Center 181,500.00 181,500.00 7.04 181,500.00 139,017.00 139,017.00 139,017.00 42,483.00 134,642.00 134,642.00 4,375.00
Owner's Representative 165,800.00 14,500.00 180,300.00 6.99 180,300.00 177,718.65 177,718.65 177,718.65 2,581.35 177,718.65 177,718.65
Consultant - Geotechnical - Library 12,264.00 (1,999.50) 10,264.50 0.40 10,264.50 10,264.50 10,264.50 10,264.50 9,388.50 9,388.50 876.00
Consultant - Geotechnical - Arts Center 3,750.00 3,750.00 0.15 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00
Consultant - Environmental 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.08 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Consultant - Procurement Agent 45,000.00 (45,000.00)
Consultant - Signage/Graphics 30,000.00 (30,000.00)
Land- Closing Costs 2,877.84 2,877.84 0.11 2,877.84 2,877.84 2,877.84 2,877.84 2,877.84 2,877.84
Insurance - Builder's Risk 12,625.00 12,625.00 0.49 12,625.00 12,625.00 12,625.00 12,625.00 12,625.00 12,625.00
SC Contingency

Hard Costs - CAP 8,920,780.00 1,226,792.55 10,147,572.55 393.53 10,147,572.55 10,140,971.73 8,414.54 10,149,386.27 (143,572.00) 10,005,814.27 141,758.28 9,213,667.01 570,395.03 9,784,062.04 356,909.69
Construction - Library 8,370,780.00 1,768,630.55 10,139,410.55 393.21 10,139,410.55 10,132,809.73 8,414.54 10,141,224.27 (143,572.00) 9,997,652.27 141,758.28 9,205,505.01 570,395.03 9,775,900.04 356,909.69
Construction - Arts Center
Electrical-Relocate Street Light Service 7,022.00 7,022.00 0.27 7,022.00 7,022.00 7,022.00 7,022.00 7,022.00 7,022.00
Misc Construction 1,140.00 1,140.00 0.04 1,140.00 1,140.00 1,140.00 1,140.00 1,140.00 1,140.00
HC Contingency 550,000.00 (550,000.00)

FF&E, Moving and Technology - CAP 1,155,250.00 (418,639.27) 736,610.73 28.57 736,610.73 500,428.38 500,428.38 57,000.00 557,428.38 179,182.35 448,643.90 448,643.90 51,784.48
FFE- Furniture Allowance 705,000.00 (691,151.38) 13,848.62 0.65 13,848.62 13,848.62
FFE- Interior Furniture / Custer 158,368.99 158,368.99 6.12 158,368.99 158,368.99 158,368.99 158,368.99 157,923.99 157,923.99 445.00
FFE- Interior Furniture / Trellis 169,283.39 169,283.39 6.56 169,283.39 169,283.39 169,283.39 169,283.39 169,204.91 169,204.91 78.48
FFE- Collection Shelving / LDA 87,459.00 87,459.00 3.39 87,459.00 85,985.00 85,985.00 85,985.00 1,474.00 77,387.00 77,387.00 8,598.00
FFE- Outdoor Furniture / Landscape Forms 22,460.00 22,460.00 0.78 22,460.00 22,460.00 22,460.00 22,460.00 20,100.00 20,100.00 2,360.00
FFE- Outdoor Furniture / Custer 24,080.00 24,080.00 0.93 24,080.00 24,080.00 24,080.00 24,080.00 24,028.00 24,028.00 52.00
FFE- Furniture Labor 70,500.00 (70,500.00)
FFE- Artwork / Branding Allowance 35,000.00 (6,251.00) 28,749.00 1.36 28,749.00 28,749.00
FFE- Signage/Graphics Allowance 64,000.00 (64,000.00) 0.16
FFE- Bldg Signage / Valley City Sign 40,251.00 40,251.00 1.16 40,251.00 40,251.00 40,251.00 40,251.00 40,251.00
FFE- Monument Sign / Universal Sign 30,000.00 30,000.00 1.16 30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00
TECH- Comm / Data Cabling 82,250.00 (52,118.46) 30,131.54 1.17 30,131.54 22,000.00 22,000.00 8,131.54
TECH- Security Equipment 90,000.00 (50,000.00) 40,000.00 1.55 40,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 35,000.00
TECH- A/V Equipment 70,500.00 (16,520.81) 53,979.19 2.09 53,979.19 53,979.19
TECH- Soundmasking
Moving
FFE- Contingency 38,000.00 38,000.00 1.47 38,000.00 38,000.00

Contingency - CAP 783,356.00 (354,487.62) 428,868.38 16.63 428,868.38 50,000.00 50,000.00 378,868.38
Library Contingency -Owner 783,356.00 (467,883.05) 315,472.95 12.23 315,472.95 50,000.00 50,000.00 265,472.95
Arts Center Contingency -Owner 113,395.43 113,395.43 4.40 113,395.43 113,395.43

Total with Contingency 12,000,000.00 12,599,919.00 12,599,919.00 11,883,203.10 8,414.54 11,891,617.64 11,847,045.64 752,873.36 11,460,966.01 422,237.09

Ada Library & Community Center 12,000,000.00 599,919.00 12,599,919.00 488.63 12,599,919.00 11,883,203.10 8,414.54 11,891,617.64 (44,572.00) 11,847,045.64 752,873.36 10,889,101.25 571,864.76 11,460,966.01 422,237.09

Ada Library & Community Center
Anticipated Cost Report



Status Name Comments Start Date Due Date Owner

Open Monument Sign
2/11/21-Monument sign on hold per Ada Township.
11/3/20-Ada Township to approve monument sign 
design and release for fabrication & install with Universal 
Sign

03-Nov-2020 TBD Ada Township

Open Entrance Canopy Letters
2/11/21-Canopy lettering design has been approved and 
install scheduled for week of 2/22/21.
12/1/20-Ada Township to approve design and release 
for fabrication & install with Valley City Sign

01-Dec-2020 2/26/21 Ada Township

Open Fulton Street Bldg Sign
2/11/21-Fulton Street sign scheduled for install the 
beginning of March 2021.
12/1/20-Ada Township has approved design. Need to 
release for fabrication & install with Universal Sign.

01-Dec-2020 3/17/21 Ada Township

Action Items

| Action Items Ada Library & Community Center 21864P180001



Risk Register

| Risks

Status Title Category Impact Date Opened Due Date

Closed Grand Opening Operations
2/11/21-KDL opened the library to the public on 2/6/21.
1/11/21-Will COVID-19 and Executive Orders impact when
the library can actually open to the public.

01-Jan-2021 29-Jan-2021

Ada Library & Community Center 21864P180001



| Progress Photos Ada Library & Community Center 21864P180001



| Progress Photos Ada Library & Community Center 21864P180001



| Progress Photos Ada Library & Community Center 21864P180001



| Progress Photos Ada Library & Community Center 21864P180001



| Progress Photos Ada Library & Community Center 21864P180001



| Progress Photos Ada Library & Community Center 21864P180001



| Progress Photos Ada Library & Community Center 21864P180001



| Progress Photos Ada Library & Community Center 21864P180001



ADA TOWNSHIP DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 11, 2021, MEETING, 8:00 A.M. 

A regular meeting of the Ada Township Downtown Development Authority (DDA) was held on Monday, 
January 11, 2021, at 8:00 a.m. via video/audio-conferencing, in conformance with Public Act 228 of 2020 
concerning temporary authorization of remote participation in public meetings. 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

The meeting was called to order at 8:03 a.m. by Chairperson, Bowersox. 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Bowersox, Coe, Harrison, Idema, Knapp, Leisman, Wright 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: Norman, VanderWulp 
STAFF AND OFFICIALS PRESENT: Buckley, Ferro, Moran, Suchy 
PUBLIC PRESENT: 2  

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Moved by Idema, supported by Coe, to approve the agenda as presented.  Motion passed by roll call vote 
6-0, with 3 absent.

Wright arrived 8:05 a.m. 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 14, 2020 MEETING

Ferro suggested a correction needs to be made to the December 14, 2020 minutes. 
Moved by Harrison, supported by Leisman, to approve the minutes as presented with correction on page 
2, 5th paragraph to read $40,000; not $4,000.  Motion passed by roll call vote 7-0, with 2 absent.  

IV. FARMERS MARKET ANNUAL REPORT

Market Manager, Jennie Macanaspie, presented a market summary of 2020 and proposed budget for 
2021.  Macanaspie said vendor registration was down in 2020 and some vendors communicated 
reluctance with the adopted MIFMA (Michigan Farmers Market Association) Covid guidelines; there 
were challenges monitoring customers arriving to ensure proper protection guidelines were being 
followed.  

Macanaspie stated the feedback from the vendors was that most of them recorded 50% more business 
than in the past and from a dollar standpoint, they were very successful.  She explained the vendors said 
people/customers were buying in greater quantities and really appreciate the farmers and the feeling 
of safety/comfort buying in their own local community. 

Idema asked if there are commitments from vendors for this next season.  Macanaspie stated she hasn’t 
heard much from the vendors yet, but pretty much knows the standard/returning ones and should know 
more in the next month. 

Macanaspie said she hopes to have more retail vendors this season and items like; clothing, organic-fresh 
milk, fresh poultry, traditional meats and commended the fish vendor, ‘the fish guy’ that returns each year 
and draws a lot of customers. 

There was Board discussion about the current location of the market and hopes to build up traffic with the 
new Library and outdoor activities, especially for kids, to help draw more customers into downtown.  
There was additional discussion about the possibility of a new market location on River Street and that 

VI B2



Ada Township DDA Board 
Minutes of the January 11, 2021 Meeting 
Page 2 of  3 

may be looked at in the future. 

Ferro stated the Library will be beneficial to the market and we should see traffic increases.  Ferro said he 
thinks we should have as a goal to reverse the long trend of a decline in size of the market and gain back 
some of what was lost. 

Macanaspie reviewed the preliminary 2021 budget, as included in the packet, with a total expense 
amount of $9,785. 

Leisman stated there is $250 budgeted for Advertising and Promotion and he wondered if that would be 
enough.  Macanaspie stated they have never done any ‘placed advertisement’ and would like to consider 
additional advertising costs but will have to do more research for quotes; will work with Jim Ferro on 
that.  Macanaspie said she will also look into returning to Market Outreach via Facebook. 

Ferro stated the one thing he sees lacking on the revenue side is sponsorship, in the past have 
generated as much as $1,000 from sponsorship fee.  Leisman asked Jennie if she has tried to talk with 
the Ada Business Association for a sponsor.  Macanaspie said that was a great idea and will look into 
that. 

Leisman suggested to ‘bump up’ amounts and add $1,000 each to Sponsorship and Advertising. 
Macanaspie agreed with Leisman and will make changes in the budget. 

V. REVIEW AND APPROVE PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FY 2021-22

Ferro presented the proposed budget included in the packet.  Ferro stated there is a fair amount of line- 
item detail for the Board to review.  Ferro said on the revenue side, the numbers for Millage revenue and 
Tax Increment revenue are based on a 1.5% increase from the current year and is not based yet on any 
taxable value data from the township assessor. Ferro went over the other revenue details; Government 
Stabilization Fund, Special Events and Interest Revenue. 

Ferro reviewed expenditures including; DDA staff support for $55,000/yr. for 9 months, Parking Space 
Striping, Street Sweeping, Garland Hanging & Removal, Holiday Tree purchase, and Printing.  There was 
Board discussion to put money in the budget for the expansion of the new holiday deer herd displayed in 
the Village this year and the possible cost-sharing of the installation expense in the future.  The Board  
members agreed to have final budget decisions voted on at the February meeting. 

There was Board discussion on increased Library costs and whether to budget for Library promotion 
amount or increase the amount budgeted for Marketing/Promotion Consultant.  Leisman stated there has 
been a push for the Township to use General Township Funds to promote the Library and Library events 
and it was talked about involving the DDA.  Suchy stated there is room in the budget if the DDA wanted 
to participate in the marketing of the Library and the downtown events tied into the holiday displays.  
Suchy stated we could move up the Marketing/Promotion Consultant to $35,000 and ultimately anything 
that was to be spent on that would come back to the DDA first.  would first come back to the DDA Board 
for approval. 

Ferro discussed the Improvements part of the budget. Ferro went over details in the Capital 
Improvements, Community Events, and Farmers Market in the proposed budget.   
Ferro presented details of the Capital Improvement Projects on a screenshare and summarized the projects 
for the upcoming fiscal year.    



Ada Township DDA Board 
Minutes of the January 11, 2021 Meeting 
Page 3 of  3 

Ferro explained the worksheet on the sidewalk grinding expense and its on-going project throughout the 
Village. 

VI. DISCUSSION OF RESIDENTIAL PARKING ISSUES IN THE VILLAGE

Ferro stated concerns have been expressed that some of the parking supply is being used for the long- 
term parking of vehicles, particularly by residents on Bronson Street.  Ferro said there has been thought 
about possible restrictions on the duration of parking, but want to make DDA aware and get some 
thoughts on the matter. 

Idema stated that she has mentioned this before and about 4-5 spaces are used for permanent parking by 
residents and maybe we should have some kind of ordinance saying these spots are not to be used for 
permanent parking.   

Suchy stated depending how an ordinance is written, most times it will be for 24 hours in a row or no 
more than 72 hours but every time a resident moves their car, a new time window of enforcement is 
created.  Suchy said he is not opposed to an ordinance it just needs to be thought out well and if the DDA 
felt strongly about it, there might be financial contribution that would require extra enforcement that we 
don’t have the capacity for now.  Suchy explained currently the enforcement is if a vehicle is not 
registered or inoperable the community policing officer will meet with the resident and determine whether 
the vehicle should be removed.  There was further Board discussion on possible parking ordinances and 
considering short-term parking restrictions; 2-hour limit or 4-hour limit, and it was agreed to discuss more 
in future meetings. 

VII. DDA FINANCIAL REPORT, 12/31/20

Ferro stated the only significant financial activity to report was paying for our $20,000 share of the 
enhanced holiday decorations.   

VIII. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT - none

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT – none

X. ADJOURN MEETING

 Moved by Idema, supported by Harrison, to adjourn meeting at 9:16 a.m.  Motion passed 
    unanimously. 

    Respectfully submitted: 

    _____________________________________ 
    Devin Norman, Secretary 

    rs:eb 



ADA TOWNSHIP PARKS, RECREATION AND LAND PRESERVATION ADVISORY BOARD 
MINUTES OF THE THURSDAY JANUARY 14, 2021 REGULAR MEETING 

8:30 A.M., ZOOM MEETING 

1. Call meeting to order/roll call

Present: Terwilliger, Schmottlach, Steketee, Levick, Roe, Crosby, VandenBerge, Jacobs in late 
Absent: Damstra, Nowak, Leisman 

Staff Present: Ferro, Fitzpatrick, Ergang, Buckley, Suchy left at 9:00 
Public Present: None 

2. Approval of agenda
Terwilliger moved, VandenBerge supported, to approve the agenda as presented.  Motion carried with a
roll call vote 7-0.

3. Approval of minutes of the December 10, 2020 meeting.
Terwilliger moved, Roe supported, to approve the minutes with changes.  Motion carried with a roll call
vote 7-0.

4. Update on Township Boards & Committee, member terms
Suchy gave an update that the Township Board eliminated some committees and combined others,
reducing them from 25 down to 15.  Suchy stated that Ross is review an application for the Advisory
Board and considering others to replace Nowak. Will have more updates after January 25th.   Judy noted
need to review Advisory Board leadership and selections process for the end of March.  Jim noted that the
new chair is to be elected at the first meeting of the new fiscal year.

5. CIP Update & Review – Fitzpatrick presented the 214 Fund budget requests to date that he had
submitted to Manager Suchy for review. He noted that for the Fund 208, the fund balance was still under
review and closing out the fund this fiscal year is still our goal.  Mark grave highlights from the CIP
Committee meeting held earlier in the week.  Jim presented the Fund 214 CIP tables and discussed fund
balances and adjustments in the CIP including moving a trail project for Roselle Park over to the Trails
211 Fund.

Mark noted a request from the CIP Committee to identify specific funding for land acquisition and open 
space goals. With a discussion and review of the 213 Fund, Steketee made a motion to start that funding 
source with the projected balance of the current 213 Fund of about $80,000, after the Chief Hazy Cloud 
expenditure.  VandenBerge supported. Motion carried with a roll call 8-0. 

Cosby   Crosby commented on allocations for the new signs noting concern for the amount and that they 
had not seen any drafts yet.  Others expressed similar concerns. Julius updated folks on the status with the 
Sign Committee, the intention to share drafts when the they are further along, and that the funding 
allocation is not finalized yet. 

Mark reviewed the details of a new Excel layout for the 214 Fund and how the stewardship and open 
space allocations are set up in that budget. 

6. Committee Report and updates

a. Stewardship Committee –– Fitzpatrick noted that the Committee had not met and had no
updates at this time.  He also noted that there is work being done in the community regarding

VI B3



stewardship initiates to reduce high priority invasive plants.  These include a grant request by the 
Kent Conservation District for Ada and Cascade Townships, plus an education initiative by the 
GVSU Groundswell initiative.  

b. Facilities/Program Committee – Fitzpatrick note the Committee had not met. He also noted that
they are still working on getting ReCPro recreation software ready to go live, and that a new
general email address was set up for the parks:   adaparks@adatownshipmi.com

c. Trails / Connect Ada Committee– Ferro stated last Committee meeting was held in November
and they are reviewing a list of candidates for future trail projects. He noted that the funds from
the new mileage will start with the December 2021 tax bill. Ferro discussed options for paying for
new trails projects including bonds and “pay as you go” methods and that bonds may take 3-4
months to set up. The Township Board is going to hold work session in the next couple of weeks,
public is welcome. Terwilliger asked if he could join the meeting and be sent the invite for it.
Ferro stated they are a public meeting.

d. Rules Committee – Fitzpatrick stated the Committee had not met.  Also, that we are still working
on fees for legacy & library rentals and that we will be coordinating with Ross and Suchy on
updating the rules.

7. Directors Report
Fitzpatrick provided an update on his Directors report, included in the packet. He focused on updates on
the major projects.
For the Leonard Field Park improvements projects, he noted:
-In review of new increased limits for grants applications, we decided to increase the request for the
grant so we could include both the river overlook deck and the Covered Bridge Plaza. Mark also
provided an update on the relationship of the railroad property and the river access area.   Graphics and
a revised project budget from RJM-Design was reviewed.  Board members noted errors in the graphics
to be corrected.

For the Roselle Park Shelter improvement project, he noted:
-That OCBA is still working on working on the final cost estimate and construction documents, and that
an application for the EGLE permit has been submitted.  He noted that construction for the shelter is
phrase 1 and the parking lot is phrase 2.  We are planning for a recommendation to go to bid at our next
Advisory Board in February.

8. Board Member Comment – None

9. Public Comment – None

Meeting adjourned at 9:49 a.m. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
____________________________ 
Jacqueline Smith, Ada Township Clerk 



ADA TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION      
MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 21, 2021 MEETING 

A meeting of the Ada Township Planning Commission was held on Thursday, January 21, 2021, at 7:00 
p.m., via video/audio-conferencing, in conformance with Public Act 228 of 2020 concerning temporary
authorization of remote participation in public meetings.

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL

Present: Burton, Butterfield, Carter, Heglund, Jacobs, Korth 
Absent: 1, Easter 
Staff Present: Bajdek, Buckley, Ferro, Moran, Suchy 
Others Present: 15 

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Moved by Heglund, supported by Carter, to approve the agenda as presented.  Motion passed unanimously. 

IV. ELECTION OF OFFICERS

Ferro stated the Planning Commission By-Laws call for an election of Officers in October, however,  
there was no meeting held in October and there were only 6 members present in the November meeting so 
an election of Officers did not take place. 

Moved by Heglund, supported by Carter, to elect Tom Korth as Chairman, elect Angela Butterfield as Vice-
Chair and Sara Easter as Secretary.  Motion passed by unanimous roll call vote. 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE DECEMBER 17, 2020 MEETING

Moved by Carter, supported by Burton, to approve the minutes as presented. Motion passed by roll call 
vote 6-0, with 1 absent.   

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. Request for Special Use Permit to Allow an Accessory Building of 7,758 Square Feet, with
a 16 foot sidewall height, in Excess of the Maximum 4,000 Square Feet area and 14 foot
sidewall height permitted by right, per Sec. 78-20(a)(5) and (6) of the Zoning Regulations,
1349 Sargent Avenue SE, Parcel No. 41-19-01-100-036, for Brandon Bissell

Applicant, Brandon Bissell, presented his request for Special Use Permit.  Mr. Bissell stated there is an  
existing barn, 30’ x 40’, on the property and he is looking to expand the capacity of space for additional 
storage for equipment, animal feed, and miscellaneous items.  Mr. Bissell explained the design of the 
proposed building and said it would be aesthetically pleasing and will not cause a detriment to anyone’s 
view or enjoyment of the area, therefore, it meets the 4 characteristics that the zoning ordinance requires.   

Bajdek summarized the request as provided in the staff memo.  He stated the 10.1-acre site is zoned RP-1 
Rural Preservation 1 and is located northwest of the E. Fulton Street and Sargent Avenue intersection. 
Access to the property is from a private road from Sargent Avenue.  The proposed building is 7,758 sq. ft. 
with 16-foot sidewalls and is intended to be connected as an addition to an existing 1,200 sq. ft. building. 
A single-family dwelling, a farm building, as well as several small 3-walled farm shelters exist on the 
property, in addition to the 1,200 sq. ft. building. 

Bajdek stated the accessory building is intended to be used for personal vehicle and yard/property 
maintenance equipment storage, as well as general storage for miscellaneous personal items.  The building 

VI B4



Ada Township Planning Commission      
Minutes of the January 21, 2021 Meeting 
Page 2 of  6 

has been designed to include some ‘farm building’ type architectural features that will complement the 
existing site improvements, as well as being compatible with the character of the surrounding area. 

Bajdek stated zoning regulations limit the total combined ground level floor area of all detached accessory 
buildings to 4,000 sq. ft. with a maximum sidewall height of 14 feet for properties 3 acres or greater in all 
residential and rural districts.  The total square footage of all accessory buildings on the property is proposed 
to be 8,958 sq. ft. 

Bajdek stated the Planning Commission may authorize an increase in building floor areas and heights for 
accessory buildings greater than what is permitted by right, with approval of a special use permit, if the 
Commission determines that the size, height, placement, design, and appearance of the accessory building 
will be compatible with the character of the surrounding area. 

Bajdek said there are other large buildings in the immediate/surrounding area, one of which received a 
special use permit approval in 2018 for building height; that property is located to the south of the subject 
property.  It appears that the essential character of the area will not be altered with the approval of a special 
use permit, however, the building footprint will be more expansive than the other similar type buildings. 

Bajdek concluded there are no characteristics of the proposed use that would conflict with the general 
special use permit standards of the Zoning Ordinance. 

Before opening the public hearing, Jacobs pointed out that Warner, Norcross & Judd (the firm she works 
for) has represented Mr. Bissell in different matters and that Jacobs herself has not represented him 
personally and wanted the Board to know that.  Butterfield asked the other Commissioners if they take 
cause with Jacobs statement; there were no objections and Butterfield thanked Jacobs for her disclosure. 

The public hearing opened at 7:18 p.m.  There was no public comment and the public hearing was closed. 

Bajdek summarized staff recommendations and said if the Planning Commission determines that the size, 
height, placement, design, and appearance of the accessory building will be compatible with the character 
of the surrounding area, approval is recommended subject to the following conditions: 

1. The use of the entire 8,958 sq. ft. of accessory building area on the property shall be restricted
to private residential storage and recreational use; no commercial storage or activities shall be
permitted within the accessory building.

2. Any exterior lighting on the building be of a non-glaring style, subject to approval by the
Planning Department.

Ferro presented an aerial photo of the property for all to see.  There was Board discussion regarding the 
appearance and size of the proposed building.   Carter shared his hesitation that he was not familiar with 
the surrounding area.  Korth said the dimensions/size of the building seemed overwhelming and questioned 
if there could be a land split in the future.  Heglund explained he has seen the area where the building would 
take place and said it is a beautiful farm and the new building would be compatible with the surrounding 
area. 

Referring to the aerial photo, Mr. Bissell described details of the property. He pointed out the existing 
building and a riding ring.  Mr. Bissell stated the riding ring is 25% larger than what the barn (proposed 
building) is going to be and the barn will not expand past what the horse barn is and will tuck within the 
horse barn and within the driveway setting; to give some perspective on the size, it falls within a smaller 
footprint than what the riding arena is. 



Ada Township Planning Commission      
Minutes of the January 21, 2021 Meeting 
Page 3 of  6 

There was Board discussion on similar permit approvals over the past several years and the need to review 
the ordinance guidelines for future requests. 

Moved by Burton, supported by Heglund, to approve the Special Use Permit request subject to the following 
conditions:   

1. The use of the entire 8,958 sq. ft. of accessory building area shall be restricted to private
residential storage and recreational use; no commercial storage or activities shall be permitted
within the accessory building.

2. Any exterior lighting on the building be of a non-glaring style, subject to approval by the
Planning Department.

Roll Call: 

Yes:  Burton, Butterfield, Heglund, Jacobs 
No:  Carter, Korth 
Absent:  Easter 

Motion passed by roll call vote 4-2, with 1 absent. 

VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - none

VIII. NEW BUSINESS

1. Preliminary PUD Plan, 16 Single-Family Homes on 4 acres in the Medium Density Single-
Family (R3) Zoning District, 7699 Fase Street, Parcel No. 41-15-34-402-008, Fase Street
Development, Chuck Hoyt, on behalf of TPR 7699 Fase Street LLC

Applicant, Chuck Hoyt, presented his request and a screen share view of the proposed site.  Mr. Hoyt stated 
we are seeking a PUD Approval for the property on Fase for the reason that the current zoning requires a 
development that is not compatible with the rest of the character on Fast Street. Mr. Hoyt stated he 
previously applied for a zone change to the VR district but was denied.  He said the intent for that zone 
change was to change the underlying zoning to match the zoning of the balance of Fase Street, VR. 

Mr. Hoyt stated the intent of Thornapple Pines Development is to create modestly scaled, quality 
constructed, home site with appropriate density at the end of the distinctive and special neighborhood that 
is Fase Street.  Mr. Hoyt said the need for housing continues to increase and the Planning Commission 
should encourage these types of dense developments.   Mr. Hoyt showed screen shares of additional photos 
as character examples of both an R3 zoned home and a VR zoned home and went over details of the 
proposed homes. 

Rich Pulaski, Civil Engineer at Nederveld, went over details regarding stormwater management, the 
materials used and how the system will work.  

Mr. Hoyt went over the traffic analysis included in the packet. 

In conclusion, Mr. Hoyt stated he would like to address the concerns noted in the Planning staff report 
specifically the undesirable visual relationship with the nearby home in Ada Moorings.  He said in 
consideration for the neighbor’s property they adjusted their site plan to include a greenspace at the far east 
end in order to alleviate the negative impact. He continued going over aerial photos and his explanation of 



Ada Township Planning Commission      
Minutes of the January 21, 2021 Meeting 
Page 4 of  6 

the greenspace plan. 

Bajdek presented his summary as provided in the staff memo.  Bajdek shared a brief history that the property 
was the former Kent County Road Commission garage site.  There was a rezoning request from R3 to VR 
in early 2020 and the Planning Commission recommended denial of the rezoning following a public 
hearing.  Since that time, the applicant decided to pursue a PUD rezoning for the property and a PUD Pre-
Application Conference was held in May, 2020. 

Bajdek stated the residential PUD development is planned to consist of 16 single-family residential 
homesites.  The applicant is proposing to develop the property closely in-line with the VR Village 
Residential district regulations which would be consistent and compatible with the VR zoning along Fase 
Street.  The VR district permits lots having a minimum lot area of 7,000 sq. ft. and a minimum lot width of 
50 feet.  The proposed plan deviates from the conventional R3 district standards, as depicted and noted on 
the attached plan.  Lot sizes arrange from around 7,500 sq. ft. to 10,000 sq. ft., with most of the lots having 
a width of slightly over 54 feet. 

Bajdek went over details of the overall design and site layout as outlined in the staff memo. 

Bajdek stated the site is separated somewhat from the adjacent development to the north by evergreen trees 
in the Ada Moorings development along Ada Moorings Drive, and by a playground between Moorings 
Drive and the property boundary.  To the east there is an adjoining single-family home on a triangular-
shaped lot with the home located about 40 feet from the shared lot line.  Homes located further east are 
progressively a greater distance from the site. 

Bajdek said it was pointed out in the Pre-Application Conference there was a concern due to an undesirable 
distance between the home on Lot 9 and the adjacent home to the east.  It was suggested at that time 1 of 4 
recommended changes as included in the staff memo.  Even though a greenspace was added, it doesn’t 
appear the other changes were addressed. 

Bajdek continued to go over details on the density, traffic assessment, public utilities, stormwater 
management, site lighting and landscaping, as outlined in the staff memo. 

Bajdek concluded a PUD rezoning provides the Township with discretion in ensuring appropriate buffers 
and design treatment along the shared boundary with Ada Moorings, and in ensuring the development 
design on the site is consistent and compatible with the character and density of the Fast Street 
neighborhood. The proposed PUD development would be consistent with the Master Plan policy 
encouraging “compact residential development in and near the Ada Village neighborhood.” 

Bajdek reminded Commissioners this was not a public hearing and a public hearing is required. Bajdek 
stated it is requested a public hearing be scheduled for the February 18, 2021 Planning Commission 
meeting, subject to the submittal of a revised Preliminary PUD Plan that addresses the undesirable visual 
and spatial relationship between a potential home on Lot/Unit 9 at the corner of the site and the adjacent 
home to the east in the Ada Moorings development through 1 or more of the following measures: 

• Defining a more restricted allowable building envelope for the home on the subject lot/unit by:
o Increasing the minimum front yard setback.
o Increasing the minimum side yard setback from 7 feet to 10 feet (to match the R3

side yard setback requirement).
• Enlarging the greenspace south of the subject/lot unit.

Commissioners set forth their comments. 

Butterfield shared a concern about car headlights from the proposed Lot 9 shining into the house adjacent 



Ada Township Planning Commission      
Minutes of the January 21, 2021 Meeting 
Page 5 of  6 

and suggested the addition of some evergreen trees for more privacy. 

Jacobs asked if it was proposed for the current fencing to come down.  Mr. Hoyt said no, not necessarily, 
but there were certain areas of fence that could be repaired and he is not opposed to other options. 

Jacobs asked with the PUD does the Township have guidance it provides regarding buffers to delineate 
between the 2 neighborhoods.  Bajdek stated a landscape plan has not been provided yet and is not required 
at this time. 

There was Board discussion regarding landscape possibilities and when landscape plans will be 
required/provided; the greenspace and its function and other possibilities within the greenspace; and 
access/easement to and from the 2 neighborhoods (Fase St. and Ada Moorings).   

Korth suggested the possibility of placing a pedestrian easement and path between homes on the north side 
of the street, to provide access to the Ada Moorings playground, if an agreement for access could be reached 
with Ada Moorings. 

Mr. Hoyt addressed some of the comments from the Board discussion and communicated details on the 
grading of the greenspace and Rick Pulaski went over additional details of the stormwater drainage.  Hoyt 
added that the greenspace to the east allows the opportunity for social/gathering space, benches and some 
playground equipment.   

Carter said he liked the 4 units per acre, good density, and liked the traffic analysis and that will be important 
information for the public hearing. 

Heglund agreed with other Commissioners and said he loved the density of it and definitely could use more 
properties in the downtown area. Heglund stated a PUD was the best way to work with the neighbors, work 
with the Planning Commission and work with the developers, and is happy to see that is the direction the 
plan is going.    Burton also agreed and stated everything has been said and she likes it a lot. 

Ferro referred to the screen share aerial view sketch and said his main concern was the visual relationship 
between the rear of the triangular lot home and the home on the proposed Lot 9.  Ferro stated a good solution 
is to expand the open space and shift the building back so it is more in line with the building envelope 
further to the west. 

In conclusion, Mr. Hoyt said they will consider all the comments from the Commission and from the 
Planning Director and take them seriously. 

Moved by Carter, supported by Burton, to schedule a Public Hearing on February 18, 2021. 
Motion passed by roll call vote 6-0, with 1 absent. 

IX. APPROVAL OF MEETING DATES FOR FY2021-2022

Moved by Heglund, supported by Carter, to approved the schedule for meeting dates in 2021-2022 as 
presented. 

X. COMMISSION MEMBER / STAFF REPORTS - none



Ada Township Planning Commission      
Minutes of the January 21, 2021 Meeting 
Page 6 of  6 

XI. PUBLIC COMMENT

Del Ratzsch,7635 Fase Street, shared concern with public comment about 2 things: 

1.) Request the Township make a stronger effort to inform people on Fase Street when things like 
this come up.  He said it looks like the Township has had the documents for the Fase Street 
project since December, but none of us found out about it until just a few hours ago. 

2.) Concern with the traffic analysis on the project.  Mr. Ratzsch gave an example of the numbers the 
builder gave for the number of trips under current zoning and Proposed PUD zoning and he said 
there is apparently a range depending on the demographics and a variety of other conditions and 
thinks the builder should look into what a plausible number would be, rather than simply take the 
lowest possible number under special conditions as definitive in this case. 

There was no other public comment and the public comment was closed. 

XII. ADJOURNMENT

Moved by Carter, supported by Heglund, to adjourn meeting at 8:48 p.m.  Motion passed unanimously. 

Respectfully submitted,  

____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Smith, Ada Township Clerk 

rs:eb 



UTILITY ADVISORY BOARD 
Thursday, January 21, 2021 

8:30 am. 
Minutes 

         AGENDA 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Hurt at 8:40 am. The meeting was conducted virtually through 
WebEx.  

Members Present 

Brad Boomstra, Jenessa Carter, Mark Rambo, Mike Grenier, Wayne Jernberg, Jay Ouzts, Ed Robinette, 

Todd Boerman, Brian, Vu, Darrel Schmalzel, Jeff McCaul, Kolene Allen, Sam Giffel, Ben Swayze, Chuck 

Schroeder, Dave Datema, Julius Suchy, Tim Burkman, James Hurt, William Kaiser, Eric DeLong 

Others Present: 

Elissa Soto (Business Manager, City of Grand Rapids), Joa Oliveria (Energy, Climate and Performance 

Management Specialist, City of Grand Rapids) 

Approval of Minutes – December 17, 2020 

Motion by Mr. Schmalzel to approve the December minutes second by Mr. Jernberg. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

Public Comment on Agenda Items 

None 

Approval of Agenda 

Motion by Mr. Robinette to approve the January agenda second by Mr. Rambo. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

Financial Update 

Mrs. Carter gave an overview of the finances for the GR Water System.  The YTD revenue is up by $1.5 

million, and expenses are down by $729k, and net income is up by $2.2 million. Mrs. Carter reminded 

members that she worked with the auditors last year to develop a more accurate revenue accrual process. 

This created a variance for the retail customers for water and sewer. Retail and wholesale billed volume 

VI B5



has increased by 13%. As a reminder, water rates are built on a three-year billed volume; last year, there 

was a 2% decrease in the three-year billed volume.   

The sewer system is experiencing a billed volume reduction of 5% from the previous FY, and the three-

year average is down 2%. The reduction in billed volume is attributed to COVID-19. The YTD revenue is 

$21 million, and it is down from the previous FY by $1.6 million. The YTD expenses are $6.3 million, and 

the net income loss is $3.5 million compared to the previous FY. Mrs. Carter presented the 

pumped/treated and billed volume for water and sewer. Along with the YTD three-year average for billed 

flow. Mr. Carter will continue to update the board quarterly.  

Mr. DeLong asked if the change in billed flow attributed to commercial or residential users? Mrs. Carter 

said that the data is indicating that it is commercial users.  

EPA Lead and Copper Rule 

Mr. Jernberg presented a memo that highlights changes to the LCR at the federal level. Even though 

changes have been made at the federal level. EGLE has a rule promulgation period of three years to make 

changes to the State of Michigan LCR. Changes to the LCR at the federal include establishing a ten-ppb 

trigger level, Find and Fix, and lead in drinking water at school and daycares. If the ten ppb is triggered, it 

would require additional planning, monitoring, and treatment requirements from water systems. 

The find and fx would require water systems to take additional steps when a site exceeds the Action Level, 

for example, additional sampling and possibly replacing the lead service line. The lead in drinking water at 

schools and daycare requires water systems to sample 20% of elementary schools and childcare facilities. 

Mr. DeLong would like to have a direction or plan for when the new rule is implemented. Mr. Jernberg 

plans to bring this topic to attention at the next State Water Advisory Council meeting.  

Lead and Copper Sampling 

Mr. Jernberg presented the board with a memo that gives an overview of the lead and copper sampling 

results for 2020. The GR Water System received its final sampling results from EGLE last month. The Water 

System sampled 51 homes; the 90th percentile for lead is nine ppb and zero ppb for copper. Due to COVID-

19, staff could not enter homes to collect samples. Instead, homeowners collected their samples. Another 

explanation for a higher 90th percentile could be the warmer water temperature.  



Mr. DeLong asked if the Water System is exploring changes to the corrosion control program? Mr. 

Jernberg said no, but the system is conducting additional corrosion optimization studies to understand 

lead levels.  

Year-End Report 

Mr. McCaul gave an overview of the year-end report of awards for 2020. The four-page report can be 

found in the January agenda packet.  

Grand Application for Cascade & Caledonia 

Mr. Jernberg said that EGLE is administrating a grant program for Consolidation and Contamination Risk 

Reduction (C2R2) that would fund drinking water system projects that would remove or reduce PFAS or 

other contaminants from the drinking water. Each applicant could receive a maximum amount of $5 

million. The Water System is working with Cascade and Caledonia Township to complete their grant 

application. Mr. Boerman said that Caledonia Township is looking into changing its drinking water source 

from well to city water.  

Mr. DeLong asked if it would be beneficial for the Utility Advisory Board to submit a letter of support for 

the Caledonia and Cascade Township’s grant application. Mr. Jernberg said yes, a letter of support could 

be included in the application. Mr. Jernberg will draft a letter on behalf of the board.  

Motion by Mr. Swayze to submit a letter of support for the Cascade and Caledonia Township’s C2R2 grant 

application second by Mr. Grenier.  

MOTION CARRIED. 

Lake Michigan Filtration Plant Solar 

Mr. Jernberg said that at the last Grand Haven Township Zoning Board meeting, the request for the 

installation of the solar panels was tabled. The Water System will continue to conduct the various studies 

that the Grand Haven Township has requested and the potential of installing the panels on a roof.  

Biodigester 

Mr. Grenier gave an update on the biodigester project. The project is reaching completion, and 95% of 

the equipment has been installed. The thickening and digested sludge transfer tanks have been 

programmed and are operational. The CHP Sequencing testing will be complete on January 20, and the 



WRRF is scheduled to take ownership on January 25. The installation of the RNG equipment is 100% 

complete and is being punch listed. The phosphorous removal equipment is 80% complete, and it is on 

schedule.  

Approximately 400 new assets have been added to the asset management program, resulting in over 100 

new PMs and over 1,700 new work orders. The task is 80% complete for all three projects. Additionally, 

staff has completed ten new operational SOPs with 20 new associated work instructions. New lockout/tag 

out and confined space entry procedures have been created and approved by Risk Management. All 

master agreement for new equipment has been completed, along with service contracts for generator 

maintenance and HVAC maintenance. Also, the bio-gas testing contract has been completed. 

2020 Water/Sewer Rate Study Revised Tallmadge Rates 

Ms. Carter said that since the adoption of the 2020 Water/Sewer Rates, there was a decrease in 

Tallmadge’s water rate and the commodity rate, which caused the monthly meter charge to be negative 

for meter sizes over 2”. The adjustment has no impact on the Water System's revenue requirement and 

does not impact other partner communities.  City Commission will ratify the rate resolution on January 

12, 2021.  

Public Comment 

None 

Items from Members 

Mrs. Soto introduced herself as the Business Manager for the Utility Busines Office. Mr. Jernberg said that 

the EPA and EGLE informed him that they are looking for utility information for the Needs-Based Survey. 

Water staff will be working on completing the survey in the next couple of months. Mr. Boerman and Mr. 

Swayze thanked the Grand Rapids Water System staff for their assistance in completing the C2R2 grant 

application.  

Next Meeting – February 18, 2021 

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:29 am by Mr. DeLong. 



VII A













Erhardt Construction

Erhardt Construction

6060 Fulton St E

Ada, MI  49301

APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT AIA DOCUMENT G702

Ada Township Comm Cntr/Library

3993-01

20

1/31/2021 X

X

7330 Thornapple River Dr SE

Ada, MI  49301

Ada Township

VIA ARCHITECT:

PROJECT:TO OWNER:

FROM CONTRACTOR:

CONTRACT FOR:

APPLICATION NO.:

PERIOD TO:

PROJECT NO.:

CONTRACT DATE:

OWNER

ARCHITECT

CONTRACTOR

Distribution to:

$ 8,940,331.00

$ 1,192,478.70

$ 10,132,809.70

$ 9,752,873.94

$ 10,349.90

$ 10,349.90

$ 9,742,524.04

$ 9,172,129.01

$ 570,395.03

$ 390,285.66

 0.11
Michigan

Kent

-272,733.33

 1,465,212.03

 1,192,478.70

-272,733.33

 1,465,212.03

CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT

1.  ORIGINAL CONTRACT SUM ...................................................

2.  Net Change by Change Orders .................................................

3.  CONTRACT SUM TO DATE (Line 1 + 2)...................................

4.  TOTAL COMPLETED & STORED TO DATE ............................

(Column G on Continuation Sheet)

5. RETAINAGE:

a. % of Completed Work

b. % of Completed Work

(Columns D + E on Continuation Sheet)

(Columns F on Continuation Sheet)

Total Retainage (Line 5a + 5b or 

6.  TOTAL EARNED LESS RETAINAGE ......................................

7.  LESS PREVIOUS CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT ...............

8.  CURRENT PAYMENT DUE .....................................................

Total in Column 1 of Continuation Sheet) ..................................

(Line 4 less Line 5 Total)

9. BALANCE TO FINISH, PLUS RETAINAGE 
(Line 3 less Line 6)

CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS

Total changes approved in 

previous months by Owner

Total approved this Month

TOTALS

NET CHANGES by Change Order

The undersigned Contractor certifies that to the best of the Contractor's knowledge, 

information and belief the Work covered by this Application for Payment has been 

completed in accordance with the Contract Documents, that all amounts have been paid by 

the Contractor for Work which previous Certificates for Payment were issued and 

payments received from the Owner, and that current payment shown herein is now due.

CONTRACTOR:

By: ____________________________________________ Date: ___________________

State of: 

County of:

Subscribed and sworn to before

me this          day of               

Notary Public:

My Commission expires:

ARCHITECT'S CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT
In accordance with the Contract Documents, based on on-site observations and the data 

comprising this application, the Architect certifies to the Owner that to the best of the 

Architect's knowledge, information and belief the Work has progressed as indicated , the 

quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents , and the Contractor is 

entitled to payment of the AMOUNT CERTIFIED.

AMOUNT CERTIFIED ....................................................................... $ _________________

(Attach explanation if amount certified differs from the amount applied for.  Initial all figures 

on this Application and on the Continuation Sheet that are changed to conform to the 

amount certified.)

ARCHITECT:

By: __________________________________________________ Date: _______________

This Certificate is not negotiable.  the AMOUNT CERTIFIED is payable only to the 

Contractor named herin.  Issuance, payment and acceptance of payment are without 

prejudice to any rights of the Owner or Contractor under this Contract.

9th February 2021

7/22/2024

02/09/2021H

R1

VII B



REQUEST FOR PAYMENT DETAIL

Invoice: 20Draw:

Retainage

Balance

Balance

To 

Finish

%

Comp

Completed

And Stored

To Date

Presently

Stored

Materials

Work

Completed

This

 Period

Previously

Completed

Work

Total

Contract

Amount

DescriptionItem No.

39932002 1/31/2021Period Ending Date:Project: 3993-01 / Ada Township Comm Cntr/Library

01-0000 Pre-Construction Fee  25,000.00  25,000.00  25,000.00 100.00

04-0000 Concrete  359,620.00  355,912.00  355,912.00 98.97  3,708.00

04-0001

04-5000 Masonry  688,612.50  688,612.50  688,612.50 100.00

05-0000 Structural Steel  535,434.00  535,434.00  535,434.00 100.00

05-5000 Misc. Metals  106,447.00  100,930.00  3,180.00  104,110.00 97.80  2,337.00

06-0000 General Trades  489,976.00  414,352.75  75,623.25  489,976.00 100.00

07-0000 Metal Panels  520,895.00  523,895.00 -3,000.00  520,895.00 100.00

07-5000 Roofing  162,820.00  162,800.00  20.00  162,820.00 100.00

07-9000 Caulking  27,000.00  27,000.00  27,000.00 100.00

08-0000 Alum/Glass & Glazing  450,070.00  450,070.00  450,070.00 100.00

09-0000 Mtl Stud, Drywall & Acoustical  851,249.54  847,943.00  3,306.54  851,249.54 100.00

09-0300 Flooring  352,670.78  356,270.37 -3,599.59  352,670.78 100.00

09-9000 Painting  52,009.00  49,525.00 2,484.00  52,009.00 100.00

12-0000 Window Treatment  19,894.00  19,894.00  19,894.00 100.00

14-0000 Elevator  72,845.00  72,845.00  72,845.00 100.00

21-0000 Fire Suppresion  43,911.00  43,911.00  43,911.00 100.00

22-0000 Plumbing  240,201.00  240,201.00  240,201.00 100.00

23-0000 Mechanical  1,059,873.00  1,049,919.00  9,954.00  1,059,873.00 100.00

23-8000 Commisioning  10,500.00  2,200.00  2,200.00 20.95  8,300.00 220.00

26-0000 Electrical  868,255.00  871,025.00 -2,770.00  868,255.00 100.00

26-0500 Controls Relocation Allowance  30,000.00  29,565.00  29,565.00 98.55  435.00

32-1200 Asphalt  56,485.00  56,485.00  56,485.00 100.00

32-1400 Brick Pavers  85,400.00  85,400.00  85,400.00 100.00

32-3200 Decorative Fence

32-8000 Irrigation  14,457.00  14,135.00  14,135.00 97.77  322.00 1,413.50

32-9000 Landscaping  70,850.42  38,697.76  38,697.76 54.62  32,152.66 3,869.78

33-0000 Sitework & Excavation  593,855.00  593,855.00  593,855.00 100.00

33-2210 Unsuitable Soil Allowance  30,000.00  1,773.00  1,773.00 5.91  28,227.00

33-2500 Dewatering Allowance  20,000.00  2,655.00  2,655.00 13.28  17,345.00



REQUEST FOR PAYMENT DETAIL

Invoice: 20Draw:

Retainage

Balance

Balance

To 

Finish

%

Comp

Completed

And Stored

To Date

Presently

Stored

Materials

Work

Completed

This

 Period

Previously

Completed

Work

Total

Contract

Amount

DescriptionItem No.

39932002 1/31/2021Period Ending Date:Project: 3993-01 / Ada Township Comm Cntr/Library

34-0000 General Conditions  1,092,810.94  905,867.51  55,950.14  961,817.65 88.01  130,993.29

35-0000 Construction Contingency  155,621.81  155,621.81

36-0000 Construction Fee  341,149.09  322,617.00  18,532.09  341,149.09 100.00

40-1500 Mech/Plg/Fp - Lobby Addition  110,845.39  102,601.00  8,244.39  110,845.39 100.00

40-1600 Electrical - Lobby Addition  50,015.00  39,322.75  10,692.25  50,015.00 100.00

40-2000 Site/Land/Irr - Lobby Addition  59,814.44  54,626.44  4,694.00  59,320.44 99.17  494.00 4,846.62

40-3000 Concrete - Lobby Addition  42,971.50  35,396.00  7,575.50  42,971.50 100.00

40-4000 Masonry - Lobby Addition  6,923.56  6,923.56  6,923.56 100.00

40-5000 Steel Lobby Addition  52,460.00  52,460.00  52,460.00 100.00

40-6000 Gen Trades - Lobby Addition  19,094.00  16,288.40  2,805.60  19,094.00 100.00

40-7000 Mtl & Membrane- Lobby Addition  102,100.00  102,100.00  102,100.00 100.00

40-8000 Glass - Lobby Addition  97,792.00  97,792.00  97,792.00 100.00

40-9000 Finishes - Lobby Addition  123,050.55  85,502.55  37,548.00  123,050.55 100.00

41-0000

42-0000 Fee - Lobby Addition  39,831.18  36,543.00  3,288.18  39,831.18 100.00

 96.25Totals  10,132,809.70  9,518,345.59  234,528.35  9,752,873.94  10,349.90  379,935.76



X A









2020 Monroe Avenue NW | Grand Rapids, MI 49505‐6298 
T [616] 363 9801 | F [616] 363 2480 | W mbce.com 

February 17, 2021 

Re: Adacroft Water Main 
Project No. 190182.01 

Mr. Julius Suchy 
Ada Township 
7330 Thornapple River Drive SE 
Ada, Michigan 49301 

Dear Mr. Suchy: 

Seven bids were received at 11 a.m., on Thursday, February 11, 2021, for the Adatowne 
& Adacroft Neighborhoods Water Main & Street Improvements project. All bids were 
reviewed and checked for accuracy. A copy of the tabulation of bids is attached. 

C.L. Trucking & Excavating submitted the low bid for the project in the amount of
$5,664,810.50. The low bid was well under our engineer’s estimate of $7,180,000.00. Our
estimate was based upon average prices bid for water main last year.

We reviewed the bid with C.L. Trucking, and they are very comfortable with the prices they 
submitted. We discussed the project schedule with them as well. This contract includes 
roughly four miles of water main in the Adacroft, Adatowne, and Ada Woods 
neighborhoods. They plan on constructing all of the water main in the Adacroft 
neighborhood (2.75 miles) this year, and completing the remaining sections in Adatowne 
and Ada Woods (1.25 miles) in 2022. 

C.L. Trucking & Excavating was the contractor on the first phase of water main in
Adatowne last summer. They performed well and have a satisfactory performance record
on other projects they have done for us. We recommend that a contract be awarded to
C.L. Trucking & Excavating in the amount of $5,664,810.50.

Sincerely, 

Steven C. Groenenboom, P.E. 
Project Engineer 

SCG/pim 
Attachment 
cc: C.L. Trucking & Excavating

X B



TABULATION OF BIDS 

PROJECT: Adatowne & Adacroft Neighborhoods Water Main & Street Improvements – 
190182.01 

BIDS RECEIVED: TIME: 11 a.m. 

DATE: Thursday, February 11, 2021 

PLACE: Office of the Clerk 
Ada Township 
7330 Thornapple River Drive SE 
Ada MI 49301 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE: $7,180,000.00 

Contractor 
Bid 

Bond 
Bid 

Signed Bid Amount 
C.L. Trucking & Excavating   $5,664,810.50 

Wyoming Excavators   $5,829,647.00 

Dunigan Bros., Inc.   $5,922,314.00 

Nagel Construction   $6,391,757.50 

Diversco Construction Co.   $6,988,573.10 

Kamminga & Roodvoets   $7,290,302.00 

Brenner Excavating Inc. — 

Dykema Excavators Inc. — 

Michigan Paving & Materials —

Plummer’s Environmental Services — 

Rieth-Riley Construction — 

Superior Asphalt — 



MOORE & BRUGGINK, INC.
TABULATION OF BIDS

PROJECT: Adatowne & Adacroft Neighborhoods Water Main & Street Improvements – Project No. 190182.01

OWNER: Ada Township, 7330 Thornapple River Drive SE, Ada, Michigan 49301

BIDS RECEIVED:  11 a.m., Thursday, February 11, 2021

ITEM ESTIMATED
NO. PROPOSAL ITEM UNIT QUANTITY PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT

PHASE 2 ITEMS
1 Mobilization, Max $460,000 Lsum 1 $460,000.00 $460,000.00 $383,590.00 $383,590.00 $306,518.00 $306,518.00 $230,700.00 $230,700.00 $443,000.00 $443,000.00 $460,000.00 $460,000.00 $460,000.00 $460,000.00
2 Tree, Rem, 19 inch to 36 inch Ea 10 $973.00 $9,730.00 $500.00 $5,000.00 $630.00 $6,300.00 $682.10 $6,821.00 $650.00 $6,500.00 $630.00 $6,300.00 $550.00 $5,500.00
3 Tree, Rem, 6 inch to 18 inch Ea 50 $314.00 $15,700.00 $200.00 $10,000.00 $310.00 $15,500.00 $335.60 $16,780.00 $330.00 $16,500.00 $310.00 $15,500.00 $275.00 $13,750.00
4 Curb and Gutter, Rem Ft 4,600 $8.00 $36,800.00 $3.75 $17,250.00 $3.00 $13,800.00 $3.40 $15,640.00 $8.00 $36,800.00 $5.00 $23,000.00 $4.00 $18,400.00
5 Pavt, Rem Syd 4,800 $7.00 $33,600.00 $5.00 $24,000.00 $8.50 $40,800.00 $4.10 $19,680.00 $6.00 $28,800.00 $6.50 $31,200.00 $6.00 $28,800.00
6 Abandon and Fill Underground Utilities, 8 inch Dia. Ft 8,700 $6.00 $52,200.00 $2.00 $17,400.00 $3.50 $30,450.00 $5.00 $43,500.00 $12.00 $104,400.00 $3.55 $30,885.00 $3.00 $26,100.00
7 Miscellaneous Landscaping, Remove Lsum 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $6,050.00 $6,050.00 $10,470.00 $10,470.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $3,950.00 $3,950.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
8 Street Grading Ft 14,500 $10.00 $145,000.00 $4.50 $65,250.00 $6.50 $94,250.00 $11.30 $163,850.00 $5.55 $80,475.00 $6.25 $90,625.00 $15.00 $217,500.00
9 Erosion Control, Inlet Protection, Silt Bag Ea 82 $120.00 $9,840.00 $70.00 $5,740.00 $100.00 $8,200.00 $78.20 $6,412.40 $90.00 $7,380.00 $135.00 $11,070.00 $125.00 $10,250.00
10 Aggregate Base, 8 inch, 21AA, Modified Syd 1,000 $15.00 $15,000.00 $10.00 $10,000.00 $16.00 $16,000.00 $14.50 $14,500.00 $13.50 $13,500.00 $17.15 $17,150.00 $19.00 $19,000.00
11 Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 Ea 182 $436.00 $79,352.00 $450.00 $81,900.00 $401.00 $72,982.00 $386.40 $70,324.80 $360.00 $65,520.00 $380.00 $69,160.00 $400.00 $72,800.00
12 Dr Structure, Temp Lowering Ea 182 $186.00 $33,852.00 $75.00 $13,650.00 $111.00 $20,202.00 $167.60 $30,503.20 $115.00 $20,930.00 $175.00 $31,850.00 $250.00 $45,500.00
13 Dr Structure, Reconstruct Ft 20 $243.00 $4,860.00 $200.00 $4,000.00 $132.00 $2,640.00 $282.80 $5,656.00 $360.00 $7,200.00 $245.00 $4,900.00 $500.00 $10,000.00
14 Furnish Drainage Cover Casting Lb 45,000 $3.00 $135,000.00 $1.15 $51,750.00 $1.70 $76,500.00 $1.30 $58,500.00 $1.90 $85,500.00 $1.75 $78,750.00 $2.00 $90,000.00
15 HMA Surface, Rem Syd 50,250 $2.00 $100,500.00 $0.85 $42,712.50 $0.80 $40,200.00 $1.40 $70,350.00 $1.20 $60,300.00 $0.92 $46,230.00 $1.50 $75,375.00
16 Hand Patching Ton 100 $145.00 $14,500.00 $91.00 $9,100.00 $91.00 $9,100.00 $94.30 $9,430.00 $93.00 $9,300.00 $91.00 $9,100.00 $91.00 $9,100.00
17 HMA, 3C Ton 6,250 $72.00 $450,000.00 $62.00 $387,500.00 $62.00 $387,500.00 $64.30 $401,875.00 $62.00 $387,500.00 $62.00 $387,500.00 $62.00 $387,500.00
18 HMA, 5E1 Ton 4,700 $77.00 $361,900.00 $65.00 $305,500.00 $65.00 $305,500.00 $67.40 $316,780.00 $65.00 $305,500.00 $65.00 $305,500.00 $65.00 $305,500.00
19 Temporary HMA Pavement Ton 200 $137.00 $27,400.00 $67.00 $13,400.00 $77.00 $15,400.00 $115.30 $23,060.00 $77.00 $15,400.00 $112.00 $22,400.00 $88.00 $17,600.00
20 Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 6 inch, 4 inch Sand Subbase Syd 5,400 $39.00 $210,600.00 $37.00 $199,800.00 $30.15 $162,810.00 $35.20 $190,080.00 $33.50 $180,900.00 $30.20 $163,080.00 $37.00 $199,800.00
21 Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det F4 Ft 1,950 $25.00 $48,750.00 $22.50 $43,875.00 $18.50 $36,075.00 $20.00 $39,000.00 $16.00 $31,200.00 $18.00 $35,100.00 $19.00 $37,050.00
22 Valley Gutter, Conc Ft 2,800 $30.00 $84,000.00 $22.50 $63,000.00 $18.50 $51,800.00 $20.00 $56,000.00 $16.00 $44,800.00 $18.00 $50,400.00 $17.50 $49,000.00
23 Traffic Control Lsum 1 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $30,525.00 $30,525.00 $25,520.00 $25,520.00 $30,800.00 $30,800.00 $46,885.00 $46,885.00 $188,500.00 $188,500.00
24 Turf Establishment Syd 30,000 $7.00 $210,000.00 $3.70 $111,000.00 $6.00 $180,000.00 $5.40 $162,000.00 $9.00 $270,000.00 $10.95 $328,500.00 $5.30 $159,000.00
25 Turf Watering Ea 10 $1,200.00 $12,000.00 $500.00 $5,000.00 $506.00 $5,060.00 $581.60 $5,816.00 $1,700.00 $17,000.00 $1,550.00 $15,500.00 $750.00 $7,500.00
26 Sign, Remove & Reinstall Ea 17 $200.00 $3,400.00 $55.00 $935.00 $66.00 $1,122.00 $58.20 $989.40 $75.00 $1,275.00 $150.00 $2,550.00 $250.00 $4,250.00
27 Adacroft Sign, Remove & Reinstall Ea 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $200.00 $200.00 $550.00 $550.00 $3,490.00 $3,490.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $2,150.00 $2,150.00 $500.00 $500.00
28 Water Main, D.I. CL 53, 8 inch (with Poly-Wrap), incl. sand backfill Ft 14,685 $83.00 $1,218,855.00 $80.00 $1,174,800.00 $79.50 $1,167,457.50 $86.30 $1,267,315.50 $81.00 $1,189,485.00 $105.30 $1,546,330.50 $110.00 $1,615,350.00
29 Water Main, D.I. CL 53, 6 inch (with Poly-Wrap), incl. sand backfill Ft 405 $73.00 $29,565.00 $45.00 $18,225.00 $73.00 $29,565.00 $87.30 $35,356.50 $74.00 $29,970.00 $97.45 $39,467.25 $105.00 $42,525.00
30 Water Service, Copper, Type K, 1 inch, incl. sand backfill Ft 2,100 $35.00 $73,500.00 $25.00 $52,500.00 $32.50 $68,250.00 $28.30 $59,430.00 $50.00 $105,000.00 $27.30 $57,330.00 $60.00 $126,000.00
31 Water Service, Copper, Type K, 1 inch, Trenchless Construction Ft 6,700 $31.00 $207,700.00 $25.00 $167,500.00 $37.00 $247,900.00 $29.50 $197,650.00 $50.00 $335,000.00 $31.70 $212,390.00 $35.00 $234,500.00
32 Hydrant Extension Ft 30 $526.00 $15,780.00 $325.00 $9,750.00 $473.00 $14,190.00 $433.00 $12,990.00 $430.00 $12,900.00 $540.00 $16,200.00 $450.00 $13,500.00
33 Ex. Water Main, Rem Ft 50 $35.00 $1,750.00 $10.00 $500.00 $11.00 $550.00 $11.60 $580.00 $30.00 $1,500.00 $28.00 $1,400.00 $19.00 $950.00
34 Hydrant, Rem and Salvage Ea 30 $438.00 $13,140.00 $450.00 $13,500.00 $319.00 $9,570.00 $174.50 $5,235.00 $350.00 $10,500.00 $496.00 $14,880.00 $250.00 $7,500.00
35 Tap for 1 inch Water Service, incl Corporation Stop Ea 249 $1,087.00 $270,663.00 $350.00 $87,150.00 $251.00 $62,499.00 $701.40 $174,648.60 $155.00 $38,595.00 $332.00 $82,668.00 $350.00 $87,150.00
36 Curb Stop and Box, 1 inch Ea 249 $451.00 $112,299.00 $600.00 $149,400.00 $436.00 $108,564.00 $238.70 $59,436.30 $385.00 $95,865.00 $562.00 $139,938.00 $485.00 $120,765.00
37 Tee, 12 inch x 12 inch x 8 inch Ea 1 $949.00 $949.00 $850.00 $850.00 $1,033.00 $1,033.00 $677.10 $677.10 $1,075.00 $1,075.00 $1,120.00 $1,120.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00
38 Tee, 8 inch x 8 inch x 8 inch Ea 13 $655.00 $8,515.00 $550.00 $7,150.00 $724.00 $9,412.00 $407.40 $5,296.20 $815.00 $10,595.00 $874.00 $11,362.00 $900.00 $11,700.00
39 Tee, 8 inch x 8 inch x 6 inch Ea 18 $572.00 $10,296.00 $500.00 $9,000.00 $682.00 $12,276.00 $355.80 $6,404.40 $765.00 $13,770.00 $827.00 $14,886.00 $900.00 $16,200.00
40 Cross, 8 inch x 8 inch Ea 2 $939.00 $1,878.00 $750.00 $1,500.00 $945.00 $1,890.00 $585.30 $1,170.60 $985.00 $1,970.00 $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $1,100.00 $2,200.00
41 Reducer, 8 inch x 6 inch Ea 12 $442.00 $5,304.00 $325.00 $3,900.00 $527.00 $6,324.00 $203.10 $2,437.20 $385.00 $4,620.00 $408.00 $4,896.00 $450.00 $5,400.00
42 Valve and Box, 12 inch Ea 2 $2,607.00 $5,214.00 $2,800.00 $5,600.00 $2,703.00 $5,406.00 $2,580.00 $5,160.00 $3,120.00 $6,240.00 $2,746.00 $5,492.00 $2,400.00 $4,800.00
43 Valve and Box, 8 inch Ea 48 $1,653.00 $79,344.00 $1,600.00 $76,800.00 $1,618.50 $77,688.00 $1,410.00 $67,680.00 $1,800.00 $86,400.00 $1,796.00 $86,208.00 $1,600.00 $76,800.00
44 Valve and Box, 6 inch Ea 30 $1,293.00 $38,790.00 $1,150.00 $34,500.00 $1,206.00 $36,180.00 $961.70 $28,851.00 $1,370.00 $41,100.00 $1,386.00 $41,580.00 $1,200.00 $36,000.00

KAMMINGA & ROODVOETSENGINEER'S ESTIMATE
C.L. TRUCKING & 

EXCAVATING WYOMING EXCAVATORS DUNIGAN BROS., INC. NAGEL CONSTRUCTION DIVERSCO CONSTRUCTION

 190182.01 Page 1 of 3



ITEM ESTIMATED
NO. PROPOSAL ITEM UNIT QUANTITY PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT

KAMMINGA & ROODVOETSENGINEER'S ESTIMATE
C.L. TRUCKING & 

EXCAVATING WYOMING EXCAVATORS DUNIGAN BROS., INC. NAGEL CONSTRUCTION DIVERSCO CONSTRUCTION

45 Water Service Connection Ea 249 $176.00 $43,824.00 $185.00 $46,065.00 $218.00 $54,282.00 $24.10 $6,000.90 $45.00 $11,205.00 $119.00 $29,631.00 $50.00 $12,450.00
46 Plug, 6 inch Ea 1 $232.00 $232.00 $200.00 $200.00 $253.00 $253.00 $86.10 $86.10 $265.00 $265.00 $246.00 $246.00 $350.00 $350.00
47 Plug, 8 inch Ea 5 $290.00 $1,450.00 $250.00 $1,250.00 $348.00 $1,740.00 $125.10 $625.50 $300.00 $1,500.00 $336.00 $1,680.00 $400.00 $2,000.00
48 Hydrant, 5 inch Ea 30 $2,640.00 $79,200.00 $2,850.00 $85,500.00 $2,575.50 $77,265.00 $3,260.00 $97,800.00 $3,000.00 $90,000.00 $2,830.00 $84,900.00 $2,500.00 $75,000.00
49 Bend, 90 Degree, 8 inch Ea 1 $569.00 $569.00 $350.00 $350.00 $634.00 $634.00 $275.40 $275.40 $465.00 $465.00 $585.00 $585.00 $800.00 $800.00
50 Bend, 22-1/2 Degree, 8 inch Ea 27 $569.00 $15,363.00 $320.00 $8,640.00 $550.00 $14,850.00 $236.40 $6,382.80 $425.00 $11,475.00 $550.00 $14,850.00 $750.00 $20,250.00
51 Bend, 11-1/4 Degree, 8 inch Ea 2 $569.00 $1,138.00 $320.00 $640.00 $538.00 $1,076.00 $224.90 $449.80 $415.00 $830.00 $539.00 $1,078.00 $750.00 $1,500.00
52 Bend, 90 Degree, 6 inch Ea 18 $383.00 $6,894.00 $280.00 $5,040.00 $486.50 $8,757.00 $196.20 $3,531.60 $390.00 $7,020.00 $447.00 $8,046.00 $625.00 $11,250.00
53 Sleeve, 8 inch Ea 7 $385.00 $2,695.00 $600.00 $4,200.00 $1,112.50 $7,787.50 $241.00 $1,687.00 $630.00 $4,410.00 $1,057.00 $7,399.00 $1,200.00 $8,400.00
54 Sleeve, 6 inch Ea 1 $948.00 $948.00 $600.00 $600.00 $988.00 $988.00 $181.30 $181.30 $580.00 $580.00 $1,006.00 $1,006.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00
55 Thrust Block Ea 4 $661.00 $2,644.00 $250.00 $1,000.00 $924.00 $3,696.00 $228.60 $914.40 $350.00 $1,400.00 $345.00 $1,380.00 $500.00 $2,000.00
56 Water Main Connection Ea 5 $2,038.00 $10,190.00 $1,500.00 $7,500.00 $1,650.00 $8,250.00 $2,610.00 $13,050.00 $1,000.00 $5,000.00 $1,325.00 $6,625.00 $500.00 $2,500.00
57 Abandon Ex. Valve and Box Ea 55 $233.00 $12,815.00 $150.00 $8,250.00 $242.00 $13,310.00 $116.30 $6,396.50 $150.00 $8,250.00 $227.00 $12,485.00 $150.00 $8,250.00
58 Bend, 45 Degree, 8 inch Ea 22 $470.00 $10,340.00 $325.00 $7,150.00 $597.50 $13,145.00 $239.80 $5,275.60 $435.00 $9,570.00 $553.00 $12,166.00 $850.00 $18,700.00
59 Adaway Ave Pressure Reducing Valve & Chamber Lsum 1 $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $37,576.00 $37,576.00 $39,790.00 $39,790.00 $32,500.00 $32,500.00 $39,595.00 $39,595.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00
60 Ada Drive Pressure Reducing Valve & Chamber Lsum 1 $90,000.00 $90,000.00 $27,000.00 $27,000.00 $39,088.50 $39,088.50 $41,280.00 $41,280.00 $34,000.00 $34,000.00 $44,003.00 $44,003.00 $33,250.00 $33,250.00
61 Valve & Chamber, Rem Ea 2 $10,000.00 $20,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $6,259.00 $12,518.00 $511.40 $1,022.80 $350.00 $700.00 $695.00 $1,390.00 $1,500.00 $3,000.00
62 Tapping Sleeve & Valve, 12 inch x 8 inch Ea 1 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,493.50 $4,493.50 $3,710.00 $3,710.00 $5,100.00 $5,100.00 $4,315.00 $4,315.00 $4,800.00 $4,800.00
63 Underground Sprinkling Systems, Restore Dlr 20,000 $1.00 $20,000.00 $1.00 $20,000.00 $1.00 $20,000.00 $1.00 $20,000.00 $1.00 $20,000.00 $1.00 $20,000.00 $1.00 $20,000.00
64 Sanitary Manhole Epoxy Lining Vft 25 $250.00 $6,250.00 $340.00 $8,500.00 $250.00 $6,250.00 $378.90 $9,472.50 $380.00 $9,500.00 $390.00 $9,750.00 $500.00 $12,500.00

Subtotal Phase 2 Items $5,117,578.00 $3,982,562.50 $4,120,548.00 $4,185,978.40 $4,517,035.00 $4,868,912.75 $5,136,915.00
PHASE 3 ITEMS

65 Mobilization, Max $180,000 Lsum 1 $180,000.00 $180,000.00 $165,000.00 $165,000.00 $121,077.00 $121,077.00 $83,580.00 $83,580.00 $153,000.00 $153,000.00 $180,000.00 $180,000.00 $180,000.00 $180,000.00
66 Clear and Grubbing Acre 0.05 $6,500.00 $325.00 $10,000.00 $500.00 $5,600.00 $280.00 $25,000.00 $1,250.00 $1.00 $0.05 $1.00 $0.05 $50,000.00 $2,500.00
67 Tree, Rem, 19 inch to 36 inch Ea 5 $973.00 $4,865.00 $500.00 $2,500.00 $630.00 $3,150.00 $682.10 $3,410.50 $650.00 $3,250.00 $630.00 $3,150.00 $550.00 $2,750.00
68 Tree, Rem, 6 inch to 18 inch Ea 30 $314.00 $9,420.00 $200.00 $6,000.00 $310.00 $9,300.00 $335.60 $10,068.00 $330.00 $9,900.00 $310.00 $9,300.00 $275.00 $8,250.00
69 Curb and Gutter, Rem Ft 2,100 $8.00 $16,800.00 $3.75 $7,875.00 $3.00 $6,300.00 $3.40 $7,140.00 $8.00 $16,800.00 $5.25 $11,025.00 $4.00 $8,400.00
70 Pavt, Rem Syd 1,900 $7.00 $13,300.00 $5.00 $9,500.00 $8.50 $16,150.00 $4.10 $7,790.00 $6.00 $11,400.00 $6.80 $12,920.00 $6.00 $11,400.00
71 Abandon and Fill Underground Utilities, 12 inch Dia. Ft 2,750 $8.00 $22,000.00 $5.00 $13,750.00 $5.50 $15,125.00 $7.70 $21,175.00 $14.00 $38,500.00 $7.40 $20,350.00 $6.00 $16,500.00
72 Abandon and Fill Underground Utilities, 8 inch Dia. Ft 2,475 $6.00 $14,850.00 $2.00 $4,950.00 $3.50 $8,662.50 $6.20 $15,345.00 $12.00 $29,700.00 $3.80 $9,405.00 $3.00 $7,425.00
73 Miscellaneous Landscaping, Remove Lsum 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $4,950.00 $4,950.00 $8,140.00 $8,140.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $3,950.00 $3,950.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00
74 Street Grading Ft 5,919 $10.00 $59,190.00 $4.50 $26,635.50 $6.50 $38,473.50 $11.30 $66,884.70 $5.55 $32,850.45 $6.25 $36,993.75 $15.00 $88,785.00
75 Erosion Control, Inlet Protection, Silt Bag Ea 40 $82.00 $3,280.00 $70.00 $2,800.00 $100.00 $4,000.00 $78.20 $3,128.00 $90.00 $3,600.00 $135.00 $5,400.00 $125.00 $5,000.00
76 Aggregate Base, 8 inch, 21AA, Modified Syd 600 $15.00 $9,000.00 $10.00 $6,000.00 $16.00 $9,600.00 $14.50 $8,700.00 $13.50 $8,100.00 $17.15 $10,290.00 $19.00 $11,400.00
77 Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 Ea 73 $436.00 $31,828.00 $450.00 $32,850.00 $401.00 $29,273.00 $386.40 $28,207.20 $360.00 $26,280.00 $380.00 $27,740.00 $400.00 $29,200.00
78 Dr Structure, Temp Lowering Ea 73 $186.00 $13,578.00 $75.00 $5,475.00 $111.00 $8,103.00 $167.60 $12,234.80 $115.00 $8,395.00 $175.00 $12,775.00 $250.00 $18,250.00
79 Dr Structure, Reconstruct Ft 20 $243.00 $4,860.00 $200.00 $4,000.00 $132.00 $2,640.00 $282.80 $5,656.00 $360.00 $7,200.00 $245.00 $4,900.00 $500.00 $10,000.00
80 Furnish Drainage Cover Casting Lb 20,500 $3.00 $61,500.00 $1.15 $23,575.00 $1.70 $34,850.00 $1.10 $22,550.00 $1.90 $38,950.00 $1.75 $35,875.00 $2.00 $41,000.00
81 HMA Surface, Rem Syd 21,000 $2.00 $42,000.00 $0.85 $17,850.00 $0.80 $16,800.00 $1.40 $29,400.00 $1.20 $25,200.00 $0.92 $19,320.00 $1.50 $31,500.00
82 Hand Patching Ton 50 $145.00 $7,250.00 $94.00 $4,700.00 $91.00 $4,550.00 $94.30 $4,715.00 $93.00 $4,650.00 $94.00 $4,700.00 $91.00 $4,550.00
83 HMA, 3C Ton 2,450 $72.00 $176,400.00 $65.00 $159,250.00 $62.00 $151,900.00 $64.30 $157,535.00 $62.00 $151,900.00 $65.00 $159,250.00 $65.00 $159,250.00
84 HMA, 5E1 Ton 1,800 $77.00 $138,600.00 $68.00 $122,400.00 $65.00 $117,000.00 $67.40 $121,320.00 $65.00 $117,000.00 $68.00 $122,400.00 $68.00 $122,400.00
85 Temporary HMA Pavement Ton 100 $137.00 $13,700.00 $66.00 $6,600.00 $77.00 $7,700.00 $128.50 $12,850.00 $76.00 $7,600.00 $115.00 $11,500.00 $90.00 $9,000.00
86 Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 6 inch, 4 inch Sand Subbase Syd 1,900 $39.00 $74,100.00 $37.00 $70,300.00 $30.15 $57,285.00 $35.20 $66,880.00 $33.40 $63,460.00 $32.00 $60,800.00 $37.00 $70,300.00
87 Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det F4 Ft 1,275 $25.00 $31,875.00 $22.50 $28,687.50 $18.50 $23,587.50 $20.00 $25,500.00 $16.00 $20,400.00 $20.00 $25,500.00 $19.00 $24,225.00
88 Valley Gutter, Conc Ft 810 $30.00 $24,300.00 $22.50 $18,225.00 $18.50 $14,985.00 $20.00 $16,200.00 $16.00 $12,960.00 $20.00 $16,200.00 $17.50 $14,175.00
89 Traffic Control Lsum 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $16,425.00 $16,425.00 $17,780.00 $17,780.00 $16,600.00 $16,600.00 $50,525.00 $50,525.00 $83,000.00 $83,000.00
90 Turf Establishment Syd 12,600 $7.00 $88,200.00 $3.70 $46,620.00 $6.00 $75,600.00 $5.40 $68,040.00 $9.00 $113,400.00 $11.55 $145,530.00 $5.30 $66,780.00
91 Turf Watering Ea 10 $500.00 $5,000.00 $500.00 $5,000.00 $506.00 $5,060.00 $738.70 $7,387.00 $1,300.00 $13,000.00 $815.00 $8,150.00 $600.00 $6,000.00
92 Sign, Remove & Reinstall Ea 8 $200.00 $1,600.00 $55.00 $440.00 $66.00 $528.00 $58.20 $465.60 $75.00 $600.00 $160.00 $1,280.00 $250.00 $2,000.00
93 Water Main, D.I. CL 53, 12 inch (with Poly-Wrap), incl. sand backfill Ft 1,450 $102.00 $147,900.00 $105.00 $152,250.00 $101.00 $146,450.00 $108.40 $157,180.00 $107.00 $155,150.00 $142.10 $206,045.00 $130.00 $188,500.00

 190182.01 Page 2 of 3



ITEM ESTIMATED
NO. PROPOSAL ITEM UNIT QUANTITY PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT

KAMMINGA & ROODVOETSENGINEER'S ESTIMATE
C.L. TRUCKING & 

EXCAVATING WYOMING EXCAVATORS DUNIGAN BROS., INC. NAGEL CONSTRUCTION DIVERSCO CONSTRUCTION

94 Water Main, D.I. CL 53, 8 inch (with Poly-Wrap), incl. sand backfill Ft 4,580 $83.00 $380,140.00 $80.00 $366,400.00 $79.50 $364,110.00 $86.40 $395,712.00 $81.00 $370,980.00 $105.45 $482,961.00 $110.00 $503,800.00
95 Water Main, D.I. CL 53, 6 inch (with Poly-Wrap), incl. sand backfill Ft 141 $73.00 $10,293.00 $45.00 $6,345.00 $73.00 $10,293.00 $84.60 $11,928.60 $72.00 $10,152.00 $114.45 $16,137.45 $105.00 $14,805.00
96 Water Service, Copper, Type K, 1 inch, incl. sand backfill Ft 653 $35.00 $22,855.00 $25.00 $16,325.00 $32.50 $21,222.50 $28.30 $18,479.90 $50.00 $32,650.00 $28.80 $18,806.40 $79.00 $51,587.00
97 Water Service, Copper, Type K, 1 inch, Trenchless Construction Ft 2,416 $31.00 $74,896.00 $25.00 $60,400.00 $37.00 $89,392.00 $29.50 $71,272.00 $50.00 $120,800.00 $35.70 $86,251.20 $35.00 $84,560.00
98 Hydrant Extension Ft 11 $526.00 $5,786.00 $325.00 $3,575.00 $473.00 $5,203.00 $433.00 $4,763.00 $430.00 $4,730.00 $551.00 $6,061.00 $450.00 $4,950.00
99 Ex. Water Main, Rem Ft 45 $35.00 $1,575.00 $10.00 $450.00 $11.00 $495.00 $11.60 $522.00 $30.00 $1,350.00 $31.10 $1,399.50 $19.00 $855.00
100 Hydrant, Rem and Salvage Ea 11 $438.00 $4,818.00 $450.00 $4,950.00 $319.00 $3,509.00 $174.50 $1,919.50 $350.00 $3,850.00 $521.00 $5,731.00 $250.00 $2,750.00
101 Tap for 1 inch Water Service, incl Corporation Stop Ea 89 $1,087.00 $96,743.00 $350.00 $31,150.00 $251.00 $22,339.00 $700.90 $62,380.10 $155.00 $13,795.00 $346.00 $30,794.00 $350.00 $31,150.00
102 Curb Stop and Box, 1 inch Ea 89 $451.00 $40,139.00 $600.00 $53,400.00 $436.00 $38,804.00 $238.70 $21,244.30 $385.00 $34,265.00 $582.00 $51,798.00 $485.00 $43,165.00
103 Tee, 8 inch x 8 inch x 8 inch Ea 5 $655.00 $3,275.00 $550.00 $2,750.00 $724.00 $3,620.00 $407.40 $2,037.00 $825.00 $4,125.00 $898.00 $4,490.00 $900.00 $4,500.00
104 Tee, 8 inch x 8 inch x 6 inch Ea 7 $572.00 $4,004.00 $500.00 $3,500.00 $671.00 $4,697.00 $355.80 $2,490.60 $775.00 $5,425.00 $851.00 $5,957.00 $900.00 $6,300.00
105 Tee, 12 inch x 12 inch x 12 inch Ea 1 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,277.50 $1,277.50 $857.20 $857.20 $1,260.00 $1,260.00 $1,314.00 $1,314.00 $1,400.00 $1,400.00
106 Tee, 12 inch x 12 inch x 8 inch Ea 2 $949.00 $1,898.00 $850.00 $1,700.00 $1,077.00 $2,154.00 $673.60 $1,347.20 $1,085.00 $2,170.00 $1,144.00 $2,288.00 $1,200.00 $2,400.00
107 Tee, 12 inch x 12 inch x 6 inch Ea 2 $895.00 $1,790.00 $800.00 $1,600.00 $1,031.00 $2,062.00 $639.20 $1,278.40 $1,050.00 $2,100.00 $1,113.00 $2,226.00 $1,200.00 $2,400.00
108 Cross, 8 inch x 8 inch Ea 1 $939.00 $939.00 $750.00 $750.00 $945.00 $945.00 $581.80 $581.80 $755.00 $755.00 $1,133.00 $1,133.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00
109 Reducer, 12 inch x 8 inch Ea 1 $600.00 $600.00 $500.00 $500.00 $744.00 $744.00 $312.10 $312.10 $550.00 $550.00 $574.00 $574.00 $650.00 $650.00
110 Reducer, 8 inch x 6 inch Ea 4 $442.00 $1,768.00 $325.00 $1,300.00 $527.00 $2,108.00 $203.10 $812.40 $390.00 $1,560.00 $442.00 $1,768.00 $450.00 $1,800.00
111 Valve and Box, 12 inch Ea 6 $2,607.00 $15,642.00 $2,800.00 $16,800.00 $2,703.00 $16,218.00 $2,580.00 $15,480.00 $3,120.00 $18,720.00 $2,950.00 $17,700.00 $2,400.00 $14,400.00
112 Valve and Box, 8 inch Ea 24 $1,653.00 $39,672.00 $1,600.00 $38,400.00 $1,618.50 $38,844.00 $1,400.00 $33,600.00 $1,800.00 $43,200.00 $1,822.00 $43,728.00 $1,600.00 $38,400.00
113 Valve and Box, 6 inch Ea 11 $1,293.00 $14,223.00 $1,150.00 $12,650.00 $1,206.00 $13,266.00 $961.70 $10,578.70 $1,370.00 $15,070.00 $1,412.00 $15,532.00 $1,200.00 $13,200.00
114 Water Service Connection Ea 89 $176.00 $15,664.00 $185.00 $16,465.00 $218.00 $19,402.00 $24.10 $2,144.90 $45.00 $4,005.00 $124.00 $11,036.00 $50.00 $4,450.00
115 Plug, 6 inch Ea 2 $232.00 $464.00 $200.00 $400.00 $253.00 $506.00 $86.10 $172.20 $275.00 $550.00 $255.00 $510.00 $350.00 $700.00
116 Plug, 8 inch Ea 6 $290.00 $1,740.00 $250.00 $1,500.00 $348.00 $2,088.00 $125.10 $750.60 $310.00 $1,860.00 $348.00 $2,088.00 $400.00 $2,400.00
117 Plug, 12 inch Ea 2 $412.00 $824.00 $350.00 $700.00 $574.50 $1,149.00 $340.80 $681.60 $510.00 $1,020.00 $473.00 $946.00 $500.00 $1,000.00
118 Hydrant, 5 inch Ea 11 $2,640.00 $29,040.00 $2,850.00 $31,350.00 $2,575.50 $28,330.50 $3,260.00 $35,860.00 $3,000.00 $33,000.00 $2,857.00 $31,427.00 $2,500.00 $27,500.00
119 Bend, 22-1/2 Degree, 12 inch Ea 10 $735.00 $7,350.00 $650.00 $6,500.00 $854.00 $8,540.00 $491.20 $4,912.00 $830.00 $8,300.00 $836.00 $8,360.00 $1,000.00 $10,000.00
120 Bend, 45 Degree, 8 inch Ea 3 $470.00 $1,410.00 $325.00 $975.00 $597.50 $1,792.50 $239.80 $719.40 $400.00 $1,200.00 $569.00 $1,707.00 $850.00 $2,550.00
121 Bend, 22-1/2 Degree, 8 inch Ea 21 $569.00 $11,949.00 $320.00 $6,720.00 $550.00 $11,550.00 $236.40 $4,964.40 $420.00 $8,820.00 $566.00 $11,886.00 $750.00 $15,750.00
122 Bend, 90 Degree, 6 inch Ea 7 $383.00 $2,681.00 $280.00 $1,960.00 $486.50 $3,405.50 $196.20 $1,373.40 $380.00 $2,660.00 $529.00 $3,703.00 $625.00 $4,375.00
123 Sleeve, 12 inch Ea 2 $1,678.00 $3,356.00 $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $1,956.00 $3,912.00 $469.40 $938.80 $885.00 $1,770.00 $1,446.00 $2,892.00 $2,400.00 $4,800.00
124 Sleeve, 8 inch Ea 5 $385.00 $1,925.00 $600.00 $3,000.00 $1,112.50 $5,562.50 $236.40 $1,182.00 $655.00 $3,275.00 $1,099.00 $5,495.00 $1,200.00 $6,000.00
125 Sleeve, 6 inch Ea 2 $948.00 $1,896.00 $600.00 $1,200.00 $988.00 $1,976.00 $181.30 $362.60 $605.00 $1,210.00 $1,048.00 $2,096.00 $1,100.00 $2,200.00
126 Thrust Block Ea 3 $661.00 $1,983.00 $250.00 $750.00 $924.00 $2,772.00 $228.60 $685.80 $350.00 $1,050.00 $362.00 $1,086.00 $500.00 $1,500.00
127 Water Main Connection Ea 9 $2,038.00 $18,342.00 $1,500.00 $13,500.00 $1,650.00 $14,850.00 $2,610.00 $23,490.00 $1,100.00 $9,900.00 $1,390.00 $12,510.00 $500.00 $4,500.00
128 Abandon Ex. Valve and Box Ea 11 $233.00 $2,563.00 $150.00 $1,650.00 $242.00 $2,662.00 $116.30 $1,279.30 $150.00 $1,650.00 $240.00 $2,640.00 $150.00 $1,650.00
129 Tapping Sleeve & Valve, 12 inch x 8 inch Ea 1 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,493.50 $4,493.50 $3,710.00 $3,710.00 $5,100.00 $5,100.00 $4,355.00 $4,355.00 $4,800.00 $4,800.00
130 Underground Sprinkling Systems, Restore Dlr 5,000 $1.00 $5,000.00 $1.00 $5,000.00 $1.00 $5,000.00 $1.00 $5,000.00 $1.00 $5,000.00 $1.00 $5,000.00 $1.00 $5,000.00

Subtotal Phase 3 Items $2,058,664.00 $1,682,248.00 $1,709,099.00 $1,736,335.60 $1,874,722.50 $2,119,660.35 $2,153,387.00

TOTAL ALL ITEMS $7,176,242.00 $5,664,810.50 $5,829,647.00 $5,922,314.00 $6,391,757.50 $6,988,573.10 $7,290,302.00

 190182.01 Page 3 of 3



2020 Monroe Avenue NW | Grand Rapids, MI 49505‐6298 
T [616] 363 9801 | F [616] 363 2480 | W mbce.com 

February 17, 2021 

Re: Adatowne & Adacroft Water 
Main & Street Improvements 
Project No. 190182.01 

Mr. Julius Suchy, Township Manager 
Ada Township 
7330 Thornapple River Drive SE 
Ada, Michigan 49301 

Dear Mr. Suchy: 

Based on our recommendation to award a contract on the Adatowne & Adacroft Water 
Main & Street Improvements project in the amount of $5,664,810.50, we hereby 
estimate the total project budget as follows: 

PROJECT COSTS 

Low Bid (C.L. Trucking & Excavating) $5,664,810.50 
Design Engineering $255,000.00 
Street Light Relocation (Consumers Energy) $120,000.00 
Soil Borings $30,000.00 
Construction Inspection and Engineering $390,000.00 
Project Contingencies  $190,189.50 

TOTAL ESTIMATED BUDGET $6,650,000.00 

Funding is provided by the following: 

PROJECT FUNDING 

2020 Bond Proceeds (from $10 million issued) $5,521,562.00 
Township General Fund (50% of Street Cost)  $564,219.00 
Kent County Road Commission (50% of Street Cost) $564,219.00 

TOTAL ESTIMATED BUDGET $6,650,000.00 

The majority of this project is being funded with proceeds from the $10 million capital 
improvements bond. Now that we have completed the Ada Drive sewer project, the first 
phase of water main, and have secured bids for this work, we can report the overall budget 



Mr. Julius Suchy 
February 17, 2021 
Page 2 

is in line with our original estimates. We will provide a separate budget report that 
summarizes all of the bond-funded projects under separate cover. 

Sincerely, 

Steven C. Groenenboom, P.E. 
Project Engineer 

SCG/pim 



MEMORANDUM

Date: 2/17/21 

TO: Ada Township Board 
FROM: Julius Suchy, Township Manager 
RE: Refunding of General Obligation Limited Tax 2011B Bond & Call 2011A Bond 

Background: 

In 2011 the Township issued Capital Improvement Bonds for the 2011A series of bonds in the 
amount of $605,000 and Series 2011B in the amount of $2,325,000. The bonds currently have a 
high interest rate of 3.5% - 4.6% and they have the ability to be refunded at approximately 2%. I 
have enclosed the bond packet with the noted savings as well as the resolution that needs to be 
approved to move forward with the bond refunding.   

2011A Series:  

The 2011A series is paid for with general fund (52%) and water fund (48%) monies. This bond 
runs thought FY 28-29 and has approximately $310,000 in principal due and $63,920 in interest 
due over the remaining life of the bond. Treasurer Moran and I reviewed this bond and 
determined that it was in the best interest of the Township to call the bond early and pay it off in 
its entirety. This will save approximately $63,000 in interest payments ($32,760 – general fund, 
$30,681.60) for the Township over the next 7 years. The final payoff amount would depend on 
the date the bond is called but it would require the general fund to pay $161,200 and the water 
fund to pay $148,800. Treasurer Moran and I have discussed the cash flow of both funds and 
met with our Engineer to discuss upcoming water projects and we feel comfortable with the 
existing fund balances to pay off the 2011A bond resulting in the savings noted above. This will 
free up approximately $24,000 - $27,800 annually in the general fund and $22,000 - $25,700 in 
the water fund.    

Note: The resolution includes authorization to refund the 2011A bond but that was prior to the 
decision to call the bond early. Our bond counsel has indicated that the language referencing 
2011A will be removed prior to the bond refunding documents being finalized.  

2011B Series: 

The 2011B series is paid for with sewer fund monies and this bond runs through FY 31-32 and 
has approximately $1,420,000 in principal due and $373,105 in interest over the remaining life 
of the bond. The proposed refunding would save between $16,132 to $28,775 per year. The 
total savings equal $222,837.33, which will save Ada Township sewer rate payers in the future.  

The cost of issuance as proposed for the refunding of the 2011B bond is $62,421.87. This cost 
is factored into the overall bond cost when considering how much the Township will save.  

X C



Recommended Action: 

Staff would recommend approval of Resolution R-022221-2 to authorize the refunding of the 
2011B Series Bond and authorize the Treasurer to pay off the remaining balance of the 2011A 
bond with existing cash on hand from each of the associated funds. The savings of paying off 
the 2011A bond and the cost savings of refunding the 2011B bond will allow the sewer fund 
greater financial flexibility.   

Requested Motion: Motion to Approve Resolution R-022221-2 and authorize the Township 
Treasurer to pay off the 2011A Series Bond.  



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TOWNSHIP OF ADA
COUNTY OF KENT, STATE OF MICHIGAN

PROPOSED 2021 REFUNDING BONDS
ESTIMATED TAX EXEMPT RATES FROM FEBRUARY 8, 2021

CASH DEFEASANCE FOR THE 2011A

Report Page

2021 Refunding Bonds of 2011A&B
Sources and Uses of Funds .......................... 1
Schedule of Principal & Interest Requirements .................. 2
Savings .................................. 3
Summary of Refunding Results ........................ 4
Bond Pricing ............................... 5
Bond Summary Statistics ........................... 6
Escrow Requirements ............................ 7
Escrow Cost ................................ 8
Escrow Sufficiency ............................. 9
Escrow Statistics .............................. 10
Proof of Arbitrage Yield ........................... 11

2021 Refunding of 2011A
Savings .................................. 12
Summary of Refunding Results ........................ 13
Bond Summary Statistics ........................... 14
Prior Schedule of Principal & Interest Requirements ................ 15
Unrefunded Schedule of Principal & Interest Requirements ............. 16
Summary of Bonds Refunded ......................... 17

2021 Refunding of 2011B
Savings .................................. 18
Summary of Refunding Results ........................ 19
Bond Summary Statistics ........................... 20
Prior Schedule of Principal & Interest Requirements ................ 21
Unrefunded Schedule of Principal & Interest Requirements ............. 22
Summary of Bonds Refunded ......................... 23



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 1

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

TOWNSHIP OF ADA
COUNTY OF KENT, STATE OF MICHIGAN

PROPOSED 2021 REFUNDING BONDS
ESTIMATED TAX EXEMPT RATES FROM FEBRUARY 8, 2021

CASH DEFEASANCE FOR THE 2011A

2021 Refunding 2021 Refunding
Sources: of 2011A of 2011B Total

Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 1,405,000.00 1,405,000.00
Premium 99,709.80 99,709.80

1,504,709.80 1,504,709.80

Other Sources of Funds:
Cash Defeasance 316,626.93 316,626.93
Estimated Funds On Hand Contribution 25,688.54 25,688.54

316,626.93 25,688.54 342,315.47

316,626.93 1,530,398.34 1,847,025.27

2021 Refunding 2021 Refunding
Uses: of 2011A of 2011B Total

Refunding Escrow Deposits:
Cash Deposit 0.93 0.28 1.21
SLGS Purchases 316,626.00 1,450,789.00 1,767,415.00

316,626.93 1,450,789.28 1,767,416.21

Cost of Issuance:
COI 62,521.87 62,521.87

Delivery Date Expenses:
Underwriter's Discount 14,050.00 14,050.00

Other Uses of Funds:
Additional Proceeds 3,037.19 3,037.19

316,626.93 1,530,398.34 1,847,025.27



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 2

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL & INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

TOWNSHIP OF ADA
COUNTY OF KENT, STATE OF MICHIGAN

PROPOSED 2021 REFUNDING BONDS
ESTIMATED TAX EXEMPT RATES FROM FEBRUARY 8, 2021

CASH DEFEASANCE FOR THE 2011A

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

11/01/2021 16,469.72 16,469.72
05/01/2022 130,000 2.000% 14,050.00 144,050.00 160,519.72
11/01/2022 12,750.00 12,750.00
05/01/2023 130,000 2.000% 12,750.00 142,750.00 155,500.00
11/01/2023 11,450.00 11,450.00
05/01/2024 135,000 2.000% 11,450.00 146,450.00 157,900.00
11/01/2024 10,100.00 10,100.00
05/01/2025 135,000 2.000% 10,100.00 145,100.00 155,200.00
11/01/2025 8,750.00 8,750.00
05/01/2026 140,000 2.000% 8,750.00 148,750.00 157,500.00
11/01/2026 7,350.00 7,350.00
05/01/2027 140,000 2.000% 7,350.00 147,350.00 154,700.00
11/01/2027 5,950.00 5,950.00
05/01/2028 145,000 2.000% 5,950.00 150,950.00 156,900.00
11/01/2028 4,500.00 4,500.00
05/01/2029 145,000 2.000% 4,500.00 149,500.00 154,000.00
11/01/2029 3,050.00 3,050.00
05/01/2030 150,000 2.000% 3,050.00 153,050.00 156,100.00
11/01/2030 1,550.00 1,550.00
05/01/2031 155,000 2.000% 1,550.00 156,550.00 158,100.00

1,405,000 161,419.72 1,566,419.72 1,566,419.72



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 3

SAVINGS

TOWNSHIP OF ADA
COUNTY OF KENT, STATE OF MICHIGAN

PROPOSED 2021 REFUNDING BONDS
ESTIMATED TAX EXEMPT RATES FROM FEBRUARY 8, 2021

CASH DEFEASANCE FOR THE 2011A

Present Value
Prior Prior Prior Refunding Annual to 03/31/2021

Date Debt Service Receipts Net Cash Flow Debt Service Savings Savings @  0.7296765%

03/31/2021 25,688.54 (25,688.54) (25,688.54) (25,688.54)
05/01/2021 37,461.25 37,461.25 37,461.25 11,772.71 37,437.76
11/01/2021 37,461.25 37,461.25 16,469.72 20,991.53 20,902.11
05/01/2022 192,461.25 192,461.25 144,050.00 48,411.25 69,402.78 48,029.80
11/01/2022 34,553.75 34,553.75 12,750.00 21,803.75 21,553.31
05/01/2023 194,553.75 194,553.75 142,750.00 51,803.75 73,607.50 51,022.59
11/01/2023 31,393.75 31,393.75 11,450.00 19,943.75 19,571.61
05/01/2024 196,393.75 196,393.75 146,450.00 49,943.75 69,887.50 48,833.65
11/01/2024 27,991.25 27,991.25 10,100.00 17,891.25 17,429.99
05/01/2025 202,991.25 202,991.25 145,100.00 57,891.25 75,782.50 56,193.73
11/01/2025 24,261.25 24,261.25 8,750.00 15,511.25 15,001.69
05/01/2026 209,261.25 209,261.25 148,750.00 60,511.25 76,022.50 58,310.65
11/01/2026 20,226.25 20,226.25 7,350.00 12,876.25 12,362.88
05/01/2027 215,226.25 215,226.25 147,350.00 67,876.25 80,752.50 64,933.14
11/01/2027 15,887.50 15,887.50 5,950.00 9,937.50 9,472.05
05/01/2028 215,887.50 215,887.50 150,950.00 64,937.50 74,875.00 61,670.99
11/01/2028 11,387.50 11,387.50 4,500.00 6,887.50 6,517.27
05/01/2029 171,387.50 171,387.50 149,500.00 21,887.50 28,775.00 20,635.66
11/01/2029 7,747.50 7,747.50 3,050.00 4,697.50 4,412.73
05/01/2030 172,747.50 172,747.50 153,050.00 19,697.50 24,395.00 18,436.15
11/01/2030 3,952.50 3,952.50 1,550.00 2,402.50 2,240.48
05/01/2031 173,952.50 173,952.50 156,550.00 17,402.50 19,805.00 16,169.91

2,197,186.25 25,688.54 2,171,497.71 1,566,419.72 605,077.99 605,077.99 585,449.58

Savings Summary

PV of savings from cash flow 585,449.58
Plus: Refunding funds on hand (313,589.74)

Net PV Savings 271,859.84



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 4

SUMMARY OF REFUNDING RESULTS

TOWNSHIP OF ADA
COUNTY OF KENT, STATE OF MICHIGAN

PROPOSED 2021 REFUNDING BONDS
ESTIMATED TAX EXEMPT RATES FROM FEBRUARY 8, 2021

CASH DEFEASANCE FOR THE 2011A

2021 Refunding 2021 Refunding
of 2011A of 2011B Total

Dated Date 03/31/2021 03/31/2021 03/31/2021
Delivery Date 03/31/2021 03/31/2021 03/31/2021
Arbitrage Yield 0.729677% 0.729677%
Escrow Yield 0.029600% 0.029595% 0.029595%
Value of Negative Arbitrage (8.07) 872.69 864.62

Bond Par Amount 1,405,000.00 1,405,000.00
True Interest Cost 0.901546% 0.901546%
Net Interest Cost 0.938670% 0.938670%
All-In TIC 1.694236% 1.694236%
Average Coupon 2.000000% 2.000000%
Average Life 5.744 5.744

Par amount of refunded bonds 310,000.00 1,420,000.00 1,730,000.00
Average coupon of refunded bonds 4.367563% 4.472393% 4.458225%
Average life of refunded bonds 4.264 5.956 5.653

PV of prior debt 362,612.25 1,753,235.67 2,115,847.92
Net PV Savings 45,985.32 225,874.52 271,859.84
Percentage savings of refunded bonds 14.833974% 15.906656% 15.714442%



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 5

BOND PRICING

TOWNSHIP OF ADA
COUNTY OF KENT, STATE OF MICHIGAN

PROPOSED 2021 REFUNDING BONDS
ESTIMATED TAX EXEMPT RATES FROM FEBRUARY 8, 2021

CASH DEFEASANCE FOR THE 2011A

Maturity
Bond Component Date Amount Rate Yield Price

Bond Component:
05/01/2022 130,000 2.000% 0.180% 101.968
05/01/2023 130,000 2.000% 0.230% 103.676
05/01/2024 135,000 2.000% 0.290% 105.245
05/01/2025 135,000 2.000% 0.350% 106.683
05/01/2026 140,000 2.000% 0.440% 107.833
05/01/2027 140,000 2.000% 0.560% 108.600
05/01/2028 145,000 2.000% 0.700% 108.968
05/01/2029 145,000 2.000% 0.840% 109.046
05/01/2030 150,000 2.000% 0.970% 108.934
05/01/2031 155,000 2.000% 1.070% 108.866

1,405,000

Dated Date 03/31/2021
Delivery Date 03/31/2021
First Coupon 11/01/2021

Par Amount 1,405,000.00
Premium 99,709.80

Production 1,504,709.80 107.096783%
Underwriter's Discount (14,050.00) (1.000000%)

Purchase Price 1,490,659.80 106.096783%
Accrued Interest

Net Proceeds 1,490,659.80



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 6

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

TOWNSHIP OF ADA
COUNTY OF KENT, STATE OF MICHIGAN

PROPOSED 2021 REFUNDING BONDS
ESTIMATED TAX EXEMPT RATES FROM FEBRUARY 8, 2021

CASH DEFEASANCE FOR THE 2011A

Dated Date 03/31/2021
Delivery Date 03/31/2021
Last Maturity 05/01/2031

Arbitrage Yield 0.729677%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 0.901546%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 0.938670%
All-In TIC 1.694236%
Average Coupon 2.000000%

Average Life (years) 5.744
Weighted Average Maturity (years) 5.802
Duration of Issue (years) 5.473

Par Amount 1,405,000.00
Bond Proceeds 1,504,709.80
Total Interest 161,419.72
Net Interest 75,759.92
Total Debt Service 1,566,419.72
Maximum Annual Debt Service 156,800.00
Average Annual Debt Service 155,304.63

Underwriter's Fees (per $1000)
  Average Takedown
  Other Fee 10.000000

Total Underwriter's Discount 10.000000

Bid Price 106.096783

Par Average Average
Bond Component Value Price Coupon Life

Bond Component 1,405,000.00 107.097 2.000% 5.744

1,405,000.00 5.744

All-In Arbitrage
TIC TIC Yield

Par Value 1,405,000.00 1,405,000.00 1,405,000.00
  + Accrued Interest
  + Premium (Discount) 99,709.80 99,709.80 99,709.80
  - Underwriter's Discount (14,050.00) (14,050.00)
  - Cost of Issuance Expense (62,521.87)
  - Other Amounts

Target Value 1,490,659.80 1,428,137.93 1,504,709.80

Target Date 03/31/2021 03/31/2021 03/31/2021
Yield 0.901546% 1.694236% 0.729677%



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 7

ESCROW REQUIREMENTS

TOWNSHIP OF ADA
COUNTY OF KENT, STATE OF MICHIGAN

PROPOSED 2021 REFUNDING BONDS
ESTIMATED TAX EXEMPT RATES FROM FEBRUARY 8, 2021

CASH DEFEASANCE FOR THE 2011A

Period Principal
Ending Interest Redeemed Total

05/01/2021 37,461.25 1,730,000.00 1,767,461.25

37,461.25 1,730,000.00 1,767,461.25



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 8

ESCROW COST

TOWNSHIP OF ADA
COUNTY OF KENT, STATE OF MICHIGAN

PROPOSED 2021 REFUNDING BONDS
ESTIMATED TAX EXEMPT RATES FROM FEBRUARY 8, 2021

CASH DEFEASANCE FOR THE 2011A

Type of Maturity Par Total
Security Date Amount Rate Cost

SLGS 05/01/2021 1,767,415 0.030% 1,767,415.00

1,767,415 1,767,415.00

Purchase Cost of Cash Total
Date Securities Deposit Escrow Cost

03/31/2021 1,767,415 1.21 1,767,416.21

1,767,415 1.21 1,767,416.21



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 9

ESCROW SUFFICIENCY

TOWNSHIP OF ADA
COUNTY OF KENT, STATE OF MICHIGAN

PROPOSED 2021 REFUNDING BONDS
ESTIMATED TAX EXEMPT RATES FROM FEBRUARY 8, 2021

CASH DEFEASANCE FOR THE 2011A

Escrow Net Escrow Excess Excess
Date Requirement Receipts Receipts Balance

03/31/2021 1.21 1.21 1.21
05/01/2021 1,767,461.25 1,767,460.04 (1.21)

1,767,461.25 1,767,461.25 0.00



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 10

ESCROW STATISTICS

TOWNSHIP OF ADA
COUNTY OF KENT, STATE OF MICHIGAN

PROPOSED 2021 REFUNDING BONDS
ESTIMATED TAX EXEMPT RATES FROM FEBRUARY 8, 2021

CASH DEFEASANCE FOR THE 2011A

Modified Yield to Yield to Perfect Value of
Total Duration Receipt Disbursement Escrow Negative Cost of

Escrow Escrow Cost (years) Date Date Cost Arbitrage Dead Time

2021 Refunding of 2011A, Global Proceeds Escrow:
316,626.93 0.086 0.029600% 0.029600% 316,635.00 (8.07)

2021 Refunding of 2011B, Global Proceeds Escrow:
1,450,789.28 0.086 0.029595% 0.029595% 1,449,916.59 872.69

1,767,416.21 1,766,551.59 864.62 0.00

Delivery date 03/31/2021
Arbitrage yield 0.729677%

Note:  Value of Negative Arbitrage for issues excluded from the arbitrage yield is based on the yield of the related issue.



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 11

PROOF OF ARBITRAGE YIELD

TOWNSHIP OF ADA
COUNTY OF KENT, STATE OF MICHIGAN

PROPOSED 2021 REFUNDING BONDS
ESTIMATED TAX EXEMPT RATES FROM FEBRUARY 8, 2021

CASH DEFEASANCE FOR THE 2011A

Present Value
to 03/31/2021

Date Debt Service Total @  0.7296765151%

11/01/2021 16,469.72 16,469.72 16,399.56
05/01/2022 144,050.00 144,050.00 142,914.96
11/01/2022 12,750.00 12,750.00 12,603.55
05/01/2023 142,750.00 142,750.00 140,597.43
11/01/2023 11,450.00 11,450.00 11,236.35
05/01/2024 146,450.00 146,450.00 143,194.87
11/01/2024 10,100.00 10,100.00 9,839.61
05/01/2025 145,100.00 145,100.00 140,845.29
11/01/2025 8,750.00 8,750.00 8,462.55
05/01/2026 148,750.00 148,750.00 143,340.43
11/01/2026 7,350.00 7,350.00 7,056.96
05/01/2027 147,350.00 147,350.00 140,960.91
11/01/2027 5,950.00 5,950.00 5,671.32
05/01/2028 150,950.00 150,950.00 143,356.86
11/01/2028 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,258.10
05/01/2029 149,500.00 149,500.00 140,949.45
11/01/2029 3,050.00 3,050.00 2,865.10
05/01/2030 153,050.00 153,050.00 143,249.25
11/01/2030 1,550.00 1,550.00 1,445.47
05/01/2031 156,550.00 156,550.00 145,461.78

1,566,419.72 1,566,419.72 1,504,709.80

Proceeds Summary

Delivery date 03/31/2021
Par Value 1,405,000.00
Premium (Discount) 99,709.80

Target for yield calculation 1,504,709.80



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 12

SAVINGS

2021 Refunding of 2011A

Prior Present Value
Debt Refunding Annual to 03/31/2021

Date Service Net Cash Flow Savings Savings @  0.7296765%

09/30/2021 6,635.00 6,635.00 6,630.84
03/31/2022 6,635.00 6,635.00 13,270.00 6,606.74
09/30/2022 46,635.00 46,635.00 46,267.54
03/31/2023 5,855.00 5,855.00 52,490.00 5,787.75
09/30/2023 45,855.00 45,855.00 45,163.54
03/31/2024 5,035.00 5,035.00 50,890.00 4,941.05
09/30/2024 45,035.00 45,035.00 44,034.01
03/31/2025 4,195.00 4,195.00 49,230.00 4,086.85
09/30/2025 49,195.00 49,195.00 47,752.47
03/31/2026 3,227.50 3,227.50 52,422.50 3,121.47
09/30/2026 48,227.50 48,227.50 46,473.62
03/31/2027 2,237.50 2,237.50 50,465.00 2,148.29
09/30/2027 52,237.50 52,237.50 49,972.48
03/31/2028 1,125.00 1,125.00 53,362.50 1,072.31
09/30/2028 51,125.00 51,125.00 48,553.29
03/31/2029 51,125.00

373,255.00 0.00 373,255.00 373,255.00 362,612.25

Savings Summary

PV of savings from cash flow 362,612.25
Plus: Refunding funds on hand (316,626.93)

Net PV Savings 45,985.32



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 13

SUMMARY OF REFUNDING RESULTS

2021 Refunding of 2011A

Dated Date 03/31/2021
Delivery Date 03/31/2021
Arbitrage yield
Escrow yield 0.029600%
Value of Negative Arbitrage (8.07)

Bond Par Amount

Par amount of refunded bonds 310,000.00
Average coupon of refunded bonds 4.367563%
Average life of refunded bonds 4.264

PV of prior debt to 03/31/2021 @ 0.729677% 362,612.25
Net PV Savings 45,985.32
Percentage savings of refunded bonds 14.833974%



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 14

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

2021 Refunding of 2011A

Dated Date 03/31/2021
Delivery Date 03/31/2021
Last Maturity

Arbitrage Yield
True Interest Cost (TIC)
Net Interest Cost (NIC)
All-In TIC
Average Coupon

Average Life (years)
Weighted Average Maturity (years)
Duration of Issue (years)

Par Amount
Bond Proceeds
Total Interest
Net Interest
Total Debt Service
Maximum Annual Debt Service
Average Annual Debt Service

Underwriter's Fees (per $1000)
  Average Takedown
  Other Fee

Total Underwriter's Discount

Bid Price

All-In Arbitrage
TIC TIC Yield

Par Value
  + Accrued Interest
  + Premium (Discount)
  - Underwriter's Discount
  - Cost of Issuance Expense
  - Other Amounts

Target Value

Target Date 03/31/2021 03/31/2021 03/31/2021
Yield



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 15

PRIOR SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL & INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

2021 Refunding of 2011A

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

09/30/2021 6,635.00 6,635.00
03/31/2022 6,635.00 6,635.00 13,270.00
09/30/2022 40,000 3.900% 6,635.00 46,635.00
03/31/2023 5,855.00 5,855.00 52,490.00
09/30/2023 40,000 4.100% 5,855.00 45,855.00
03/31/2024 5,035.00 5,035.00 50,890.00
09/30/2024 40,000 4.200% 5,035.00 45,035.00
03/31/2025 4,195.00 4,195.00 49,230.00
09/30/2025 45,000 4.300% 4,195.00 49,195.00
03/31/2026 3,227.50 3,227.50 52,422.50
09/30/2026 45,000 4.400% 3,227.50 48,227.50
03/31/2027 2,237.50 2,237.50 50,465.00
09/30/2027 50,000 4.450% 2,237.50 52,237.50
03/31/2028 1,125.00 1,125.00 53,362.50
09/30/2028 50,000 4.500% 1,125.00 51,125.00
03/31/2029 51,125.00

310,000 63,255.00 373,255.00 373,255.00



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 16

UNREFUNDED SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL & INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

2021 Refunding of 2011A

Annual
Period Debt Debt
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Service Service

05/01/2021 35,000 3.800% 665 35,665
03/31/2022 35,665

35,000 665 35,665 35,665



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 17

SUMMARY OF BONDS REFUNDED

2021 Refunding of 2011A

PRI - Prior Debt

Maturity Interest Par Call Call
Bond Date Rate Amount Date Price

2011 Series A, 2011A, BOND:
05/01/2022 3.900% 40,000.00 05/01/2021 100.000
05/01/2023 4.100% 40,000.00 05/01/2021 100.000
05/01/2024 4.200% 40,000.00 05/01/2021 100.000
05/01/2025 4.300% 45,000.00 05/01/2021 100.000
05/01/2026 4.400% 45,000.00 05/01/2021 100.000
05/01/2027 4.450% 50,000.00 05/01/2021 100.000
05/01/2028 4.500% 50,000.00 05/01/2021 100.000

310,000.00



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 18

SAVINGS

2021 Refunding of 2011B

Present Value
Prior Prior Prior Refunding Annual to 03/31/2021

Date Debt Service Receipts Net Cash Flow Debt Service Savings Savings @  0.7296765%

05/01/2021 30,826.25 25,688.54 5,137.71 5,137.71 5,137.71 5,118.38
11/01/2021 30,826.25 30,826.25 16,469.72 14,356.53 14,295.37
05/01/2022 145,826.25 145,826.25 144,050.00 1,776.25 16,132.78 1,762.25
11/01/2022 28,698.75 28,698.75 12,750.00 15,948.75 15,765.56
05/01/2023 148,698.75 148,698.75 142,750.00 5,948.75 21,897.50 5,859.05
11/01/2023 26,358.75 26,358.75 11,450.00 14,908.75 14,630.56
05/01/2024 151,358.75 151,358.75 146,450.00 4,908.75 19,817.50 4,799.64
11/01/2024 23,796.25 23,796.25 10,100.00 13,696.25 13,343.14
05/01/2025 153,796.25 153,796.25 145,100.00 8,696.25 22,392.50 8,441.25
11/01/2025 21,033.75 21,033.75 8,750.00 12,283.75 11,880.21
05/01/2026 161,033.75 161,033.75 148,750.00 12,283.75 24,567.50 11,837.03
11/01/2026 17,988.75 17,988.75 7,350.00 10,638.75 10,214.59
05/01/2027 162,988.75 162,988.75 147,350.00 15,638.75 26,277.50 14,960.65
11/01/2027 14,762.50 14,762.50 5,950.00 8,812.50 8,399.74
05/01/2028 164,762.50 164,762.50 150,950.00 13,812.50 22,625.00 13,117.70
11/01/2028 11,387.50 11,387.50 4,500.00 6,887.50 6,517.27
05/01/2029 171,387.50 171,387.50 149,500.00 21,887.50 28,775.00 20,635.66
11/01/2029 7,747.50 7,747.50 3,050.00 4,697.50 4,412.73
05/01/2030 172,747.50 172,747.50 153,050.00 19,697.50 24,395.00 18,436.15
11/01/2030 3,952.50 3,952.50 1,550.00 2,402.50 2,240.48
05/01/2031 173,952.50 173,952.50 156,550.00 17,402.50 19,805.00 16,169.91

1,823,931.25 25,688.54 1,798,242.71 1,566,419.72 231,822.99 231,822.99 222,837.33

Savings Summary

PV of savings from cash flow 222,837.33
Plus: Refunding funds on hand 3,037.19

Net PV Savings 225,874.52



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 19

SUMMARY OF REFUNDING RESULTS

2021 Refunding of 2011B

Dated Date 03/31/2021
Delivery Date 03/31/2021
Arbitrage yield 0.729677%
Escrow yield 0.029595%
Value of Negative Arbitrage 872.69

Bond Par Amount 1,405,000.00
True Interest Cost 0.901546%
Net Interest Cost 0.938670%
All-In TIC 1.694236%
Average Coupon 2.000000%
Average Life 5.744

Par amount of refunded bonds 1,420,000.00
Average coupon of refunded bonds 4.472393%
Average life of refunded bonds 5.956

PV of prior debt to 03/31/2021 @ 0.729677% 1,753,235.67
Net PV Savings 225,874.52
Percentage savings of refunded bonds 15.906656%



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 20

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

2021 Refunding of 2011B

Dated Date 03/31/2021
Delivery Date 03/31/2021
Last Maturity 05/01/2031

Arbitrage Yield 0.729677%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 0.901546%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 0.938670%
All-In TIC 1.694236%
Average Coupon 2.000000%

Average Life (years) 5.744
Weighted Average Maturity (years) 5.802
Duration of Issue (years) 5.473

Par Amount 1,405,000.00
Bond Proceeds 1,504,709.80
Total Interest 161,419.72
Net Interest 75,759.92
Total Debt Service 1,566,419.72
Maximum Annual Debt Service 160,519.72
Average Annual Debt Service 155,304.63

Underwriter's Fees (per $1000)
  Average Takedown
  Other Fee 10.000000

Total Underwriter's Discount 10.000000

Bid Price 106.096783

Par Average Average
Bond Component Value Price Coupon Life

Bond Component 1,405,000.00 107.097 2.000% 5.744

1,405,000.00 5.744

All-In Arbitrage
TIC TIC Yield

Par Value 1,405,000.00 1,405,000.00 1,405,000.00
+ Accrued Interest
+ Premium (Discount) 99,709.80 99,709.80 99,709.80
- Underwriter's Discount (14,050.00) (14,050.00)
- Cost of Issuance Expense (62,521.87)
- Other Amounts

Target Value 1,490,659.80 1,428,137.93 1,504,709.80

Target Date 03/31/2021 03/31/2021 03/31/2021
Yield 0.901546% 1.694236% 0.729677%



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 21

PRIOR SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL & INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

2021 Refunding of 2011B

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

05/01/2021 30,826.25 30,826.25 30,826.25
11/01/2021 30,826.25 30,826.25
05/01/2022 115,000 3.700% 30,826.25 145,826.25 176,652.50
11/01/2022 28,698.75 28,698.75
05/01/2023 120,000 3.900% 28,698.75 148,698.75 177,397.50
11/01/2023 26,358.75 26,358.75
05/01/2024 125,000 4.100% 26,358.75 151,358.75 177,717.50
11/01/2024 23,796.25 23,796.25
05/01/2025 130,000 4.250% 23,796.25 153,796.25 177,592.50
11/01/2025 21,033.75 21,033.75
05/01/2026 140,000 4.350% 21,033.75 161,033.75 182,067.50
11/01/2026 17,988.75 17,988.75
05/01/2027 145,000 4.450% 17,988.75 162,988.75 180,977.50
11/01/2027 14,762.50 14,762.50
05/01/2028 150,000 4.500% 14,762.50 164,762.50 179,525.00
11/01/2028 11,387.50 11,387.50
05/01/2029 160,000 4.550% 11,387.50 171,387.50 182,775.00
11/01/2029 7,747.50 7,747.50
05/01/2030 165,000 4.600% 7,747.50 172,747.50 180,495.00
11/01/2030 3,952.50 3,952.50
05/01/2031 170,000 4.650% 3,952.50 173,952.50 177,905.00

1,420,000 403,931.25 1,823,931.25 1,823,931.25



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 22

UNREFUNDED SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL & INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

2021 Refunding of 2011B

Annual
Period Debt Debt
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Service Service

05/01/2021 110,000 3.500% 1,925 111,925 111,925

110,000 1,925 111,925 111,925



Feb 17, 2021   2:11 pm  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC    Page 23

SUMMARY OF BONDS REFUNDED

2021 Refunding of 2011B

PRI - Prior Debt

Maturity Interest Par Call Call
Bond Date Rate Amount Date Price

2011 Series B, 2011B, BOND:
05/01/2022 3.700% 115,000.00 05/01/2021 100.000
05/01/2023 3.900% 120,000.00 05/01/2021 100.000
05/01/2024 4.100% 125,000.00 05/01/2021 100.000
05/01/2025 4.250% 130,000.00 05/01/2021 100.000
05/01/2026 4.350% 140,000.00 05/01/2021 100.000
05/01/2027 4.450% 145,000.00 05/01/2021 100.000
05/01/2028 4.500% 150,000.00 05/01/2021 100.000
05/01/2029 4.550% 160,000.00 05/01/2021 100.000
05/01/2030 4.600% 165,000.00 05/01/2021 100.000
05/01/2031 4.650% 170,000.00 05/01/2021 100.000

1,420,000.00



02879041 3  

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. R-022221-2 

TOWNSHIP OF ADA 

COUNTY OF KENT, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE ISSUANCE OF 
GENERAL OBLIGATION LIMITED TAX REFUNDING BONDS,  

SERIES 2021 

Minutes of a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Township of Ada held at the 

Township Hall in Ada, Michigan, on the 22nd day of February 2021 at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 

PRESENT: Members:   

    

ABSENT: Members:   

The following resolution was offered by Member ___________ and supported by Member 

__________: 

WHEREAS, the Township Board of the Township of Ada (the “Township”) previously 

issued its (1) Capital Improvement Bonds, General Obligation Limited Tax, Series 2011A in the 

aggregate principal sum of Six Hundred Five Thousand Dollars ($605,000) in accordance with a 

bond authorizing resolution adopted by the Township Board on May 23, 2011 (the “Series 2011A 

Bond Resolution”) and Act 34 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 2001, as amended (“Act 34”) to 

pay for certain capital improvements within the Township; and (2) Capital Improvement Bonds, 



02879041 3  2 

General Obligation Limited Tax, Series 2011B in the aggregate principal sum of Two Million 

Three Hundred Twenty-five Thousand Dollars ($2,325,000) in accordance with a bond authorizing 

resolution adopted by the Township Board on May 23, 2011 (the “Series 2011B Bond Resolution”) 

and Act 34 to pay for certain other capital improvements within the Township; and 

WHEREAS, the Series 2011A Bonds are currently outstanding in the aggregate principal 

amount of $345,000, mature annually on May 1 in the years 2021 through 2028, inclusive and bear 

interest at rates ranging from 3.800% to 4.50%; and 

WHEREAS, the Series 2011B Bonds are currently outstanding in the aggregate principal 

amount of $1,530,000, mature annually on May 1 in the years 2021 through 2031, inclusive and 

bear interest at rates ranging from 3.500% to 4.650%; and 

WHEREAS, the Township is obligated pursuant to the Series 2011A Bond Resolution and 

the Series 2011B Bond Resolution to make payments at the times and in the amounts sufficient to 

pay the principal of and interest on the Series 2011A Bonds and the Series 2011B Bonds 

(collectively, the “Prior Bonds”) when due and to pay such fees and other expenses as may be 

incurred on account of said bonds, and the Township has pledged its full faith and credit for 

repayment of the Prior Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Township is authorized to refund the Prior Bonds, in whole or in part, 

prior to maturity, subject to the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended 

(the “Code”), and Act 34; and 

WHEREAS, the Township intends to use the proceeds of the refunding bonds authorized 

by this resolution and available funds on hand to enable the Township to call for optional 

redemption in full all of the Bonds to be Refunded (as defined below) on the next available optional 

redemption date (the “Redemption Date”) for the Prior Bonds; and 



02879041 3  3 

WHEREAS, the Township Board is adopting this resolution to authorize the refunding of 

the Prior Bonds, in whole or in part. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Refunding of Bonds to be Refunded; Period of Usefulness. For the purpose of 

reducing the net present value of debt service payments on the Bonds to be Refunded, it is 

necessary for the Township to issue bonds pursuant to the provisions of this resolution and Act 34, 

and to apply the proceeds thereof, together with available funds on hand, to pay bond issuance 

expenses and enable the Township to redeem in full all of the Bonds to be Refunded on the 

Redemption Date.  Based in part upon the determination of the Township set forth in Paragraph 1 

of both the Series 2011A Bond Resolution and the Series 2011B Bond Resolution that the 

estimated period of usefulness of the capital improvements was then not less than twenty (20) 

years, the Township hereby determines that, as of the date of this resolution, the remaining period 

of usefulness of the capital improvements funded by the Prior Bonds is estimated to be not less 

than ten (10) years. 

2. Issuance of Bonds; Plan of Refunding.  The Township shall borrow a sum not to 

exceed One Million Nine Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,900,000), and issue its bonds designated 

General Obligation Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 (the “Bonds”) therefore, pursuant 

to Act 34, for the purpose of defraying all or a portion of the cost of refunding the Bonds to be 

Refunded, including payment of the costs of issuance of the Bonds.  The remaining cost of 

refunding the Bonds to be Refunded, if any, shall be paid from any funds then on deposit in the 

Debt Service Fund established under the Series 2011A Bond Resolution and the Series 2011B 

Bond Resolution and pledged for payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the 



02879041 3 4 

Bonds to be Refunded and any other funds on hand provided by the Township and legally available 

for that purpose. 

3. Bond Specifications.  The Bonds shall be dated as of the date of delivery to the

initial purchaser thereof, shall bear interest at a rate or rates not to exceed 4% per annum, expressed 

in multiples of 1/8 or 1/100 of 1% or both, to be determined upon the sale thereof, payable on 

November 1, 2021, and semi-annually thereafter on each May 1 and November 1 until payment of 

the principal hereof has been made or duly provided for.  The Bonds shall be issued in substantially 

the form and tenor as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto, shall be in denominations of $5,000 

or any multiple thereof up to the amount of a single maturity, shall be issued in one or more series, 

shall be numbered from 1 upwards in order of authentication of each series, shall be fully registered 

and shall be due and payable on May 1 each year and in the amounts as follows: 

Maturity Principal Amount Maturity Principal Amount 
2022 $ 170,000 2027 $ 190,000 
2023 170,000 2028 190,000 
2024 175,000 2029 145,000 
2025 180,000 2030 145,000 
2026 185,000 2031 145,000 

The Bonds shall not be sold for less than 99% of par value or more than 110% of par value. 

The Bonds may be issued as serial bonds or term bonds, or both, in the manner described 

in the section entitled Term Bond Option in the Official Notice of Sale attached hereto as Exhibit 

B. In the event any portion of the Bonds are to be issued as term bonds, such bonds shall be subject

to such additional terms as shall be consistent with the Official Notice of Sale, designated by the 

successful bidder for the purchase of the Bonds and approved by the Township Supervisor and 

Township Treasurer in conjunction with the sale of the Bonds as set forth in Paragraphs 16 and 17 

of this Resolution. 



02879041 3  5 

Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other provision of this resolution, the Township 

Supervisor and the Township Treasurer, acting on the written recommendation of PFM Financial 

Advisors, LLC, as municipal advisor to the Township (the “Registered Municipal Advisor”) with 

respect to the Bonds, are hereby authorized to adjust the final bond terms set forth herein to the 

extent necessary or convenient to complete the transactions authorized herein, and in pursuance of 

the foregoing are authorized to exercise the authority and make the determinations authorized 

pursuant to Section 315(1)(d) of Act 34 including, but not limited to, determinations regarding  

which of the Prior Bonds shall be refunded with proceeds of the Bonds (the “Bonds to be 

Refunded”), the Redemption Date, maximum interest rates, discounts, maturities, principal 

amounts, denominations, dated dates, dates of issuance, principal and interest payment dates, 

redemption rights, designation of series, and other matters, it being understood that any such 

adjustment in the final bond terms made by the Township Supervisor and the Township Treasurer 

shall be made in anticipation of and preparation for the sale of the Bonds by a competitive sale as 

more particularly described in Paragraph 15 of this Resolution, that the rates of interest payable on 

the Bonds shall be determined upon the competitive sale of the Bonds, and that any provisions 

relating to the term bonds and mandatory redemption shall be established in accordance with the 

preceding paragraph.  The determinations by the Township Supervisor and the Township Treasurer 

in accordance with this Resolution shall be made in writing in substantially the form attached to 

this Resolution as Exhibit C. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the authority of the Township Supervisor and the Township 

Treasurer is subject to the following limitations: 

(a) The principal amount of the Bonds shall not exceed $1,900,000; 



02879041 3 6 

(b) A net present value savings of at least 2% of the Prior Bonds to be refunded shall

exist upon the sale of the Refunding Bonds;

(c) The true interest cost of the Bonds shall not exceed 3.5%;

(d) The purchase price of the Bonds shall not be less than 99% of par value; and

(e) The final maturity of the Bonds shall not be later than the final maturity date of the

Bonds to be Refunded.

The Bonds may be issued in book-entry only form as one bond per maturity, fully registered 

in the name of Cede & Co., as bondholder and nominee for The Depository Trust Company 

(“DTC”), New York, New York.  If this option is selected, DTC will act as securities depository 

for the Bonds, purchase of the Bonds will be made in book-entry only form in authorized 

denominations, and purchasers will not receive certificates representing their interest in Bonds 

purchased.  If the Bonds are issued in book-entry only form, provisions in this Resolution to the 

contrary shall be of no force or effect unless and until the book-entry only system is suspended. 

The Township Supervisor and the Township Treasurer are authorized to determine whether the 

Bonds shall be issued in book-entry only form, to make such changes in the form of the Bonds as 

shall be necessary or convenient to enable the Bonds to be issued in book-entry only form, and to 

execute such documents as may be required to enable the Bonds to be so issued. 

In the alternative, a single bond may be used incorporating all maturities. 

4. Payment of Principal and Interest.  The Bonds and the interest thereon shall be

paid in lawful money of the United States of America by the Bond Registrar, as defined in 

Paragraph 7, below.  Interest shall be paid when due by check or draft drawn on the Bond Registrar 

and mailed by first class mail or other acceptable method to the registered owners of record as of 

the 15th day prior to the date payments are due and payable, or such other record dates as the 



02879041 3  7 

Township Supervisor and the Township Treasurer shall determine.  Principal shall be payable at 

the principal office of the Bond Registrar upon presentation and surrender of the corresponding 

bond certificate. 

5. Redemption of Bonds Prior to Maturity.  Principal of the Bonds designated by 

the original purchaser of the Bonds as a term maturity shall be subject to mandatory redemption, 

in part, by lot, at par and accrued interest on the redemption dates and in the principal amounts 

corresponding to the scheduled maturities.  When term bonds are purchased by the Township and 

delivered to the Bond Registrar for cancellation or are redeemed in a manner other than by 

mandatory redemption, the principal amount of the term bonds affected shall be reduced by the 

principal amount of the Bonds so redeemed or purchased in the order determined by the Township. 

Notwithstanding the mandatory redemption of term bonds, if any, the Bonds maturing in 

the years 2022 through 2031, inclusive, shall not be subject to optional redemption prior to 

maturity. 

6. Registration of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be registered both as to principal and 

interest in substantially the form and tenor as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto.  Any individual 

Bond shall be transferable on the bond register maintained with respect to the Bonds upon the 

surrender of the individual Bond together with an assignment executed by the registered owner or 

his or her duly authorized attorney in form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar.  Upon receipt of a 

properly assigned Bond, the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds 

in equal aggregate principal amount and like interest rate and maturity to the designated transferee 

or transferees.  Any individual Bond may likewise be exchanged for one or more other Bonds with 

the same interest rate and maturity in authorized denominations aggregating the same principal 

amount as the Bond being exchanged.  Such exchange shall be affected by surrender of the 



02879041 3 8 

individual Bond to be exchanged to the Bond Registrar with written instructions signed by the 

registered owner of the individual Bond or his or her attorney in form satisfactory to the Bond 

Registrar.  Upon receipt of an individual Bond with proper written instructions, the Bond Registrar 

shall authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds to the registered owner of the Bond or his or 

her properly designated transferee or transferees or attorney.  A transfer, exchange and registration 

of Bonds shall be without expense or service charge to the registered holder except for any tax or 

other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such transfer, exchange, or 

registration.  The Bond Registrar shall not be required to transfer or exchange Bonds or parts of 

Bonds which have been selected for redemption. 

7. Duties of Bond Registrar.  A financial institution qualified to act as paying agent

and registrar in the State of Michigan shall act on behalf of the Township as paying agent, registrar, 

and transfer agent (the “Bond Registrar”) with respect to the Bonds.  The Bond Registrar shall, 

upon receipt of sufficient funds from the Township, make timely payments of principal and interest 

on the Bonds, authenticate the Bonds upon their initial issuance and subsequent transfer to 

successive holders, act as registrar of the Bonds including the preparation and maintenance of a 

current register of registered owners of the Bonds, coordinate the transfer of individual Bonds 

between successive holders, including printing and transferring new certificates, and all other 

duties set forth in this Resolution or otherwise normally performed by paying, registration and 

transfer agents.  All reasonable fees and expenses of the Bond Registrar shall be paid by the 

Township.  The Township reserves the right to designate through the Township Treasurer an 

alternate financial institution to act as Bond Registrar for the Bonds and in such event the Township 

shall mail notice to all registered owners of the Bonds not less than 60 days prior to the effective 

date of said change in Bond Registrar. 



02879041 3  9 

8. Replacement of Bonds.  Upon receipt by the Bond Registrar of proof of ownership 

of an unmatured Bond, of satisfactory evidence that the Bond has been lost, apparently destroyed 

or wrongfully taken and of security or indemnity which complies with applicable law and is 

satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, the Bond Registrar may deliver a new executed Bond to replace 

the Bond lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken in compliance with applicable law.  In the 

event an outstanding matured Bond is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the Bond 

Registrar may pay the Bond without presentation upon the receipt of the same documentation 

required for the delivery of a replacement Bond.  The Bond Registrar for each new Bond delivered 

or paid without presentation as provided above, shall require the payment by the bondholder of 

expenses, including counsel fees, which may be incurred by the Bond Registrar and the Township 

in connection therewith.  Any Bond delivered pursuant to the provisions of this Paragraph 8 in lieu 

of any Bond lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken shall be of the same form and tenor 

and be secured in the same manner as the Bond in substitution for which such Bond was delivered. 

9. Security for Repayment of Bonds.  The Bonds and the interest thereon shall be 

the general obligation of the Township secured by the Township's full faith and credit, which shall 

include the Township’s limited tax obligation, within applicable constitutional and statutory limits, 

and its general funds.  The Township shall not have the authority to levy additional taxes to pay 

principal of and interest on the Bonds over presently existing Township millage limits without a 

vote of Township electors. 

10. Debt Service Fund.  There shall be established and maintained on the books of the 

Township a fund to be designated “2021 REFUNDING BONDS DEBT SERVICE FUND” (the 

“Debt Service Fund”).  Into said fund there shall be placed (i) the accrued interest, if any, received 

at the time of delivery of the Bonds, and (ii) such funds to be used by the Township to pay principal 



02879041 3 10 

of, and interest on, the Bonds.  As part of the Debt Service Fund, there shall be established and 

maintained such subaccounts as are deemed necessary and appropriate for the proper 

administration of the Debt Service Fund and compliance with the requirements of Section 148 of 

the Code, and the Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder.  The principal of, premium, if 

any, and interest on the Bonds when due shall be paid directly out of the Debt Service Fund or its 

subaccounts.  After payment in full of the Bonds and the interest thereon, or after provision has 

been made for the payment in full of the Bonds and the interest thereon in accordance with 

Paragraph 23, the surplus remaining in the Debt Service Fund shall be used for such purposes as 

required or permitted by law. 

11. Refunding Fund.  There shall be established and maintained on the books of the

Township a separate account designated “2021 REFUNDING BONDS REFUNDING FUND” 

(the “Refunding Fund”).  After deducting a sum equal to the amount of any accrued interest from 

the date of the Bonds to the date of delivery thereof, which sum shall be deposited in the Debt 

Service Fund in accordance with Paragraph 10 above, the balance of the proceeds of the Bonds 

shall be deposited into the Refunding Fund as follows:   

a. An amount equal to the cost of issuance of the Bonds shall be deposited into

a subaccount of the Refunding Fund hereby designated as the “COST OF ISSUANCE 

ACCOUNT,” to be used solely to pay costs of issuance of the Bonds;  

b. An amount which, when taken together with any funds then on deposit in

the Debt Service Fund established under the Series 2011A Bond Resolution and pledged for 

payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to be Refunded which are 

Series 2011A Bonds and any other funds provided by the Township, shall be sufficient, after taking 

into account anticipated investment earnings thereon, to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and 



02879041 3  11 

interest on the Bonds to be Refunded which are Series 2011A Bonds on, and with respect to 

interest, prior to, the Redemption Date for the Bonds to be Refunded which are Series 2011A 

Bonds shall be deposited into a subaccount of the Refunding Fund hereby designated as the 

“REFUNDING ACCOUNT – SERIES 2011A BONDS,” to be invested in the manner provided 

by law and used to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to be Refunded 

which are Series 2011A Bonds on, and with respect to interest, prior to, the Redemption Date for 

the Bonds to be Refunded which are Series 2011A Bonds.   

c. An amount which, when taken together with any funds then on deposit in 

the Debt Service Fund established under the Series 2011B Bond Resolution and pledged for 

payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to be Refunded which are 

Series 2011B Bonds and any other funds provided by the Township, shall be sufficient, after taking 

into account anticipated investment earnings thereon, to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and 

interest on the Bonds to be Refunded which are Series 2011B Bonds on, and with respect to 

interest, prior to, the Redemption Date for the Bonds to be Refunded which are Series 2011B 

Bonds shall be deposited into a subaccount of the Refunding Fund hereby designated as the 

“REFUNDING ACCOUNT – SERIES 2011B BONDS,” to be invested in the manner provided 

by law and used to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to be Refunded 

which are Series 2011B Bonds on, and with respect to interest, prior to, the Redemption Date for 

the Bonds to be Refunded which are Series 2011B Bonds. 

The monies on deposit in the Refunding Fund, including the subaccounts thereof, shall be 

held in a special trust account and subaccounts of the same names maintained at a qualified bank 

or trust company designated by the Township Supervisor and the Township Treasurer (the 

“Escrow Trustee”), invested in the manner required by law and shall be used solely for the 



02879041 3  12 

purposes specified above for each such subaccount.  Any unexpended balance, including interest 

earnings, shall be used for such purposes as required by law, including without limitation, transfer 

to the Debt Service Fund.  The Township Treasurer is hereby authorized to execute and deliver on 

behalf of the Township, if necessary, an Escrow Deposit Agreement with the Escrow Trustee for 

the purpose of executing the provisions of this Paragraph 11.  The Escrow Deposit Agreement 

shall be substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D (the “Escrow Deposit Agreement”) 

if determined necessary and with such additions and deletions as shall be determined by the 

Township Treasurer and Bond Counsel (as defined below) to be in the best interest of the 

Township.  After the disposition of such funds pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph, the 

Refunding Fund shall be closed.   

12. Duties of Township Treasurer.  The Township Treasurer shall keep full and 

complete records of all deposits to and withdrawals from the Debt Service Fund and the Refunding 

Fund and of all investments of monies in such accounts and other transactions relating thereto.  

The Township Treasurer is authorized to invest the monies in said accounts in any one or more 

lawful investments authorized by law for counties and consistent with the Township investment 

policy, subject, with respect to the Refunding Fund, to the terms and conditions of the Escrow 

Deposit Agreement. 

13. Revised Municipal Finance Act. The Township Supervisor is hereby authorized 

and directed to file a municipal finance qualifying statement with the Michigan Department of 

Treasury with a goal of achieving qualified status for the Township under section 303(3) of Act 34, 

and, in the event the Township is determined to have qualified status, the Township shall comply 

with all applicable requirements of Act 34, including the filing of a security report and the payment 

of the filing fee required by section 319 of Act 34.  In the alternative, a prior approval application 



02879041 3  13 

may be prepared and filed for the Bonds and the related filing fee shall be paid in accordance with 

Act 34 and the Township Treasurer or the Township Supervisor is authorized and directed to 

execute said application on behalf of the Township. 

14. Tax Covenant; Qualified Tax Exempt Obligations.  The Township covenants to 

comply with all requirements of the Code necessary to assure that the interest on the Bonds will 

be and will remain excludable from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation (as 

opposed to alternative minimum or other indirect taxation).  The Township hereby designates the 

Bonds as “qualified tax exempt obligations” for purposes of deduction of interest expense by 

financial institutions under the provisions of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code, it being reasonably 

anticipated that the aggregate amount of tax exempt obligations which will be issued during 2021 

by the Township and all subordinate entities to the Township shall not exceed $10,000,000.  The 

Township Treasurer, the Township Supervisor and other appropriate Township officials, acting 

for and on behalf of the Township, are authorized and directed to do all things necessary to assure 

that the interest on the Bonds will be and will remain excludable from gross income for federal 

income tax purposes and that the Bonds will be and remain binding and valid obligations of the 

Township. 

15. Sale of Bonds.  Bonds shall be sold at a competitive sale in accordance with the 

Official Notice of Sale referenced in Paragraph 17 below and applicable state law.  Sealed bids for 

the purchase of the Bonds shall be received up to such time as shall later be determined by the 

Township Supervisor and Township Treasurer. 

16. Award of Sale of Bonds.  In accordance with Section 315(1)(d) of Act 34 and 

Paragraph 15 of this Resolution, for a competitive sale of the Bonds, the Township Supervisor and 

Township Treasurer are hereby authorized and directed to award the sale of the Bonds to the bidder 



02879041 3  14 

whose bid produces the lowest true interest cost to the Township to be determined as set forth in 

the Official Notice of Sale attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

17. Official Notice of Sale.  An Official Notice of Sale, substantially in the form set 

forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto, with such additions or deletions as shall be approved by the 

Township Supervisor and Treasurer, shall be published once in accordance with the law in The 

Bond Buyer, which is a publication printed in the English language and circulated in the State of 

Michigan, which carries as a part of its regular service notices of the sale of municipal bonds and 

notes, at least seven (7) days before the date fixed for sale of the Bonds. 

18. Official Statement.  The Township Supervisor, Township Treasurer and other 

County officials are authorized to cause the preparation of a near final official statement and a final 

official statement for the Bonds for the purpose of enabling compliance with SEC Rule 15c2-12 

(the “Rule”), and the Township Supervisor and the Township Treasurer are authorized to execute 

and deliver the final official statement on behalf of the Township, and to do all other things 

necessary to enable compliance with the Rule.  The use of the official statement by the Underwriter 

in the public offering and sale of the Bonds is hereby authorized.  After the award of the Bonds, 

the Township will provide an electronic copy of the final official statement at its expense (and 

such additional copies of the final official statement as reasonably requested by, and at the expense 

of, the successful bidder or bidders to enable the successful bidder or bidders to comply with the 

Rule and the rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board). 

19. Continuing Disclosure.  The Township hereby covenants and agrees, for the 

benefit of the holders of the Bonds, to cause the execution of a Continuing Disclosure Agreement 

in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit E, as the written undertaking of the Township 

(the “Undertaking”) required by the Rule and to provide continuing disclosure of certain financial 



02879041 3 15 

information and operating data and timely notices of the occurrence of certain events in accordance 

with the Rule.  This Undertaking shall be enforceable by the holders of the Bonds in the manner 

set forth therein and any failure by the Township to comply with the provisions of the Undertaking 

shall not be an event of default with respect to the Bonds.  The Undertaking is hereby approved in 

the form attached and the Township Supervisor and the Township Treasurer are hereby authorized 

and directed to execute the Undertaking and deliver the same for and on behalf of the Township 

in conjunction with the delivery of the Bonds in the form approved by this Resolution, together 

with such additions and deletions as said officers deem to be appropriate and in the best interest of 

the Township (in such number of counterparts as may be desirable). 

20. Registered Municipal Advisor.  PFM Financial Advisors, LLC of Ann Arbor,

Michigan, is hereby retained by the Township as the Registered Municipal Advisor in connection 

with the issuance and sale of the Bonds. 

21. Bond Counsel.  Mika Meyers PLC, attorneys of Grand Rapids, Michigan, is hereby

retained by the Township as bond counsel (“Bond Counsel”) in connection with the issuance and 

sale of the Bonds. 

22. Execution and Delivery of Bonds.  The Township Supervisor and Township Clerk

are authorized and directed to execute the Bonds in substantially the form approved with such 

necessary variations, omissions, corrections and insertions as they deem appropriate and are 

required for and on behalf of the Township, manually or by facsimile signature for and on behalf 

of the Township, and, if the Township has a seal, to place thereon the Township Seal or a facsimile 

thereof; provided that the Bonds shall be executed by the facsimile signatures of the said 

Supervisor and Township Clerk only if the bonds are thereafter manually authenticated by the 

Bond Registrar.  The Township Supervisor, Clerk and Treasurer are authorized and directed to 



02879041 3  16 

execute and deliver on behalf of the Township such other certificates, affidavits, investment 

agreements or other documents or other instruments, including applications for ratings or 

municipal bond insurance, as may be required by the initial purchaser (the “Purchaser”) of the 

Bonds, Bond Counsel or the Registered Municipal Advisor or convenient to effectuate the 

execution and delivery of the Bonds.  Upon execution of the Bonds, the Township Treasurer is 

hereby authorized and directed to deliver or cause to be delivered the Bonds to the Purchaser, upon 

receipt of the purchase price therefor less any discount and plus any premium and accrued interest, 

if any, to the date of delivery.  The Township shall furnish the Bonds ready for execution without 

expense to the Purchaser.  The Township shall also furnish without expense to the Purchaser at the 

time of delivery of the Bonds, the approving opinion of Bond Counsel approving the legality of 

the Bonds.  The Bonds will be delivered at the expense of the Township in such place as agreed 

upon with the Purchaser.  The proceeds of the Bonds shall be deposited into the Debt Service Fund 

and the Refunding Fund, as provided in Paragraphs 10 and 11, above. 

23. Defeasance.  In the event cash or direct obligations of the United States or 

obligations the principal of and interest on which are guaranteed by the United States, or a 

combination thereof, the principal of and interest on which, without reinvestment, come due at 

times and in amounts sufficient to pay, at maturity or such earlier date as the Bonds are subject to 

redemption in full, the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, shall have been 

deposited in trust, this Resolution shall be defeased and the owners of the Bonds shall have no 

further rights under this Resolution except to receive payment of the principal of, premium, if any, 

and interest on the Bonds from the cash or securities deposited in trust and the interest and gains 

thereon and to transfer and exchange Bonds as provided herein. 



02879041 3 17 

24. Notice of Redemption of Bonds to be Refunded.  Following the execution and

delivery of the Bonds to the Purchaser and the payment of the Bonds by the Purchaser, the 

Township Treasurer is hereby directed to give irrevocable instructions to the bond registrar for the 

Bonds to be Refunded to have such bond registrar call the Bonds to be Refunded for redemption 

on the Redemption Date by signing and delivering a notice of redemption to that effect by 

first-class mail, postage prepaid, to the registered owners of the Bonds to be Refunded at the 

registered address as shown on the registration books kept by such bond registrar, it being 

understood that the necessary directions for redemption of the Bonds to be Refunded may be 

embodied in the Escrow Deposit Agreement authorized by Paragraph 11 of this Resolution. 

25. Authorized Officers.  In the absence or disability of the Township Treasurer, the

Deputy Treasurer shall act in his stead.  In the event of the absence or disability of the Township 

Clerk, the Deputy Clerk shall act in her stead. 

26. Prior Resolutions.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict herewith

shall be and the same are hereby rescinded. 

YEAS: Members: 

NAYS: Members: 

ABSTAIN: Members: 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

Jacqueline Smith, Clerk 
Township of Ada 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF KENT ) 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township of Ada, Kent 
County, Michigan (the “Township”), do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete 



02879041 3  18 

copy of a resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting held on the 22nd day of 
February 2021, the original of which is on file in my office. Public notice of said meeting was 
given pursuant to and in compliance with Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended, 
including in the case of a special or rescheduled meeting, notice by publication or posting at least 
eighteen (18) hours prior to the time set for the meeting. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto affixed my official signature this _____ day of 
February 2021. 

  
Jacqueline Smith, Clerk 
Township of Ada 



 

02879041 3  A-1 

EXHIBIT A 
[Legend 

Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, a New York 
corporation (“DTC”), to the Township or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, or payment, and any 
certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE 
BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner, Cede & Co., has an interest herein.] 
 
REGISTERED UNITED STATES OF AMERICA REGISTERED 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

TOWNSHIP OF ADA 
 

GENERAL OBLIGATION LIMITED TAX REFUNDING BONDS, 
SERIES 2021 

 
No.  
 
Rate Maturity Date of Original Issue CUSIP 
 
  __________, 202_ 
 
Registered Owner:  
 
Principal Amount:  
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the Township of Ada, State of Michigan (the 
“Township”), acknowledges itself indebted and for value received hereby promises to pay on the 
date specified above to the owner specified above or its registered assigns shown as the owner of 
record of this bond on the books of ____________________, __________, Michigan, as bond 
registrar (the “Bond Registrar”) on the applicable date of record, the principal sum specified above 
in lawful money of the United States of America, upon presentation and surrender of this bond at 
the principal office of the Bond Registrar, together with interest thereon at the rate per annum 
specified above payable on _________ 1, 202_, and semi-annually thereafter on the first day of 
_________ and _________ of each year from the _________ 1 or _________ 1 next preceding the 
Date of Authentication hereof, unless such Date of Authentication is a date to which interest has 
been paid or duly provided for, in which case from the Date of Authentication hereof, unless 
interest on this bond has not been paid in full or duly provided for, in which case from the date to 
which interest has been paid in full, or if no interest has been paid on this bond, from the Date of 
Original Issue specified above, until payment of the principal hereof has been made or duly 
provided for.  Payment of interest shall be paid to the registered owner hereof by the Bond 
Registrar by first class mail.  The date of record shall be each _________ 15 and _________ 15 
with respect to the payments due on each _________ 1 and _________ 1, respectively.  Principal 
and interest are payable in lawful money of the United States of America. 



 

02879041 3  A-2 

This bond is one of a series of bonds of like date and tenor except as to date of maturity 
and rate of interest aggregating the principal sum of $__________ (the “Bonds”) issued by the 
Township under and pursuant to and in full conformity with the Constitution and statutes of 
Michigan (especially Act 34 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 2001, as amended) and a bond 
authorizing resolution adopted by the Township Board (the “Bond Authorizing Resolution”) for 
the purpose of refunding [all][that portion] of the Township’s outstanding Capital Improvement 
Bonds, General Obligation Limited Tax, Series 2011A, dated June 28, 2011, maturing in the years 
2021 through 2028 and refunding [all][that portion] of the Township’s outstanding Capital 
Improvement Bonds, General Obligation Limited Tax, Series 2011B, dated June 28, 2011, 
maturing in the years 2021 through 2031.  The bonds of this series are a general obligation of the 
Township secured by the Township’s full faith and credit, which shall include the Township’s 
limited tax obligation, within applicable constitutional and statutory tax limits, and its general 
funds.  Taxes levied by the Township to pay the principal of and interest on this series are subject 
to constitutional, charter and statutory limits. 

[MANDATORY REDEMPTION] 

[The Bonds maturing ______________________ 1, 20___, and ______________ 1, 20___ 
(the “Term Bonds”) are subject to mandatory redemption, in part, by lot, on the redemption dates 
and in the principal amounts set forth below and at a redemption price equal to the principal amount 
thereof, without premium, together with interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption.  When 
a Term Bond is purchased by the Township and delivered to the Bond Registrar for cancellation 
or is redeemed in a manner other than by mandatory redemption, the principal amount of the Term 
Bond, to be so redeemed shall be reduced by the principal amount of the Term Bond so redeemed 
or purchased in the order determined by the Township. 

 Redemption Date  Principal Amount 
 ______________ 1, 20___ $__________________ 
 ______________ 1, 20___ $__________________ (Term Bond Maturity) 
 ______________ 1, 20___ $__________________ 
 ______________ 1, 20___ $__________________ (Term Bond Maturity)] 
 

Notwithstanding the mandatory redemption of term bonds, if any, the Bonds maturing in 
the years 2022 through 2031, both inclusive, shall not be subject to optional redemption prior to 
maturity. 

In the event a Bond maturing in any one year is redeemed in part, the unredeemed 
remaining principal portion of the Bond shall in no event be less than the minimum authorized 
denomination of $1,000. 

Notice of redemption of any Bond shall be given at least thirty (30) days prior to the date 
fixed for redemption by mail to the registered owner or owners at the registered addresses shown 
on the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar.  Bonds shall be called for redemption in 
multiples of $5,000 and Bonds of denominations of greater than $5,000 shall be treated as 
representing the number of Bonds obtained by dividing the denomination of the Bond by $5,000 
and such Bonds may be redeemed in part.  The notice of redemption for bonds redeemed in part 
shall state that upon surrender of the bond to be redeemed a new Bond or Bonds in aggregate 



 

02879041 3  A-3 

principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the bond surrendered shall be issued to the 
registered owner thereof.  No further interest payment on the Bonds or portions of the Bonds called 
for redemption shall accrue after the date fixed for redemption, whether or not the Bond is 
presented for redemption, provided funds are on hand with the Bond Registrar to redeem the same. 

This Bond has been designated by the Township as a “qualified tax exempt obligation” 
under the provisions of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

This bond is transferable, as provided in the Bond Authorizing Resolution, on the bond 
registration books of the Bond Registrar upon surrender of this bond together with an assignment 
executed by the registered owner or his or her duly authorized attorney in form satisfactory to the 
Bond Registrar. Upon such transfer, one or more fully registered bonds with minimum authorized 
denominations up to the amount of a single maturity in the same aggregate principal amount and 
the same maturity and interest rate, will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees.  The 
Bond Registrar shall not be required to transfer or exchange bonds or portions of bonds which 
have been selected for redemption. 

It is hereby certified and recited that all acts, conditions and things required by law 
precedent to and in the issuance of the Bonds have been done, exist and have happened in due time 
and form as required by law, and that the total indebtedness of the Township, including the series 
of bonds of which this bond is one, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitations. 

This bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any 
security or benefit under the Bond Authorizing Resolution until the Certification of Registration 
and Authentication hereon shall have been manually signed by the Bond Registrar. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Township of Ada, Michigan, by its Township Board, has 
caused this bond to be executed in its name by the manual (or facsimile) signatures of the Township 
Supervisor and the Township Clerk and its Township seal (or a facsimile thereof) to be impressed 
or imprinted hereon. 

TOWNSHIP OF ADA 
 

(SEAL) 
 
 
By:_______________________________ By:__________________________________ 
 Jacqueline Smith, Township Clerk Ross A. Leisman, Township Supervisor 
 
 
  



 

02879041 3  A-4 

CERTIFICATION OF REGISTRATION AND AUTHENTICATION 
 

This Bond is one of the Bonds described in the within mentioned Bond Authorizing 
Resolution and has been registered in the name of the payee designated on the face hereof in the 
Register maintained for the Issuer thereof. 
 

  
As Bond Registrar 

 
 
Date of 
Authentication:   By  
 

Its Authorized Representative 
 
 
 
 
  



 

02879041 3  A-5 

ASSIGNMENT 
 

For value received, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto _________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
the within Bond and all rights thereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
__________________ attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration 
thereof with full power of substitution in the premises. 
 
Dated:________________________________  
 
Signature Guaranteed: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible 
guarantor institution participating in a 
Securities Transfer Association recognized 
signature guarantee program. 

 
_____________________________________ 
NOTICE:  The signature(s) to this assignment 
must correspond with the name as it appears 
upon the face of the within Bond in every 
particular, without alteration or enlargement or 
any change whatever. 

 
The Bond Registrar will not affect transfer of this Bond unless the information concerning 

the transferee requested below is provided. 
 

Name and Address:   
   
   
   
(Include information for all joint owners if this Bond is held 
by joint account) 

 
PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR 
OTHER IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF TRANSFEREE 
 
  
(Insert number for first-named transferee if held by joint account) 
 
 



 

02879041 3  B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

OFFICIAL 
NOTICE OF SALE 

TOWNSHIP OF ADA 
COUNTY OF KENT 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
$__________ 

GENERAL OBLIGATION LIMITED TAX REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2021 
 
 

ELECTRONIC BIDS for the purchase of the above Bonds will be received on __________, the  
_____ day of _____________, 2021, until _____ __.m., prevailing Eastern Time, in the following 
manner:   

By submittal to the Municipal Advisory Council of Michigan at munibids@macmi.com; 
provided that electronic bids must arrive before the time of sale and the bidder bears all risks of 
transmission failure, or 

By Bidcomp/Parity as agent of the undersigned.  Further information about 
Bidcomp/Parity, including any fee charged, may be obtained from Bidcomp/Parity, CLIENT 
SERVICES, 1359 Broadway, Second Floor, New York, New York 10010, (212) 849-5021.  IF 
ANY PROVISION OF THIS NOTICE OF SALE SHALL CONFLICT WITH INFORMATION 
PROVIDED BY BIDCOMP/PARITY, AS THE APPROVED PROVIDER OF ELECTRONIC 
BIDDING SERVICES, THIS NOTICE SHALL CONTROL. 
 
Bidders may choose either electronic bid option but not both.   
 
AWARD OF THE BONDS will be made to the successful bidder by the Township no later than 
_____ p.m. on _______________, 2021. 

BOND DETAILS:  The Bonds will be in fully registered form and in $5,000 denominations or 
such multiples thereof up to the amount of a single maturity; will bear interest from their date 
payable on November 1, 2021, and semi-annually thereafter, will be dated the date of delivery, 
will be numbered in direct order of maturity from 1 upwards, and will mature serially on May 1 in 
the years and amounts as follows: 

 Maturity Principal Amount Maturity Principal Amount 
 2022 $ 170,000 2027 $ 190,000 
 2023 170,000 2028 190,000 
 2024 175,000 2029 145,000 
 2025 180,000 2030 145,000 
 2026 185,000 2031 145,000 
 
MATURITY ADJUSTMENT:  The aggregate principal amount of this issue is believed to be the 
amount necessary to provide adequate funds to refund the prior bonds and to pay transactional 
costs.  The Issuer reserves the right to decrease the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds after 



 

02879041 3  B-2 

receipt of the bids and prior to final award.  Such adjustment, if necessary, will be made in 
increments of $5,000 and may be made in any maturity.   
 
ADJUSTMENT TO PURCHASE PRICE:  The purchase price of the Bonds will be adjusted 
proportionately to the adjustment in principal amount of the Bonds and in such manner as to 
maintain as comparable an underwriter spread as possible to that bid. 
 
INTEREST RATE AND BIDDING DETAILS:   The Bonds shall bear interest at a rate or rates 
not exceeding 4% per annum, to be fixed by the bids therefore, expressed in multiples of 1/8 or 
1/100 of 1%, or both.  The interest on any one Bond shall be at one rate only and all Bonds maturing 
in any one year must carry the same interest rate.  The difference between the highest and lowest 
interest rates bid shall not exceed three percent (3%) per annum.  THE INTEREST RATE BORNE 
BY BONDS MATURING IN ANY YEAR SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN THE INTEREST 
RATE BORNE BY BONDS MATURING IN THE PRECEDING YEAR.  No proposal for the 
purchase of less than all of the Bonds or at a price less than 99% or more than 110% of their par 
value will be considered. 

BOOK-ENTRY ELIGIBLE:  The Bonds will be issued in book-entry only form as one bond per 
maturity fully registered in the name of Cede & Co., as bondholder and nominee for The 
Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York.  DTC will act as securities depository 
for the Bonds.  Purchase of the Bonds will be made in book-entry only form, in the denomination 
of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, and purchasers will not receive certificates representing 
their interest in bonds purchased.  The book-entry-only system is described further in the 
preliminary Official Statement for the Bonds. 

TERM BOND OPTION:  Bidders shall have the option of designating any one or more maturities 
of Bonds maturing in the years 2022 through 2031, inclusive, as serial bonds or term bonds, or 
both.  A term bond may consist of bonds subject to optional redemption or bonds not subject to 
optional redemption but may not consist of both types of bonds.  There may be more than one term 
bond maturity.  The bid must designate whether each of the principal amounts shown above for 
the years 2022 through 2031, inclusive, represent a serial maturity, a mandatory redemption 
requirement for a term bond or a term bond maturity.  Any such designation must be made within 
twenty-four (24) hours of the Bond sale. 

PRIOR REDEMPTION:  Other than mandatory redemption of term bonds, if any, Bonds 
maturing in the years 2022 to 2031, both inclusive, shall not be subject to redemption prior to 
maturity. 

Notice of the call of any Bonds for redemption shall be given by first-class mail by the Bond 
Registrar, no less than thirty (30) days prior to the date fixed for redemption, to the registered 
owners of record at the registered addresses shown on the registration books kept by the Bond 
Registrar.  Bonds shall be called for redemption in multiples of $5,000 and Bonds of 
denominations of greater than $5,000 shall be treated as representing the number of Bonds 
obtained by dividing the denomination of the Bond by $5,000 and such Bonds may be redeemed 
in part.  The notice of redemption for Bonds redeemed in part shall state that upon surrender of the 
Bond to be redeemed a new Bond or Bonds in aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed 
portion of the Bond surrendered shall be issued to the registered owner thereof.  No further interest 



02879041 3 B-3

payment on the Bonds or portions of the Bonds called for redemption shall accrue after the date 
fixed for redemption, whether or not the Bond is presented for redemption, provided funds are on 
hand with the Bond Registrar to redeem the same.  

REGISTRATION, TRANSFER AGENT AND PAYING AGENT: Principal (May 1) shall be 
payable at _______________________, _________, _________, or such other transfer agent as 
the Township may hereafter designate by notice mailed to the registered owners not less than 60 
days prior to any change in transfer agent.  Interest (November 1 and May 1) shall be paid by check 
mailed to the owner as shown on the registration books of the Township on April 15 with respect 
to payments due on the immediately succeeding May 1 and on October 15 with respect to payments 
due on the immediately succeeding November 1.  The Bonds will be transferable only upon the 
registration books of the Township kept by the transfer agent.  The first interest payment will be 
due November 1, 2021. 

PURPOSE AND SECURITY: The proceeds of the Bonds, together with other funds of the 
Township, will be used to refund the Township’s outstanding Capital Improvement Bonds, 
General Obligation Limited Tax, Series 2011A, and Capital Improvement Bonds, General 
Obligation Limited Tax Series 2011B, which were issued to finance a portion of the costs of 
acquiring, financing, and operating certain capital improvements within the Township. 

MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE: The Township will not provide municipal bond insurance 
for the Bonds.  If the Bonds qualify for issuance of any policy of municipal bond insurance or 
commitment therefor at the option of the bidder/purchaser, the purchase of any such insurance 
policy or the issuance of any such commitment shall be at the option and expense of the purchaser 
of the Bonds.  Any and all increased costs of issuance of the Bonds resulting from such purchase 
of insurance shall be paid by the purchaser, except that if the Township has requested and received 
a rating on the Bonds from a rating agency, the Township shall pay the fee for the requested rating. 
Any other rating agency fees shall be the responsibility of the purchaser.  FAILURE OF THE 
MUNICIPAL BOND INSURER TO ISSUE THE POLICY AFTER THE BONDS HAVE BEEN 
AWARDED TO THE PURCHASER SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE CAUSE FOR FAILURE OR 
REFUSAL BY THE PURCHASER TO ACCEPT DELIVERY OF THE BONDS FROM THE 
TOWNSHIP.  In the event the bidder/purchaser obtains bond insurance, the bond insurer shall not 
be entitled to be designated as an addressee of any opinion of bond counsel related to the Bonds, 
nor shall the bond insurer be entitled to any reliance letter. 

AWARD OF BONDS - TRUE INTEREST COST:  The Bonds will be awarded to the bidder 
whose bid produces the lowest true interest cost determined in the following manner: the lowest 
true interest cost will be the single interest rate (compounded on November 1, 2021 and semi-
annually thereafter) necessary to discount the debt service payments from their respective payment 
date to ________, 2021 (the anticipated date of delivery of the Bonds) in an amount equal to the 
price bid, excluding accrued interest. 

LEGAL OPINION:  Bids shall be conditioned upon the approving opinion of Mika Meyers PLC, 
Attorneys of Grand Rapids, Michigan, approving the legality of the Bonds and the original of the 
opinion will be delivered without expense to the purchaser of the Bonds at the delivery thereof. 



 

02879041 3  B-4 

The fees of Mika Meyers PLC, for services rendered in connection with such approving opinion are 
expected to be paid from Bond proceeds. Except to the extent necessary to issue their approving 
opinion as to the validity of the above bonds, Mika Meyers PLC, has not been requested to examine 
or review and has not examined or reviewed any financial documents, statements or materials that 
have been or may be furnished in connection with the authorization, issuance or marketing of the 
Bonds, and accordingly, will not express any opinion with respect to the accuracy or completeness 
of any such financial documents, statements or materials. 

TAX EXEMPTION:  The approving opinion of bond counsel will include an opinion to the effect 
that under existing law, the interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income 
tax purposes, and is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum 
tax imposed on individuals and corporations; such opinion will note, however, that certain 
corporations must take into account interest on the Bonds in determining adjusted current earnings 
for the purpose of computing such alternative minimum tax.  The opinion set forth above will be 
subject to the condition that the Township comply with all requirements of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the 
Bonds in order that interest thereon be (or continue to be) excluded from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes.  Failure to comply with certain of such requirements could cause the interest 
on the Bonds to be included in gross income retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds.  The 
Township has covenanted to comply with all such requirements.  Bond counsel will express no 
opinion regarding other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds. 

In addition, the approving opinion of bond counsel will include an opinion to the effect that under 
existing law, the Bonds and the interest thereon are exempt from all taxation in the State of 
Michigan except inheritance and estate taxes, and taxes on gains realized from the sale, payment 
or other disposition thereof. 

CERTIFICATE REGARDING “ISSUE PRICE”: The successful bidder must assist the 
Township in establishing the issue price of the Bonds and will be required to furnish, at least ten 
(10) days prior to the delivery of the Bonds, a certificate in a form acceptable to bond counsel as 
to the “issue price” of the Bonds within the meaning of Section 1273 of the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986, as amended. 

The certificate will set forth the reasonably expected initial offering price to the public or the sales 
price or prices of the Bonds, together with the supporting pricing wires or equivalent 
communications with such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary in the sole judgment 
of bond counsel. The Township intends that the provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-
1(f)(3)(i) (defining “competitive sale” for purposes of establishing the issue price of the Bonds) 
will apply to the initial sale of the Bonds (the “competitive sale requirements”) because: 

(i) the Township shall disseminate this Notice of Sale to potential underwriters in a manner 
that is reasonably designed to reach potential underwriters; 

(ii) all bidders shall have an equal opportunity to bid; 



 

02879041 3  B-5 

(iii) the Township may receive bids from at least three underwriters of municipal bonds who 
have established industry reputations for underwriting new issuances of municipal bonds; 
and 

(iv) the Township anticipates awarding the sale of the Bonds to the bidder who submits a firm 
offer to purchase the Bonds at the highest price (or lowest interest cost), as set forth in this 
Notice of Sale. 

Any bid submitted pursuant to this Notice of Sale shall be considered a firm offer for the purchase 
of the Bonds, as specified in the bid. Unless the bidder intends to hold the Bonds for its own 
account with no intention to offer the Bonds to the public, the bidder, by submitting a bid, 
represents to the Township that the bidder has an established industry reputation for underwriting 
new issuances of municipal bonds. 

In the event that the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied, the Township shall so advise 
the winning bidder. The Township shall treat the first price at which 10% of each maturity of the 
Bonds (the “10% test”) is sold to the public as the issue price of that maturity, applied on a 
maturity-by-maturity basis. The winning bidder shall advise the Township if any maturity of the 
Bonds satisfies the 10% test as of the date and time of the award of the Bonds. The Township will 
not require bidders to comply with the “hold the offering price” rule and, therefore, does not intend 
to use the initial offering price to the public as of the sale date of any maturity of the Bonds as the 
issue price of that maturity. Bids will not be subject to cancellation in the event that the competitive 
sale requirements are not satisfied. Bidders should prepare their bids on the assumption that all of 
the maturities of the Bonds will be subject to the 10% test in order to establish the issue price of 
the Bonds. 

If the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied, then until the 10% test has been satisfied as 
to each maturity of the Bonds, the winning bidder agrees to promptly report to the Township the 
prices at which the unsold Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public. That reporting 
obligation shall continue, whether or not the Closing Date has occurred, until the 10% test has 
been satisfied as to the Bonds of that maturity or until all Bonds of that maturity have been sold. 

By submitting a bid, each bidder confirms that: (i) any agreement among underwriters, any selling 
group agreement and each retail distribution agreement (to which the bidder is a party) relating to 
the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will 
contain language obligating each underwriter, each dealer who is a member of the selling group, 
and each broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution agreement, as applicable, to report 
the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds of each maturity allotted to it until it is 
notified by the winning bidder that either the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that 
maturity or all Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public, if and for so long as directed 
by the winning bidder and as set forth in the related pricing wires, and (ii) any agreement among 
underwriters relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing 
wires, contains or will contain language obligating each underwriter that is a party to a retail 
distribution agreement to be employed in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public 
to require each broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution agreement to report the prices 
at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds of each maturity allotted to it until it is notified by 
the winning bidder or such underwriter that either the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Bonds 



 

02879041 3  B-6 

of that maturity or all Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public, if and for so long as 
directed by the winning bidder or such underwriter and as set forth in the related pricing wires. 

Sales of any Bonds to any person who is a related party to an underwriter shall not constitute sales 
to the public for purposes of this Notice of Sale. Further, for purposes of this Notice of Sale: 

(i) “public” means any person other than an underwriter or a related party, 

(ii) “underwriter” means (A) any person who agrees pursuant to a written contract with the 
Township (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate 
in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public and (B) any person who agrees pursuant to a 
written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (A) to participate 
in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (including a member of a selling group or a 
party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the 
public), 

(iii) a purchaser of any of the Bonds is a “related party” to an underwriter if the underwriter 
and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (i) at least 50% common ownership 
of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are corporations 
(including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (ii) more than 50% common 
ownership of their capital interests or profit interests, if both entities are partnerships 
(including direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (iii) more than 50% 
common ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital 
interests or profit interests of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation 
and the other entity is a partnership (including direct ownership of the applicable stock or 
interests by one entity of the other), and 

(iv) “sale date” means the date that the Bonds are awarded by the Township to the winning 
bidder. 

In addition, if the successful bidder obtains a municipal bond insurance policy or other credit 
enhancement for the Bonds in connection with their original issuance, the successful bidder will 
be required, as a condition of delivery of the Bonds, to certify whether the premium therefor will 
be less than the present value of the interest expected to be saved as a result of such insurance or 
other credit enhancement.   

QUALIFIED TAX EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS:  The Bonds have been designated as “qualified 
tax exempt obligations” for purposes of deduction of interest by financial institutions. 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT:  The Township’s Preliminary Official Statement, dated 
____________, 2021, including the Official Notice of Sale and the Bid Form, may be obtained by 
contacting the Township’s Registered Municipal Advisor whose address and telephone number is 
set forth below.  The Preliminary Official Statement is in a form “deemed final” as of its date by 
the Township for purposes of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12(b)(1) but is 
subject to revision, amendment and completion in a final Official Statement.  The successful bidder 
shall supply to the Township within twenty-four (24) hours after the award of the Bonds all 
necessary pricing and other information necessary to complete the final Official Statement. 



 

02879041 3  B-7 

The Township will furnish the successful bidder a final Official Statement relating to the Bonds, 
in electronic format only, within seven (7) business days from the date of the sale so as to permit 
the successful bidder to comply with Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12.  Printed 
copies of the final Official Statement will be supplied by the Township’s Registered Municipal 
Advisor upon the purchaser’s request and agreement to pay the costs of those copies.  The 
Township agrees to provide to the successful bidder at closing a certificate executed by appropriate 
officers of the Township acting in their official capacities, to the effect that as of the date of 
delivery the information contained in the Official Statement, and any supplement to the Official 
Statement, relating to the Township and the Bonds are true and correct in all material respects, and 
that the Official Statement does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state 
a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which 
they were made, not misleading. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE:  In order to assist bidders in complying with SEC Rule 15c2-
12, as amended, the Township will undertake to provide certain annual financial information and 
notices of the occurrence of certain events, if material for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds.  
The details and terms of the undertaking are set forth in a Continuing Disclosure Agreement to be 
executed and delivered by the Township, a form of which is included in the Preliminary Official 
Statement and will also be included in the final Official Statement. 

DELIVERY OF BONDS:  The Township will furnish Bonds ready for execution at its expense 
at such location as approved by the Township. The usual Closing documents, including a 
continuing disclosure agreement and a certificate that no litigation is pending affecting the issuance 
of the Bonds, will be delivered at the time of the delivery of the Bonds. If the Bonds are not 
tendered for delivery by twelve noon, prevailing Eastern Time, on the 45th day following the date 
of sale, or the first business day thereafter if said 45th day is not a business day, the successful 
bidder may on that day, or any time thereafter until delivery of the Bonds, withdraw his proposal 
by serving notice of cancellation, in writing, on the undersigned in which event the Township shall 
promptly return the good faith deposit without interest. Payment for the Bonds shall be made in 
Federal Reserve Funds. Accrued interest to the date of delivery of the Bonds shall be paid by the 
purchaser at the time of delivery. 

CUSIP NUMBER: CUSIP numbers will be printed on the Bonds at the Purchaser’s election and 
expense. The printing of incorrect CUSIP numbers or the failure to print the CUSIP numbers on 
the Bonds shall not constitute cause for the purchaser to refuse delivery of the Bonds. 

REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ADVISOR: Further information, including a copy of the Official 
Statement prepared for the Bonds, may be obtained from the Township’s Registered Municipal 
Advisor, PFM Financial Advisors, LLC, 555 Briarwood Circle, Suite 333, Ann Arbor, Michigan 
48108, Telephone (734) 994-9700, Facsimile (734) 994-9710. 

BIDDER CERTIFICATION: By submitting a bid, the bidder shall be deemed to have certified 
that it is not an “Iran-linked Business” as defined in Act 517 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 
2012, being MCL 129.311 et seq., and bidder may be required to execute and deliver a certificate, 
in a form prepared by Bond Counsel, to that effect. 
 



 

02879041 3  B-8 

ENVELOPES: Envelopes containing the bids should be plainly marked “Proposal for Series 2021 
Refunding Bonds.” 

THE RIGHT IS RESERVED TO REJECT ANY OR ALL BIDS. 

Ross A. Leisman, Supervisor 
Township of Ada 



 

02879041 3  C-1 

EXHIBIT C 

ORDER APPROVING SALE AND TERMS OF BONDS 
 

We, the undersigned Township Supervisor and the Township Treasurer of the Township 
of Ada (the “Township”), hereby approve the sale of, and the following terms of, the Township’s 
General Obligation Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 (the “Bonds”), pursuant to 
authorization set forth in the Resolution to Authorize Issuance of the Township’s General 
Obligation Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2021, adopted by the Township Board on 
______________, 2021 (the “Bond Authorizing Resolution”), and based upon the written 
recommendation of the Registered Municipal Advisor (as defined in the Bond Authorizing 
Resolution): 
 

1. The Bonds shall be sold to ____________________ (the “Purchaser”) and dated as 
of _________________________________. 

2. The principal amount of the Bonds shall be $___________; 

3. The Official Notice of Sale, as printed in the ______, 2021 edition of The Bond 
Buyer, is approved. 

4. The Bonds shall mature and bear interest as follows: 

 Maturity Principal Rate of 
 (               1) Amount Interest 

 
   *Term Bond 
 

5. Interest shall be paid semi-annually on the Bonds on _______ 1 and _________ 1 
of each year commencing ___________ 1, ______. 

6. The record dates shall be _________ 15 and _________ 15, respectively, with 
respect to payments of principal and interest due on the Bonds on _________ 1 and 
__________ 1. 

7. The Bonds shall not be subject to optional redemption prior to maturity. 

8. The Bonds shall be issued in minimum denominations of $______ or any $_______ 
increment in excess of $_______ up to the aggregate principal amount of a single 
maturity. 

9. The Bonds shall be issued in book-entry only form. 

10. The proceeds of the Bonds shall be used to refund the Bonds to be Refunded (within 
the meaning of the Bond Authorizing Resolution), which shall include the 
maturities on the Prior Bonds (within the meaning of the Bond Authorizing 
Resolution) due on May 1 in the years 2022 through 2031 (inclusive).  The 
Redemption Date for the Bonds to be Refunded shall be May 1, 20__. 



02879041 3 C-2

11. Based on the Refunding Analysis dated _________, 2021 prepared by the
Registered Municipal Advisor (as defined in the Bond Authorizing Resolution), the
net present value savings on the Prior Bonds to be refunded is __%.  In addition,
the Township’s Registered Municipal Advisor has determined that the future debt
service savings is $__________.

12. The Bond Registrar shall be _______________, _____________, Michigan.

13. The Escrow Agent shall be _______________, _____________, Michigan.

14. The Verification Agent shall be ______________ of _________, ________.

15. The Refunding Bonds Refunding Fund shall be funded in the following manner:

Proceeds of the Refunding Bonds $

Funds on Hand in the Debt Service Fund for
the Bonds to be Refunded $ 

Other $ 

Total  $ 

[16. Additional terms applicable to the Bonds, if any.] 

Dated:  _______________, 2021 
Ross A. Leisman, Supervisor 
Ada Township 

Kevin Moran, Treasurer 
Ada Township 



 

02879041 3  D-1 

EXHIBIT D 

ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 

THIS ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT, is dated as of ___________, 20__, by and 
among the TOWNSHIP OF ADA, a Michigan general law township (the “Township”) and 
________________, a national banking association, as escrow trustee (the “Escrow Trustee”). 

WHEREAS, the Township has issued and delivered its $_________ General Obligation 
Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2021, dated as of ___________, 20__ (the “Refunding 
Bonds”), pursuant to a bond authorizing resolution adopted by the Township Board on 
____________, 2021, and the ____________________ executed by the Township __________ 
(together, the “Refunding Bond Resolution”) for the purpose of refunding a portion of the 
Township’s $605,000 original aggregate principal amount of Capital Improvement Bonds General 
Obligation Limited Tax, Series 2011A, dated June 28, 2011 (the “Series 2011A Bonds”) and the 
Township’s $2,325,000 Capital Improvement Bonds, General Obligation Limited Tax, Series 
2011B, dated June 28, 2011 (the “Series 2011B Bonds”) (collectively, the Series 2011A Bonds 
and the Series 2011B Bonds are referred to as the “Prior Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, the Series 2011A Bonds were issued under and pursuant to a resolution 
adopted by the Township Board on May 23, 2011 (the “2011A Bond Resolution”); and 

WHEREAS, the Township has determined to provide for the defeasance of the outstanding 
Series 2011A Bonds maturing on May 1 in each of the years 2022 through 2028, inclusive (the 
“Bonds to be Defeased”), which will be outstanding in the aggregate principal sum of $_________ 
at the time of the deposit in escrow; and, and the Township has provided sufficient funds to the 
Township for that purpose; and 

WHEREAS, the Series 2011B Bonds were issued under and pursuant to a resolution 
adopted by the Township Board on May 23, 2011 (the “2011B Bond Resolution”); and 

WHEREAS, the Township has determined to provide for the defeasance of the outstanding 
Series 2011B Bonds maturing on May 1 in each of the years 2022 through 2031, inclusive (the 
“Bonds to be Defeased”), which will be outstanding in the aggregate principal sum of $_________ 
at the time of the deposit in escrow; and, and the Township has provided sufficient funds to the 
Township for that purpose; and 

WHEREAS, the 2011A Bond Resolution and the 2011B Bond Resolution shall be 
referenced jointly as the “Prior Bond Resolution.” 

WHEREAS, ____________________, a national banking association, is the bond registrar 
and paying agent (the “Paying Agent”) with respect to the Bonds to be Defeased; and 

WHEREAS, the parties have determined to provide for payment of the Bonds to be 
Defeased in accordance with Paragraph 21 of the Prior Bond Resolution by depositing with the 
Escrow Trustee, sufficient cash and noncallable direct obligations of the United States of America, 
the principal of and interest on which, when due and payable, will provide sufficient money to pay 



 

02879041 3  D-2 

the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to be Defeased in accordance with the 
schedule set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual covenants 
hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

Section 1.  Receipt of Bond Resolution.  Receipt of a true and correct copy of the Prior 
Bond Resolution and the Refunding Bond Resolution is acknowledged by the Escrow Trustee. 

Section 2.  Creation of Escrow Deposit Fund.  There is created and established with the 
Escrow Trustee a special and irrevocable escrow fund designated the “2021 Capital Improvement 
Refunding Bonds, Refunding Fund” (the “Escrow Deposit Fund”), to be held in trust by the Escrow 
Trustee on behalf of the Township, separate and apart from other funds of the Escrow Trustee and 
the Township, if any.  The Escrow Trustee shall create within the Escrow Deposit Fund an account 
designated the “Refunding Account” and an account designated the “Cost of Issuance Account.” 

Section 3.  Funding of the Escrow Deposit Fund; Purchase of Government 
Obligations.  Concurrently with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Township shall 
transfer or cause to be transferred to the Escrow Trustee (a) for deposit in the Refunding Account 
of the Escrow Deposit Fund the sum of $___________ from proceeds of the Refunding Bonds and 
from ___________, and (b) for deposit in the Cost of Issuance Account of the Refunding Fund the 
sum of $_________ from proceeds of the Refunding Bonds and from ____________.  The Escrow 
Trustee shall use such funds in the Refunding Account of the Escrow Deposit Fund to purchase 
on behalf of the Township the noncallable direct obligations of the United States of America listed 
in Exhibit A attached hereto.  The noncallable direct obligations of the United States of America 
deposited into the Refunding Account of the Escrow Deposit Fund shall hereafter be referred to as 
the “Escrowed Securities.”  The funds in the Cost of Issuance Account of the Escrow Deposit Fund 
shall remain uninvested until used in accordance with this agreement. 

Section 4.  Acceptance of Escrow; Application of Escrow Deposit Fund; Irrevocable 
Call for Redemption.  The Escrow Trustee accepts the money and investments deposited pursuant 
to this Escrow Deposit Agreement.  The deposit of the money and investments in the Escrow 
Deposit Fund shall constitute an irrevocable deposit of the money and investments and the interest 
earned thereon for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds to be Defeased and such money and 
investments, together with any interest earned thereon, shall be held in trust and shall be applied 
solely to (a) from monies in the Refunding Account of the Escrow Deposit Fund, the payment of 
the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Bonds to be Defeased in accordance with the 
schedule set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto, and (b) from monies in the Cost of Issuance 
Account of the Escrow Deposit Fund, the payment of the costs of issuance of the Refunding Bonds 
as approved by the Township.  The Township irrevocably exercises its option under Paragraph 5 
of the Prior Bond Resolution to direct the Paying Agent to call the Bonds to be Defeased maturing 
on and after __________ 1, 20__, for redemption on __________ 1, 20__ (the “Redemption 
Date”). 



 

02879041 3  D-3 

Section 5.  Investment Powers; Substitution of Investments; Reinvestment; Section 
148 Matters; Deficits and Surpluses. 

 a. The Escrow Trustee shall apply the cash and the Escrowed Securities 
deposited in the Escrow Deposit Fund and the investments purchased therefrom, if any, together 
with any interest earned thereon, in accordance with the provisions of this Escrow Deposit 
Agreement.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Escrow Deposit Agreement, the 
Escrow Trustee shall have no power or duty to invest any money in the Escrow Deposit Fund or 
to make substitutions of the investments held in the Escrow Deposit Fund or to sell, transfer or 
otherwise dispose of the investments acquired pursuant to this Escrow Deposit Agreement. 

 b. At the written direction of the Township, and upon compliance with the 
conditions hereinafter stated, the Escrow Trustee shall have the power to sell, transfer, otherwise 
dispose of or request the redemption of the investments of the Escrow Deposit Fund and to 
substitute therefor other noncallable direct obligations of the United States of America (other than 
unit investment trusts and mutual funds) (the “Substituted Investments”).  The Escrow Trustee 
shall purchase such Substituted Investments with the proceeds derived from the sale, transfer, 
disposition or redemption of money or investments in the Escrow Deposit Fund.  The substitution 
of investments described above may be effected only if: (i) the Escrow Trustee shall have received 
a written opinion of a firm of independent certified public accountants that, upon completion of 
such substitution, the money and Substituted Investments, including the interest to be earned 
thereon (but not including the reinvestment of interest, if any), together with the money and other 
Substituted Investments previously deposited into the Escrow Deposit Fund pursuant to this 
Section and the Escrowed Securities held by the Escrow Trustee in the Escrow Deposit Fund, 
including the interest thereon, will be no less than an amount sufficient, without reinvestment, to 
pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to be Defeased in accordance with 
the schedule set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto; and (ii) the Township shall have furnished the 
Escrow Trustee with a written opinion of legal counsel acceptable to the Township to the effect 
that the substitution is then permitted by law and permitted by this Escrow Deposit Agreement and 
will not cause any of the Prior Bonds or Refunding Bonds to become an “arbitrage bond” as 
defined in Section 148(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and 
will not otherwise adversely affect the exclusion of the interest on any of the Prior Bonds or the 
Refunding Bonds from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation. 

 c. At the written direction of the Township, the Escrow Trustee shall have the 
power to reinvest proceeds of the Escrowed Securities held by the Escrow Trustee only if: (i) such 
reinvestment is as contemplated by the written opinion of a firm of independent certified public 
accountants, delivered on the date of execution and delivery of this Agreement, as to the 
sufficiency of the cash balance and Escrowed Securities deposited to the Escrow Deposit Fund to 
pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Bonds to be Defeased, or (ii) the Escrow 
Trustee shall have received (A) a written opinion of a firm of independent certified public 
accountants that, upon completion of such reinvestment, the amount on deposit in the Escrow 
Deposit Fund, including the interest thereon, will be sufficient to pay the principal of, premium, if 
any, and interest on, the Bonds to be Defeased in accordance with the schedule set forth in Exhibit 
B attached hereto and (B) a written opinion of legal counsel, acceptable to the Township, that such 
reinvestment will not cause the Prior Bonds or Refunding Bonds to become “arbitrage bonds” as 
defined in Section 148(a) of the Code and will not otherwise adversely affect the exclusion of the 



 

02879041 3  D-4 

interest on the Prior Bonds or Refunding Bonds from gross income for purposes of federal income 
taxation. 

 d. If the Escrow Trustee receives (i) a written opinion of a firm of independent 
certified public accountants, acceptable to the Township, that the money and investments in the 
Refunding Account of the Escrow Deposit Fund, including the gains realized and interest earnings 
thereon without further reinvestment, will be in excess of the amount necessary to pay the principal 
of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Bonds to be Defeased in accordance with the schedule set 
forth in Exhibit B attached hereto, and (ii) a written opinion of legal counsel, acceptable to the 
Township, that the transfer described in this sentence will not cause the Prior Bonds or Refunding 
Bonds to become “arbitrage bonds” as defined in Section 148(a) of the Code and will not otherwise 
adversely affect the exclusion of the interest on the Prior Bonds or Refunding Bonds from gross 
income for purposes of federal income taxation, the Escrow Trustee shall transfer the amount of 
such excess in the Refunding Account of the Escrow Deposit Fund to the Township.  If the Escrow 
Trustee receives an opinion of a firm of independent certified public accountants that the money 
and investments in the Refunding Account of the Escrow Deposit Fund, including the earnings 
thereon (but not including the reinvestment of interest, if any), will be insufficient for any reason 
to pay all of the Bonds to be Defeased in accordance with the schedule set forth in Exhibit B 
attached hereto, the Township shall pay or cause to be paid to the Escrow Trustee for deposit to 
the Refunding Account of the Escrow Deposit Fund such sum of money as, in the opinion of such 
independent certified public accountants, is necessary to remove the insufficiency. 

 e. In the event the Township is unable to cause to be delivered on the date of 
execution and delivery of this Agreement all or any part of the Escrowed Securities, then the 
Township may substitute for the Escrowed Securities different noncallable direct obligations of 
the United States of America (other than unit investment trusts and mutual funds) (the 
“Replacement Securities”) for delivery for purchase by the Escrow Trustee on the date of execution 
and delivery of this Agreement upon receipt of a written opinion of legal counsel acceptable to the 
Township to the effect that the Replacement Securities will not cause the Prior Bonds or Refunding 
Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” as defined in Section 148(a) of the Code and will not otherwise 
adversely affect the exclusion of the interest on any of the Prior Bonds or Refunding Bonds from 
gross income for purposes of federal income taxation.  The Replacement Securities must be 
demonstrated by a report of a firm of independent certified public accountants to produce principal 
and interest, on __________ 1, 20__, in an amount at least equal to the cash flow (principal and 
interest) of the Escrowed Securities on such date.  The proceeds of the Replacement Securities 
shall be held in cash, uninvested, and used to make the payments that would have been made from 
the proceeds of the Escrowed Securities.  At any time prior to the maturity of the Escrowed 
Securities, the Township may, upon the direction of the seller of the Replacement Securities to the 
Township, replace the Replacement Securities with the Escrowed Securities, and, upon the 
delivery of the Escrowed Securities, the Replacement Securities shall be released by the Escrow 
Trustee and delivered, together with all cash flow previously produced by the Replacement 
Securities held by the Escrow Trustee and not required to pay the principal of, premium, if any, 
and interest on the Bonds to be Defeased (as shall be demonstrated by a verification report of a 
firm of independent certified public accountants), to the seller of the Replacement Securities. 

 f. The Township covenants that it will take no action that would cause any 
part of the money or investments at any time in the Escrow Deposit Fund to be used directly or 



 

02879041 3  D-5 

indirectly to acquire any investment property, the acquisition of which would cause any of the 
Prior Bonds or Refunding Bonds to be an “arbitrage bond” as defined in Section 148(a) of the 
Code or that would otherwise adversely affect the exclusion of the interest on any of the Prior 
Bonds or Refunding Bonds from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation. 

Section 6.  Payment of Bonds to be Defeased.  The Bonds to be Defeased shall be paid 
pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Prior Bond Resolution pertaining to the payment of 
the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to be Defeased in accordance with the 
schedule set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto.  The Escrow Trustee shall receive the matured 
principal of and the interest on the Escrowed Securities as the same are payable.  On or before 
each interest or principal payment date on the Bonds to be Defeased, the Escrow Trustee shall 
withdraw from the Escrow Deposit Fund sufficient money to pay the principal of, premium, if any, 
and interest on the Bonds to be Defeased on such dates.  If any Bonds to be Defeased are not 
presented for payment, the Escrow Trustee shall retain funds for that purpose in accordance with 
the provisions therefor contained in the Prior Bond Resolution.  If for any reason there is a 
deficiency in the amount of money available for payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and 
interest on the Bonds to be Defeased, the Township shall immediately, upon notice of the 
deficiency from the Escrow Trustee, pay or cause to be paid the amount of the deficiency to the 
Escrow Trustee for deposit in the Escrow Deposit Fund. 

Section 7.  Lien of Holders of Bonds to be Defeased on Escrow Deposit Fund.  The 
escrow created hereby shall be irrevocable and the holders of the Bonds to be Defeased shall have 
an express lien on all money and investments, including the interest earned thereon, in the 
Refunding Account of the Escrow Deposit Fund until paid out, used and applied in accordance 
with this Escrow Deposit Agreement. 

Section 8.  Duties of the Escrow Trustee in Connection With the Defeasance of Bonds 
to be Defeased.  The Township directs the Escrow Trustee, within 30 days after the deposit of the 
Escrowed Securities or the Replacement Securities into the Escrow Deposit Fund, to cause a notice 
signed by it, to be mailed, by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to the registered owners of every 
Bond to be Defeased at the registered address as shown on the registration books of the Township 
at the close of business on the day on which the Escrowed Securities or the Replacement Securities 
shall have been deposited with the Escrow Trustee.  The notice shall be substantially in the form 
set forth in Exhibit C attached hereto. 

Section 9.  Fees and Expenses.  The Township agrees to pay to the Escrow Trustee, a one-
time fee for performing the services hereunder in the amount of ___________________ Dollars 
($_____).  In the event that the Escrow Trustee is requested to perform any extraordinary services 
hereunder (such extraordinary services include all services required in connection with the delivery 
of Replacement Securities pursuant to Section 5(e) hereof), the Township agrees to pay or cause 
to be paid reasonable fees to the Escrow Trustee for such extraordinary services, and the Escrow 
Trustee agrees to look only to the Township for the payment of such fees and reimbursement of 
such expenses.  Except as contemplated by Section 11, the Escrow Trustee agrees that in no event 
shall it ever assert any claim or lien against the Escrow Deposit Fund for any fees for its services, 
whether regular or extraordinary, in any capacity, or for reimbursement for any of its expenses. 



02879041 3  D-6

Section 10.  Successor to the Escrow Trustee.  If at any time the Escrow Trustee or its 
legal successor or successors becomes unable, through operation of law or otherwise (but not 
including withdrawal solely at the request of the Escrow Trustee which shall not be permitted 
hereunder), to act as Escrow Trustee hereunder, or if its property and affairs shall be taken under 
the control of any state or federal court or administrative body because of insolvency or bankruptcy 
or for any other reason, the Township may appoint another bank or trust company to act on its 
behalf. 

Any successor to the Escrow Trustee shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to the 
Township an instrument accepting such appointment hereunder and the Escrow Trustee shall 
execute and deliver an instrument transferring to such successor, subject to the terms of this Escrow 
Deposit Agreement, including, without limitation, the right of the Escrow Trustee to demand 
payment from the Township for any unpaid fees and expenses incurred in connection with the 
provision of extraordinary services of the Escrow Trustee pursuant to Section 9 hereof, and all the 
rights, powers and trusts of the Escrow Trustee hereunder, including, without limitation, the money 
and investments in the Escrow Deposit Fund held by the Escrow Trustee.  Upon the request of any 
such successor to the Escrow Trustee, the Township shall cause to be executed any and all 
instruments in writing for more fully and certainly vesting in and confirming to such successor to 
the Escrow Trustee all such rights, powers and duties. 

Section 11.  Application of Escrow Deposit Fund After Payment of Bonds to be 
Defeased.  After payment in full of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to 
be Defeased (such principal, premium and interest being deemed paid on the Redemption Date if 
the Escrow Trustee then holds sufficient funds available therefor) from monies in the Refunding 
Account of the Escrow Deposit Fund, the payment of costs of issuance approved by the Township 
from the Cost of Issuance Account of the Escrow Deposit Fund, and the payment of all of the fees 
and expenses of the Escrow Trustee relating to the Bonds to be Defeased, all remaining money 
and investments, together with any interest thereon, in the Escrow Deposit Fund shall be 
transferred by the Escrow Trustee to the Township for immediate deposit in the 2021 Refunding 
Bonds Debt Service Fund established and maintained under the Refunding Bond Resolution. 

Section 12.  Records.  The Escrow Trustee shall keep books of record and account in 
which complete and correct entries shall be made of all transactions relating to the receipts, 
disbursements, allocations and application of the Escrowed Securities deposited in the Escrow 
Deposit Fund and all proceeds thereof, and such books shall be available for inspection at 
reasonable hours and under reasonable conditions by the Township and the holders of the Bonds 
to be Defeased. 

Section 13.  Reports.  For the period beginning on the date hereof and ending on 
________, 20__, and for each six-month period thereafter while this Escrow Deposit Agreement 
remains in effect, the Escrow Trustee shall prepare and send to the Township, by first-class mail 
within 30 days following the end of such period a written report summarizing all transactions 
relating to the Escrow Deposit Fund during such period, including, without limitation, credits to 
the Escrow Deposit Fund as a result of interest payments on or maturities of the Escrowed 
Securities and transfers from the Escrow Deposit Fund for payments on the Bonds to be Defeased 
or otherwise, together with a detailed statement of all Escrowed Securities, and the cash balance 
on deposit in the Escrow Deposit Fund as of the end of such period. 



02879041 3  D-7

Section 14.  Notice.  Other than as provided in Section 13 of this Escrow Deposit 
Agreement, any notice, authorization, request or demand required or permitted to be given 
hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given when mailed by 
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

If to the Escrow Trustee: 
____________________ 
____________________ 
____________________ 

If to the Township: 
Township of Ada 
Attention:  Township Treasurer 
7330 Thornapple River Dr. 
P.O. Box 370 
Ada, MI  49301-0370 

The United States Post Office registered or certified mail receipt showing delivery of the 
aforesaid shall be conclusive evidence of the date and fact of delivery.  Any party hereto may 
change the address to which notices are to be delivered by giving to the other parties not less than 
10 days’ prior notice thereof. 

Section 15.  Termination of Escrow Deposit Agreement.  This Escrow Deposit 
Agreement shall terminate when the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to be 
Defeased have been fully paid and discharged in accordance with the Prior Bond Resolution and 
any remaining money and investments together with any interest thereon in the Escrow Deposit 
Fund have been transferred by the Escrow Trustee to the Township pursuant to Section 11 hereof. 

Section 16.  Amendment.  This Escrow Deposit Agreement is made for the benefit of the 
Township and the holders from time to time of the Bonds to be Defeased, and it shall not be 
repealed, revoked, altered or amended without the written consent of (i) all of the holders of the 
outstanding Bonds to be Defeased, and (ii) the parties hereto; provided, however, that the parties 
hereto may, without the consent of, or notice to, such holders, enter into such agreements 
supplemental to this Escrow Deposit Agreement as shall not adversely affect the rights of such 
holders and as shall not be inconsistent with the terms and provisions of this Escrow Deposit 
Agreement, for any one or more of the following purposes: 

a. to cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in this Escrow Deposit
Agreement; 

b. to grant to, or confer upon, the Escrow Trustee, for the benefit of the holders
of the Bonds to be Defeased, any additional rights, remedies, powers or authority that may lawfully 
be granted to, or conferred upon, such holders or the Escrow Trustee; 

c. to subject to this Escrow Deposit Agreement additional funds, securities or
properties; and 



02879041 3  D-8

d. to conform this Escrow Deposit Agreement to the provisions of any law or
regulation governing the tax-exempt status of the Prior Bonds or Refunding Bonds in order to 
maintain the exclusion of the interest on the Prior Bonds or Refunding Bonds from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes. 

The Escrow Trustee shall be entitled to rely exclusively upon an unqualified opinion of 
legal counsel with respect to compliance with this Section, including the extent, if any, to which 
(i) any change, modification or addition affects the rights of the holders of the Bonds to be
Defeased, or (ii) any instrument executed hereunder complies with the conditions and provisions
of this Section.

Section 17.  Reliance on Certain Documents.  The Escrow Trustee shall incur no liability 
in acting or proceeding, or in not acting or proceeding, in good faith, reasonably and in accordance 
with the terms of this Escrow Deposit Agreement, upon any resolution, order, notice, request, 
consent, waiver, certificate, statement, affidavit, requisition, bond or other paper or document 
which the Escrow Trustee shall in good faith reasonably believe to be genuine and to have been 
adopted or signed by the proper board or person or to have been prepared and furnished pursuant 
to any of the provisions of this Escrow Deposit Agreement, or upon the written opinion of any 
attorney, investment banker or accountant believed by the Escrow Trustee to be qualified in 
relation to the subject matter of such opinion.  The Escrow Trustee shall be under no duty to make 
any investigation or any inquiry as to any statements contained or matters referred to in any such 
instrument. 

Section 18.  Limitation on Liability of the Escrow Trustee.  The liability of the Escrow 
Trustee for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds to be Defeased shall be limited 
to the proceeds of the Escrowed Securities and the cash balances from time to time on deposit in 
the Escrow Deposit Fund.  The Escrow Trustee shall not have any liability whatsoever for the 
insufficiency of funds from time to time in the Escrow Deposit Fund except for the obligation to 
notify the Township promptly of any such occurrence. 

The Escrow Trustee shall not be liable or responsible for any loss resulting from any 
investment made in the Escrowed Securities or other investments directed by the Township as 
permitted hereby or for any other deficiency in the funds required hereunder not resulting from the 
negligence or violation of the terms thereof by the Escrow Trustee. 

The Escrow Trustee shall not be liable or responsible hereunder for any act done or step 
taken or omitted by it or any mistake of fact or law or for anything which it may do or refrain from 
doing, except for its negligence or its default in the performance of any obligation imposed upon 
it hereunder. 

The Escrow Trustee shall never be required to use or advance its own funds or otherwise 
incur personal financial liability in the performance of any of its duties or the exercise of any of 
its rights and powers hereunder. 

Section 19.  Severability.  If any one or more of the covenants or agreements provided in 
this Escrow Deposit Agreement on the part of the parties to be performed should be determined 
by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, such covenant or agreement shall be 



02879041 3  D-9

deemed and construed to be severable, from the remaining covenants and agreements herein 
contained and shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Escrow Deposit 
Agreement.   

Section 20.  Counterparts; Headings.  This Escrow Deposit Agreement may be executed 
in several counterparts, all or any of which shall be regarded for all purposes as an original and 
shall constitute and be but one and the same instrument.  The paragraph headings used herein are 
for convenience of reference only. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have each caused this Escrow Deposit 
Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized officers and to be delivered all as of the date 
first above written. 

TOWNSHIP OF ADA 

By: 

Its: 

__________________________, as Escrow Trustee 

By:  

Its:  



 

02879041 3  D-A-1 

 
Exhibit A 

To Escrow Deposit Agreement 

ESCROWED SECURITIES 
 
 U.S. Treasury Type Par Amount Maturity Date Coupon Rate 
     
 
 



02879041 3  D-B-1

Exhibit B 
To Escrow Deposit Agreement 

ESCROW FUND REQUIREMENTS FOR 
BONDS TO BE DEFEASED 

TOWNSHIP OF ADA 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS, 
GENERAL OBLIGATION LIMITED TAX, 

SERIES 2011_, DATED JUNE 28, 2011 

PRINCIPAL 
TO BE 

DATE REDEEMED PREMIUM INTEREST TOTAL 



02879041 3  D-C-1

Exhibit C 
To Escrow Deposit Agreement 

[Form of Notice of Defeasance] 

NOTICE OF DEFEASANCE 

TOWNSHIP OF ADA 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS, 
GENERAL OBLIGATION LIMITED TAX, 

SERIES 2011_, DATED JUNE 28, 2011 

NOTICE IS GIVEN that the Township of Ada, Michigan (the “Township”), and 
______________________________________________, as escrow trustee (the “Escrow 
Trustee”), have entered into an Escrow Deposit Agreement, dated as of __________, 20__ (the 
“Escrow Deposit Agreement”), to provide for the defeasance [in part] of the Capital Improvement 
Bonds, General Obligation Limited Tax, Series 2011_, Dated June 28, 2011, (the “Bonds to be 
Defeased”) as follows: 

Maturity Date Principal CUSIP 

The Bonds to be Defeased will be called for redemption on __________ 1, 20__, at a 
redemption price equal to the par value of each such Bond to be Defeased, [plus a][without] 
premium [of ___ one percent]. 

A sum of money provided by the Township pursuant to the Escrow Deposit Agreement has 
been used to establish an escrow fund (the “Escrow Deposit Fund”) of cash and the noncallable 
direct obligations of the United States of America described below: 

U.S. Treasury Type Par Amount Maturity Date Coupon Rate 

The Bond Resolution pursuant to which the Bonds to be Defeased were issued (the “Bond 
Resolution”) has been released in accordance with Paragraph 20 thereof, except that applicable 
provisions of the Bond Resolution pertaining to the payment of the principal of and interest on the 
Bonds to be Defeased shall continue in force until the Bonds to be Defeased have been fully paid.  
_________________________________________________________, is the bond registrar and 
paying agent for the Bonds to be Defeased. 

The Escrow Deposit Fund will be held by the Escrow Trustee, and will be used to provide 
for the payment of (i) the interest on the Bonds to be Defeased on _____________, 20__, and (ii) 
the  redemption price of all Bonds to be Defeased maturing on and after __________ 1, 20__, 
which will have been called for optional redemption on __________ 1, 20__.  The Escrow Deposit 
Fund will be held by the Escrow Trustee pursuant to the Escrow Deposit Agreement. 



02879041 3  D-C-2

All interest on the Bonds to be Defeased will cease accruing on __________ 1, 20__, 
whether or not the Bonds to be Defeased are presented for payment. 

THIS IS NOT A NOTICE OF REDEMPTION. 

Dated:  ___________, 20__ 

By: 

Title: 



02879041 3  E-1

EXHIBIT E 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT (ISSUER) 

$_________ 
TOWNSHIP OF ADA 
COUNTY OF KENT 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
GENERAL OBLIGATION LIMITED 

TAX REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2021 

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “Agreement”) is executed and delivered by 
the Township of Ada, County of Kent, Michigan (the “Issuer”), pursuant to a resolution adopted 
__________, 2021, by the Issuer’s Township Board in connection with the issuance by the Issuer 
of its $________ General Obligation Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2021, dated as of 
__________, 2021 (the “Bonds”).  The Issuer covenants and agrees as follows:  

SECTION 1.  PURPOSE OF THE DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT. 

(a) This Agreement is being executed and delivered by the Issuer with respect to the
Bonds for the benefit of the Bondholders and in order to assist the Participating Underwriters in 
complying with the Rule. 

(b) In consideration of the purchase and acceptance of any and all of the Bonds by
those who shall hold the same or shall own beneficial ownership interests therein from time to 
time, this Agreement shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a contract between the Issuer and 
the Bondholders from time to time, and the covenants and agreements herein set forth to be 
performed on behalf of the Issuer shall be for the benefit of the Bondholders of any and all of the 
Bonds. 

(c) The Issuer acknowledges that this Agreement does not address the scope of any
application of Rule 10b-5 promulgated by the SEC pursuant to the 1934 Act to the Annual 
Financial Information or notices of the Listed Events provided or required to be provided by the 
Issuer pursuant to this Agreement.  

(d) As of the date of delivery of the Bonds to the initial purchaser thereof, the Issuer is
an obligated person (within the meaning of the Rule) with respect to less than $10,000,000 in 
aggregate amount of outstanding municipal securities, including the Bonds and excluding those 
securities permitted to be exempted pursuant to Section (d)(2)(i) of the Rule. 

SECTION 2.  DEFINITIONS.  In addition to the capitalized terms defined elsewhere in this 
Agreement, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings in this Agreement: 

“Annual Financial Information” shall mean any Annual Financial Information provided by 
the Issuer pursuant to, and as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Agreement.  



02879041 3  E-2

“Bond Counsel” shall mean nationally recognized legal counsel in municipal securities 
law. 

“Bond Resolution” shall mean collectively the resolutions duly adopted by the governing 
board of the Issuer authorizing the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds. 

“Bondholder” means the registered owner of a Bond or any person which (a) has the power, 
directly or indirectly, to vote or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds 
(including any person holding Bonds through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or 
(b) is treated as the owner of any Bond for federal income tax purposes.

“Dissemination Agent” shall mean the Issuer, or any successor Dissemination Agent 
designated as such in writing by the Issuer and which has filed with the Issuer a written acceptance 
of such designation, and such agent’s successors and assigns. 

“EMMA” shall mean the Electronic Municipal Market Access system maintained by the 
MSRB for purposes of the Rule.   

“GAAP” shall mean generally accepted accounting principles, as such principles are 
prescribed, in part, by the Financial Accounting Standards Board and modified by the Government 
Accounting Standards Board and Act 2 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1968, as amended, in 
effect from time to time. 

“Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Agreement. 

“MSRB” shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

 “1934 Act” shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 

“Official Statement” shall mean the final Official Statement for the Bonds dated 
__________, 2021. 

“Participating Underwriter” shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds 
required to comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of the Bonds.  

“Rule” shall mean Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the SEC pursuant to the 1934 Act, as the 
same may be amended from time to time, together with all interpretive guidances or other official 
interpretations or explanations thereof that are promulgated by the SEC. 

“SEC” shall mean the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

“State” shall mean the State of Michigan. 

SECTION 3.  PROVISION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION. 

(a) Each year, the Issuer shall provide, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to
provide, not later than six months after the last day of the Issuer’s fiscal year, commencing with 



02879041 3  E-3

the Issuer’s Annual Financial Information for the Issuer’s fiscal year ending March 31, 2021, after 
such materials are available, to the MSRB, Annual Financial Information for the preceding fiscal 
year which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4(a) of this Agreement, and in the event 
of an amendment or waiver, the requirements of Section 8 of this Agreement.  Not later than fifteen 
(15) business days prior to said date, the Issuer shall provide the Annual Financial Information to
the Dissemination Agent (if other than the Issuer).  In each case, the Annual Financial Information
may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may
include by specific reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this Agreement;
provided, however, that if the audited financial statements of the Issuer are not available by the
respective deadlines for filing the Annual Financial Information, they shall be provided when and
if available, and unaudited financial statements in a format similar to the audited financial
statements most recently prepared for the Issuer shall be included in the Annual Financial
Information.

(b) If the Issuer is unable to provide to the MSRB Annual Financial Information by the
dates required in subsection (a), the Issuer shall send a notice in a timely manner to the MSRB in 
accordance with Section 14 of this Agreement. 

(c) As of the date of this Agreement, the fiscal year of the Issuer commences on April 1
and ends on March 31.  If the fiscal year of the Issuer changes after the date of this Agreement, the 
Issuer shall send a notice of such change to the MSRB in accordance with Section 14 of this 
Agreement.  If such change will result in the Issuer’s fiscal year ending on a date later than the 
ending date prior to such change, the Issuer shall provide notice of such change to the MSRB on 
or prior to the deadline for filing the Annual Financial Information in effect when the Issuer 
operated under its prior fiscal year.  Such notice may be provided along with the Annual Financial 
Information, provided that it is filed at or prior to the deadline described above.  

(d) The Dissemination Agent shall:

(1) determine each year prior to the dates for providing the Annual Financial
Information the address of the MSRB; and 

(2) if the Dissemination Agent is other than the Issuer, file a report with the
Issuer certifying that the Annual Financial Information has been provided pursuant to this 
Agreement, stating the date it was provided to the MSRB and other persons, if any, to which it 
was provided. 

(e) In connection with providing the Annual Financial Information, the Dissemination
Agent (if other than the Issuer) is not obligated or responsible under this Agreement to determine 
the sufficiency of the content of the Annual Financial Information for purposes of the Rule or any 
other state or federal securities law, rule, regulation or administrative order. 

SECTION 4. CONTENT OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION. 

(a) The Issuer’s Annual Financial Information shall include, at a minimum, that
financial information and operating data which is customarily prepared by the Issuer and is 
publicly available, and shall contain or include by reference the following:  



02879041 3  E-4

(1) Audited financial statements of the Issuer for its most recently completed
fiscal year, prepared in accordance with GAAP with such changes as may be required from time 
to time in accordance with state law; and 

(2) The most recent financial information and operating data relating to the
Issuer contained in the Official Statement under the following captions: 

(i) Total Taxable Value
(ii) Taxable Value by Use and Class
(iii) State Equalized Valuation
(iv) Total SEV by Use and Class
(v) Property Tax Rates
(vi) Principal Residence Property Tax Rates by Governmental Unit
(vii) Non-Principal Residence Property Tax Rates by Governmental Unit
(viii) Property Tax Collections
(ix) Ten Largest Taxpayers
(x) Debt Statement

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other 
documents available to the public through EMMA or filed with the SEC. 

SECTION 5.  REPORTING OF SIGNIFICANT EVENTS. 

(a) The Issuer covenants to provide, or cause to be provided, notice of the occurrence
of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds in a timely manner and not in excess of 
ten (10) business days after the occurrence of the event in accordance with the Rule:  

(l) principal and interest payment delinquencies;
(2) non-payment related defaults, if material;
(3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
(4) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;
(5) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
(6) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of

proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue
(IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with
respect to the tax status of the security, or other material events affecting
the tax status of the security;

(7) modifications to rights of Bondholders, if material;
(8) bond calls, if material;
(9) defeasances;
(10) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the

securities, if material;
(11) rating changes;
(12) tender offers;
(13) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Issuer;



02879041 3  E-5

(14) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an
obligated person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the
obligated person, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry
into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination
of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant
to its terms, if material; and

(15) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a
trustee, if material.

(b) Whenever the Issuer obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event
described in Section 5(a)(2), (7), (8), (10), (12), (14) or (15), the Issuer shall as soon as possible 
determine if such event would be material under applicable federal securities laws. 

(c) If the Issuer determines in the exercise of its best judgment in good faith that the
occurrence of a Listed Event would be material under applicable federal securities laws, the Issuer 
shall promptly cause a notice of the occurrence of a Listed Event, determined to be material in 
accordance with the Rule, to be filed with the MSRB.  In connection with providing a notice of 
the occurrence of a Listed Event described in Section 5(a)(9) above, the Issuer shall include in the 
notice explicit disclosure as to whether the Bonds have been escrowed to maturity or escrowed to 
call, as well as appropriate disclosure of the timing of maturity or call.  

(d) The Issuer acknowledges that the “rating changes” referred to above in Section
5(a)(11) of this Agreement may include, without limitation, any change in any rating on the Bonds 
or other indebtedness for which the Issuer is liable, or on any indebtedness for which the State is 
liable.  

(e) The Issuer acknowledges that it is not required to provide a notice of a Listed Event
with respect to credit enhancement when the credit enhancement is added after the primary offering 
of the Bonds, the Issuer neither applied for nor participated in obtaining such credit enhancement, 
and such credit enhancement is not described in the Official Statement.  

(f) For the purposes of an event identified in Section 5(a)(13), the event is considered
to occur when any of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar 
officer for the Issuer in a proceeding under a U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding 
under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over 
substantially all of the assets or business of the Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by 
leaving the existing governing body and officers or officials of the Issuer in possession but subject 
to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order 
confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental 
authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the 
Issuer. 



02879041 3  E-6

SECTION 6.  TERMINATION OF REPORTING OBLIGATION. 

(a) The Issuer’s obligations under this Agreement shall terminate upon the legal
defeasance of the Bond Resolution or by the prior redemption or payment in full of all of the 
Bonds.  

(b) This Agreement, or any provision hereof, shall be null and void in the event that
the Issuer (i) receives an opinion of Bond Counsel, addressed to the Issuer, to the effect that those 
portions of the Rule, which require such provisions of this Agreement, do not or no longer apply 
to the Bonds, whether because such portions of the Rule are invalid, have been repealed, amended 
or modified, or are otherwise deemed to be inapplicable to the Bonds, as shall be specified in such 
opinion, and (ii) delivers notice to such effect with the MSRB in accordance with Section 14 of 
this Agreement. 

SECTION 7.  DISSEMINATION AGENT.  The Issuer, from time to time, may appoint or 
engage a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Agreement, and 
may discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor 
Dissemination Agent.  

SECTION 8.  AMENDMENT.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, this 
Agreement may be amended, and any provision of this Agreement may be waived to the effect 
that:  

(i) If the amendment relates to the provisions of Section 3(a), 3(b), 3(c), 4 or 5(a), it
may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change
in legal requirements, a change in law or a change in the identity, nature or status of the
Issuer or the types of business in which the Issuer is engaged;

(ii) this Agreement as so amended or taking into account such waiver, would have
complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary offering of the Bonds,
after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any
change in circumstances, in the opinion of Bond Counsel; and

(iii) such amendment or waiver does not materially impair the interests of the
Bondholders, in the opinion of Bond Counsel.

In the event of any amendment to, or waiver of a provision of, this Agreement, the Issuer 
shall describe such amendment or waiver in the next Annual Financial Information, and shall 
include a narrative explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver.  In particular, if the 
amendment or waiver results in a change to the annual financial information required to be 
included in the Annual Financial Information pursuant to Section 4 of this Agreement, the first 
Annual Financial Information that contains the amended operating data or financial information 
shall explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the amendment and the impact of such change in 
the type of operating data or financial information being provided.  In addition, if the annual 
financial information required to be provided in the Annual Financial Information can no longer 
be generated because the operations to which it related have been materially changed or 



02879041 3  E-7

discontinued, a statement to that effect shall be included in the first Annual Financial Information 
that does not include such information.  If the amendment or waiver involves a change in the 
accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial statements as set forth in Section 4, the 
Annual Financial Information for the year in which the change is made shall present a comparison 
between the financial statements or information prepared based on the new accounting principles 
and those prepared based on the former accounting principles.  The comparison shall include a 
qualitative discussion of such differences and the impact of the changes on the presentation of the 
financial information.  To the extent reasonably feasible, the comparison shall also be quantitative. 
A notice of the change in the accounting principles shall be sent by the Issuer to the MSRB.  All 
explanations, statements, notices and other filings to be made under this Section 8 shall be made 
in accordance with Section 14 of this Agreement. 

SECTION 9.  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed 
to prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination 
set forth in this Agreement or any other means of communication, or including any other 
information in any Annual Financial Information or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in 
addition to that which is required by this Agreement.  If the Issuer chooses to include any 
information in any Annual Financial Information or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in 
addition to that which is specifically required by this Agreement, the Issuer shall have no obligation 
under this Agreement to update such information or include it in any future Annual Financial 
Information or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 

SECTION 10.  DEFAULT.  In the event of a failure of the Issuer or the Dissemination Agent 
(if other than the Issuer) to comply with any provision of this Agreement, any Bondholder may 
take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandamus or specific 
performance by court order, to cause the Issuer to comply with its obligations under this 
Agreement, but no person or entity shall be entitled to recover monetary damages under any 
circumstances.  A default under this Agreement shall not be deemed an event of default under the 
Bond Resolution or the Bonds, and the sole remedy under this Agreement in the event of any 
failure of the Issuer to comply with the Agreement shall be an action to compel performance. 

SECTION 11.  DUTIES OF DISSEMINATION AGENT.  The Dissemination Agent shall have 
only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Agreement.  

SECTION 12.  BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of the 
Issuer, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters, and the Bondholders and shall 
create no rights in any other person or entity.  

SECTION 13.  ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS.  The Issuer acknowledges and 
understands that other state and federal laws, including, without limitation, the Securities Act of 
1933, as amended, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated by the SEC pursuant to the 1934 Act, may apply 
to the Issuer, and that under some circumstances compliance with this Agreement, without 
additional disclosures or other action, may not fully discharge all duties and obligations of the 
Issuer under such laws. 



02879041 3  E-8

SECTION 14.  COMPLIANCE WITH MSRB FILING REQUIREMENTS.  All filings required 
to be made to the MSRB shall be made only in an electronic format prescribed by the MSRB and 
all documents provided to the MSRB as part of any such filing shall be accompanied by identifying 
information as prescribed by the MSRB.  Until otherwise designated by the MSRB or the SEC, 
filings with the MSRB are to be made through the EMMA website of the MSRB, currently located 
at http://emma.msrb.org. 

SECTION 15.  OBLIGATED PERSONS.  The Issuer is the only obligated person (within the 
meaning of the Rule) with respect to the Bonds. 

SECTION 16.  GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in 
accordance with the laws of the State, and any suits and actions arising out of this Agreement shall 
be instituted in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, to 
the extent this Agreement addresses matters of federal securities laws, including the Rule, this 
Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with such federal securities laws and 
official interpretations thereof. 

TOWNSHIP OF ADA 

By:______________________________________ 
Ross A. Leisman 
Its:  Supervisor 

By:______________________________________ 
Jacqueline Smith 
Its:  Clerk 

Dated:  __________, 2021 



MEMORANDUM

Date: 2/18/21 

TO: Ada Township Board 
FROM: Julius Suchy, Township Manager 
RE: PFM Engagement Letter for Refunding of 2011B Series Bond 

Background: 

As part of the proposed refunding of the 2011B series bonds, the Township needs to approve a 
letter of engagement with Paul Stauder, our Financial Advisor through PFM.   

The costs outlined in the engagement letter are included in the issuance of costs for the 
refunding of the bond. The costs are only factoring in the refunding of the 2011B series bond 
and not the 2011A series bond that will be paid off early.   

Recommended Action: 

Staff would recommend approval of the Engagement Letter with PFM for the Proposed 
Refunding of the 2011B Series Bonds.  

Requested Motion: Motion to Approve Engagement Letter with PFM for the Refunding of the 
2011B Series Bonds.   

X D



February 12, 2021

Mr. Julius Suchy, Manager, ICMA-CM
Ada Township
7330 Thornapple River Dr SE
Ada, MI  49301-9101

RE: Township of Ada Proposed Refunding Bonds

Dear Julius:

The following is PFM Financial Advisors LLC (“PFMFA”) engagement letter to provide 
Financial Advisory Services to the Township in connection with the above referenced
Bonds. A general summary of the services PFMFA will provide in the financial 
advisory capacity for each series of bonds is as follows and any material changes in
or additions to the scope of services described below shall be promptly reflected in
writing:

Develop and Monitor Financing Schedule 

• Coordinate a plan for timely completion of the financing

Analyze Debt Structure Alternatives

• Design a structure which seeks to maximize market interest and future
financing flexibility while being consistent with debt needs and policies

Review Existing Debt Structure

• Document current debt structure
• Identify strengths and weaknesses of structure  in order to structure future debt

issues that  seek to  maximize the ability to finance future capital needs
• Identify refunding opportunities

Assistance completing Department of Treasury Applications

• Prepare necessary financial schedules required for filing with the Department
of Treasury

• Prepare necessary applications required by the Department of Treasury

Advise on the sale method (Negotiated Sale, Competitive Sale or Private Placement) 

• When requested, we will assist in the selection of an underwriter or
underwriting syndicate and coordinate activities of the underwriters

Assist the Township with the Selection of Working Group Members, if requested

• Coordinate the selection of a team that can effectively bring an issue to
market, if requested

Develop Terms of the Financing

• Assist in helping to ensure credit quality and present terms which are attractive
to investors to create broad-based interest in the debt

• Assist in helping to maximize Township's future flexibility



Review and Assist in Preparing Marketing Information 

• PFMFA will review marketing materials to assist with accuracy and
completeness.

• PFMFA will assist in preparing a comprehensive Official Statement or
Marketing Information package, as applicable

Develop Financing Documents

• Assist the Township by reviewing all contractual and business terms from the
Township's perspective

Develop Marketing Plan

• With an objective to maximize underwriter and investor interest in the securities

Develop Rating Presentation and/or Assist with Rating Calls or Meetings 

• To seek to obtain highest possible credit rating for debt issue
• Formulate and implement long-term credit rating strategy

Assist with Obtaining Credit Enhancements, if Necessary

• PFMFA will work with the Township and other working group members to
determine if credit enhancement is beneficial to the Township and if so, will
coordinate obtaining pricing on credit enhancements and advise the Township
as to the cost benefit of the purchase of the credit enhancement.

Timing Entry into the Market 

• Schedule bond sale around other pertinent/comparable financings as well as
the release of various economic indicators

Assist With Pricing of Bonds

• Assist Township in obtaining  the lowest interest rate for given market
• Provide written documentation of acceptability of pricing

Prepare Post-Sale Information

• Prepare a results of bidding or sale summary
• Prepare final payment schedules and applications
• Assist with the preparation of closing information including closing statements,

schedules and information

Closing Activities

• Handle all activities necessary to assist in ensuring  a smooth closing of the
bonds

Fees for Services

Base fee of $8,000
Plus $3.00 per $1,000 of bonds to $5,000,000
Plus $1.00 per $1,000 of bonds over $5,000,000 up to $25,000,000
Plus $0.75 per $1,000 of bonds $25,000,000 and above



PFMFA’s fee will be based on the actual financing amount (including original issue 
premium if applicable) of bonds sold and delivered. The above reflects our fee
structure as of this date and is subject to periodic revision. Any change in fees will be
communicated in writing prior to the time the proposed future Bonds are actually
issued.

Any travel and out-of-pocket expenses for attendance at meetings at the request of
the Township will be billed in addition to the above fee. The Municipal Advisory
Council assessment of $400 per bond issue would also be in addition to this fee.  If
the Township does not proceed with the financing, no fee would be due to PFMFA,
except for travel expenses incurred at the Township’s request. 

This agreement may be extended to other issuances by mutual agreement between
the Township and PFM Financial Advisors LLC.

Registered Municipal Advisor
Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the
“Dodd-Frank Act”) makes it unlawful for municipal advisors to provide advice 
regarding municipal financial products or the issuance of municipal securities without
being registered with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”).  
Conflict of Interest

Attached please find a copy of the DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
AND OTHER INFORMATION we have prepared for the Township.

Termination of Agreement:

This agreement may be terminated by either party with 30 days’ notice. If the 
termination occurs mid-transaction, the Township would pay PFMFA a mutually
agreeable amount for services rendered on the transaction up to the point of
termination.

Should you have any questions or require additional information, please call.  Again,
thank you for the opportunity to continue to represent you on your financings.

Respectfully submitted,

Paul R. Stauder
Managing Director



DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION
PFM Financial Advisors LLC

I. Introduction

Public Financial Management, Inc., PFM Financial Advisors LLC, Western Financial Group, LLC
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of PFM Financial Advisors LLC), and PFM Swap Advisors LLC
(hereinafter, referred to as “We,” “Us,” or “Our”) are registered municipal advisors with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking 
Board (the “MSRB”), pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 15Ba1-2. In
accordance with MSRB rules, this disclosure statement is provided by Us to each client prior to
the execution of its advisory agreement with written disclosures of all material conflicts of
interests and legal or disciplinary events that are required to be disclosed with respect to
providing financial advisory services pursuant to MSRB Rule G-42(b) and (c) (ii).  We employ a
number of resources to identify and subsequently manage actual or potential conflicts of interest
in addition to disclosing actual and potential conflicts of interest provided herein.

How We Identify and Manage Conflicts of Interest 
Code of Ethics. The Code requires that all employees conduct all aspects of Our business with
the highest standards of integrity, honesty and fair dealing. All employees are required to avoid
even the appearance of misconduct or impropriety and avoid actual or apparent conflicts of
interest between personal and professional relationships that would or could interfere with an
employee’s independent exercise of judgment in performing the obligations and responsibilities 
owed to a municipal advisor and Our clients.

Policies and Procedures. We have adopted policies and procedures that include specific rules
and standards for conduct. Some of these policies and procedures provide guidance and
reporting requirements about matters that allows Us to monitor behavior that might give rise to a
conflict of interest. These include policies concerning the making of gifts and charitable
contributions, entertaining clients, and engaging in outside activities, all of which may involve
relationships with clients and others that are important to Our analysis of potential conflicts of
interest.

Supervisory Structure. We have both a compliance and supervisory structure in place that
enables Us to identify and monitor employees’ activities, both on a transaction and Firm-wide
basis, to ensure compliance with appropriate standards. Prior to undertaking any engagement
with a new client or an additional engagement with an existing client, appropriate municipal
advisory personnel will review the possible intersection of the client’s interests, the proposed 
engagement, Our engagement personnel, experience and existing obligations to other clients
and related parties. This review, together with employing the resources described above, allows
Us to evaluate any situations that may be an actual or potential conflict of interest.

Disclosures.  We will disclose to clients those situations that We believe would create a
material conflict of interest, such as: 1) any advice, service or product that any affiliate may
provide to a client that is directly related to the municipal advisory work We perform for such
client; 2) any payment made to obtain or retain a municipal advisory engagement with a client;
3) any fee-splitting arrangement with any provider of an investment or services to a client; 4)
any conflict that may arise from the type of compensation arrangement We may have with a
client; and 5) any other actual or potential situation that We are or become aware of that might
constitute a material conflict of interest that could reasonably expect to impair Our ability to
provide advice to or on behalf of clients consistent with regulatory requirements.   If We identify
such situations or circumstances, We will prepare meaningful disclosure that will describe the
implications of the situation and how We intend to manage the situation. We will also disclose
any legal or disciplinary events that are material to a client’s evaluation or the integrity of Our



management or advisory personnel. We will provide this disclosure (or a means to access this
information) in writing prior to starting Our proposed engagement, and will provide such
additional information or clarification as the client may request. We will also advise Our clients in
writing of any subsequent material conflict of interest that may arise, as well as the related
implications, Our plan to manage that situation, and any additional information such client may
require.

II. General Conflict of Interest Disclosures

Disclosure of Conflicts Concerning the Firm’s Affiliates 
Our affiliates offer a wide variety of financial services, and Our clients may be interested in
pursuing services separately provided by an affiliate.  The affiliate’s business with the client 
could create an incentive for Us to recommend a course of action designed to increase the level
of the client’s business activities with the affiliate or to recommend against a course of action
that would reduce the client’s business activities with the affiliate. In either instance, We may be 
perceived as recommending services for a client that are not in the best interests of Our clients,
but rather are in Our interests or the interests of Our affiliates.  Accordingly, We mitigate any
perceived conflict of interest that may arise in this situation by disclosing it to the client, and by
requiring that there be a review of the municipal securities transaction or municipal financial
product to ensure that it is suitable for the client in light of various factors, after reasonable
inquiry, including the client’s needs, objectives and financial circumstances.  Further, We 
receive no compensation from Our affiliates with respect to a client introduction or referral.  If a
client chooses to work with an affiliate, We require that the client consult and enter into a
separate agreement for services, so that the client can make an independent, informed,
evaluation of the services offered.

Disclosure of Conflicts Related to the Firm’s Compensation 
From time to time, We may be compensated by a municipal advisory fee that is or will be set
forth in an agreement with the client to be, or that has been, negotiated and entered into in
connection with a municipal advisory service.  Payment of such fee may be contingent on the
closing of the transaction and the amount of the fee may be based, in whole or in part, on a
percentage of the principal or par amount of municipal securities or municipal financial product.
While this form of compensation is customary in the municipal securities market, it may be
deemed to present a conflict of interest since We may appear to have an incentive to
recommend to the client a transaction that is larger in size than is necessary. Further, We may
also receive compensation in the form of a fixed fee arrangement.  While this form of
compensation is customary, it may also present a potential conflict of interest, if the transaction
requires more work than contemplated and We are perceived as recommending a less time
consuming alternative contrary to the client’s best interest so as not to sustain a loss. Finally, 
We may contract with clients on an hourly fee bases.  If We do not agree on a maximum
amount of hours at the outset of the engagement, this arrangement may pose a conflict of
interest as We would not have a financial incentive to recommend an alternative that would
result in fewer hours.  We manage and mitigate all of these types of conflicts by disclosing the
fee structure to the client, and by requiring that there be a review of the municipal securities
transaction or municipal financial product to ensure that it is suitable for the client in light of
various factors, after reasonable inquiry, including the client’s needs, objectives and financial
circumstances.

Disclosure Concerning Provision of Services to State and Local Government, and Non-
Profit Clients
We regularly provide financial advisory services to state and local governments, their agencies,
and instrumentalities, and non-profit clients.  While Our clients have expressed that this
experience in providing services to a wide variety of clients generally provides great benefit for
all of Our clients, there may be or may have been clients with interests that are different from
(and adverse to) other clients.  If for some reason any client sees Our engagement with any
other particular client as a conflict, We will mitigate this conflict by engaging in a broad range of



conduct, if and as applicable.  Such conduct may include one or any combination of the
following: 1) disclosing the conflict to the client; 2) requiring that there be a review of the
municipal securities transaction or municipal financial product to ensure that it is suitable for the
client in light of various factors, including the client’s needs, objectives and financial 
circumstances; 3) implementing procedures that establishes an “Informational Bubble” that 
creates physical, technological and procedural barriers and/or separations to ensure that non-
public information is isolated to particular area such that certain governmental transaction team
members and supporting functions operate separately during the course of work performed; and
4) in the rare event that a conflict cannot be resolved, We will withdraw from the engagement.

Disclosure Related to Legal and Disciplinary Events 
As registered municipal advisors with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) 
and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”), pursuant to the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 15Ba1-2,  Our legal, disciplinary and judicial events are required to
be disclosed on Our forms MA and MA-I filed with the SEC, in ‘Item 9 Disclosure Information’ 
of form MA, ‘Item 6 Disclosure Information’ of form MA-I, and if applicable, the corresponding
disclosure reporting page(s) (“DRP”).  To review the foregoing disclosure items and material
change(s) or amendment(s), if any, clients may electronically access PFM Financial Advisors
LLC filed forms MA and MA-I on the SEC’s Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis, and Retrieval
system, listed by date of filing starting with the most recently filed, at:

III. Specific Conflicts of Interest Disclosures – Township of Ada Proposed Refunding Bonds

Disclosure Pertaining to Build America Mutual Assurance Company
Two individual Board members of PFM I, LLC, a holding company which includes ownership of
Public Financial Management Inc. and PFM Financial Advisors LLC (collectively, referred to as
“PFM”) among other affiliates,  are also members of the board of directors of municipal bond
insurer Build America Mutual Assurance Company (“BAM”).  Both serve on the BAM Board in
their personal capacity, and not in the interests of PFM, and there are no joint business efforts
between the PFM and BAM. Further, neither is involved in the day-to-day operations of either
PFM or BAM. We mitigate any potential or actual conflict by requiring, in addition to our
disclosure, that there be a review of the municipal securities transaction or municipal financial
product recommended to ensure that it is suitable for the client in light of various factors,
including the client’s needs, objectives and financial circumstances.

To Our knowledge, following reasonable inquiry, We make the additional disclosure(s) of actual
or potential conflicts of interest cited below in connection with the municipal advisory services
currently being contemplated for client.

Conflicts Disclosure Related to Providing Services to Municipal Entity Clients and 
Obligated Persons on the Same Municipal Transaction
From time to time We may represent a Municipal Entity client and an Obligated Person on the
same side of a transaction.  This situation may present a potential conflict of interest if Our
fiduciary duty to the Municipal Entity and duty of care owed to the Obligated Person represent
competing interests.  Accordingly, We mitigate this conflict of interest by disclosing it to clients,
requiring separately negotiated agreements between Us and each client, and requiring that
there be a review of the municipal securities transaction or municipal financial product to ensure
that it is suitable for the client in light of various factors, after reasonable inquiry, including the
client’s needs, objectives and financial circumstances.

http://www.sec.gov/cgi-bin/browse-edgar?company=PFM+Financial&owner=exclude&action=getcompany
http://www.sec.gov/cgi-bin/browse-edgar?company=PFM+Financial&owner=exclude&action=getcompany


IV. Municipal Advisory Complaint and Client Education Disclosure

The MSRB protects state and local governments and other municipal entities and the public
interest by promoting fair and efficient municipal securities markets. To that end, MSRB rules
are designed to govern the professional conduct of brokers, dealers, municipal securities
dealers and municipal advisors.  Accordingly, if you as municipal advisory customer have a
complaint about any of these financial professionals, please contact the MSRB’s website at 
www.msrb.org, and consult the MSRB’s Municipal Advisory Client brochure.  The MSRB’s 
Municipal Advisory Client brochure describes the protections available to municipal advisory
clients under MSRB rules, and describes the process for filing a complaint with the appropriate
regulatory authority.

PFM’s Financial Advisory services are provided by Public Financial Management Inc., Western 
Financial Group, LLC, and PFM Financial Advisors LLC.  PFM’s Swap Advisory services are 
provided by PFM Swap Advisors LLC.  All entities are registered municipal advisors with the
MSRB and SEC under the Dodd Frank Act of 2010.

Date: February 12, 2021

http://www.msrb.org/


X E













































X F

















Township Manager Report for February 17, 2021 
Submitted by Township Manager Julius Suchy

Amy Van Andel Library – Ada Community Center Update: 
• Staff is not currently planning on renting out the two community rooms until after the

planned public dedication in mid-march. This will allow the COVID protocols to be
clearer as well allow the Township to continue towards implementation of the RecPro
software.

• The three (3) couches that were identified as an issue have been removed (placed in
storage inside building) and I am working with Trellis to determine replacement options.
I will be working with the major donor as well as Trustee Jacobs to identify new furniture
to replace these pieces. We may be looking at options outside of couches due to COVID
and design fit to the facility. I will provide updates on this when I have more information.

• The Township is working with Seyferth PR on a public dedication event that meets the
requirements of the Michigan Department of Health and Human Services (MDHHS). The
public dedication will have a small group in person with a large social media presence
similar to our Covered Bridge lighting that took place this winter.

• Amway has offered to provide limited in-kind support to the Township to assist in setting
up rentals at the Township and help us review what we currently have for other facilities
and how to best showcase and market the rental options. I will be working with Mark
Fitzpatrick, Parks Director to meet with this individual and discuss next steps.

• If anyone is interested in a tour of the facility please let me know and I am happy to take
you through.

Public Safety Millage Update:  
I have received the deadlines for election dates and I am working to schedule a Public Safety 
Committee Hearing in the next few weeks so that we can finalize plans for the millage request. 
Clerk Smith has indicated that their may be two county elections so there may be an opportunity 
to avoid a special election. I will provide additional updates as they become available.  

CARES ACT Funding Update:  
The Township received an additional check from Kent County for $25,366.05 for excess CARES 
Act fund expenses. When I submitted our documentation for the $321,851.01 grant, I submitted 
expenditures totaling $348,305.27 ($26,454.26 more than the grant total) as those were all of the 
COVID eligible expenses I felt Ada Township incurred. This was done to ensure that if a cost 
was deemed ineligible the Township wouldn’t have to send funds back to Kent County, but also 
to make sure if there were extra funds that the County would already have all the documentation 
necessary to provide funds to the Township.  

XI A



FY 21-22 Draft Budget Update: 
Since our budget work session, I have continued to work on the budget and make changes as 
necessary to incorporate comments provided at the work session as well as address items that 
staff has been made aware of since our work session.  

One large item will be a reduction in the amount of general fund money budgeted for street 
improvements. The project will take place over a two-year period which means that the amount 
the Township has budgeted ($550,000) for FY 21-22 will decrease to $387,901 based on the lane 
miles cost split and $176,319 for FY 22-23.  

Kent County Road Commission Five Year Plan: 
Steve Groenenboom, Moore & Bruggink and I met with representatives from the Kent County 
Road Commission (KCRC) to discuss the cost share for the Adatowne/Adacroft projects. During 
this meeting I requested that the KCRC provide the Township with a five-year plan for 
recommended repairs/surface treatments so that we can determine our baseline maintenance 
budget to keep our streets in good shape.  

Sanitary Sewer Commercial Restaurant Rate Review:  
In recent weeks I have been made aware of the fact that based on our current sanitary sewer rate 
structure – different commercial customers who in theory should be paying similar charges are 
not. This inequity has been highlighted by the pandemic and restaurants being closed to indoor 
service for months at a time.  

I have asked Steve Groenenboom to review this issue and determine if minor modifications can 
be made to our rate structure to allow for a more equitable rate structure. I have also asked staff 
to provide me with a listing of commercial restaurants that are dealing with this situation so I can 
understand the size of the issue. Once I have reviewed this information, I will take it to the 
Building/Grounds/Utilities Committee to discuss possible next steps.  

Utility Bill Penalty Waiving Policy:  
Staff is reviewing potential policies related to the waiving of late utility bill payments. Working 
with utility department staff it has been the pact practice of the Township to waive late utility bill 
penalties if it was the account holders first time receiving a penalty. It does not seem as though 
this was a documented policy and I would like to have the Township establish a formal policy 
that removes the responsibility of staff to make a determination on whether a late fee is waived.   

Historical Society Updated Agreements: 
The Township and Historical Society have operated off of an agreement that was last updated in 
2012. This agreement spells out the responsibilities of both parties but does not include the 
annual museum manager support the Township provides ($25,000). I will be working with 
Kristen Wildes, Museum Manager to identify what updates are needed and bring this to the 
administrative committee prior to the Township Board reviewing it.  

Liability Insurance Renewal: 
I am working with Hub International our Liability Insurance carrier on our annual renewal. The 
renewal date is April 1, 2021. I will be reviewing existing coverages and determining if there are 
any changes that need to be made prior to the renewal. In the future I would like to explore a 
request for proposal to confirm that the Township is receiving the best service available for the 
money spent.  



Trails Bond Update: 
Staff met with our engineer to discuss options for repair projects in 2021, new construction 
projects that are feasible to undertake in 2021 and a timeline for permitting and scheduling of 
projects to be included in bond. Once they have provided us with the feasibility information, we 
will present it to the necessary boards and move forward to start the bond process. Staff is still 
waiting for this report and will present it to the board when it is received.  

Township Hall Fiber Update:  
Comcast has scheduled a site visit to determine the best way to bring fiber to the facility from the 
intersection of Headley/Ada Drive. Their initial proposal indicated they would run the fiber on 
the north side of Ada Drive and then running down the West/South side of Bronson St. to the 
Assembly Hall side of Township Hall. I have asked them to look at running the line through the 
front of Township Hall as I think it would be more cost effective and eliminate extra right-of-
way issues on their original path.  

Virtual Meetings Update: (Left from Previous Report as Reminder)  
Under the Michigan Department of Health and Human Services epidemic order released January 
22, which went into effect until Monday, Feb. 1, all township meetings must remain virtual until 
Feb. 21. The order loosened restrictions on some indoor gatherings, including allowing indoor 
dining at restaurants with certain requirements, among a few others. But non-residential indoor 
gatherings, which include public meetings, are limited to no more than 10 people from no more 
than two households, which effectively still prohibits public meetings. As a reminder, under 
Public 254 of 2020, townships, and all local governments, can continue to meet using virtual 
options that allow people to log in, or phone in without computer or internet access—or both—to 
a meeting for any reason through March 30, 2021. 



ADA TOWNSHIP TREASURER'S
INVESTMENT REPORT 

September 30, 2020

Name Bank Rating Account #
Purchase 

Date Maturity Date Rate
August 
Interest

Balance 
08/31/2020 Purchases

September 
Interest

Balance 
09/30/2020

Cash

Chemical Bank ****

 General fund 3811 - - 0.02% 56.35$    3,139,187.58$    19.65$    2,391,738.75$    

CB Muni Now (GO Capital 
Improvement Bonds proceeds) 6765 - - 0.09% 101.38$    1,279,551.09$    48.94$    48.94$    

 Tax Checking 3829 - 0.01% 18.69$    8,378,225.38$    103.36$    13,884,006.13$    

 DDA Account - 0.00% -$    -$   -$    -$   

 Total 176.42$    12,796,964.05$    171.95$    16,275,793.82$    

Pooled Funds

Michigan Class (Bond proceeds) 5 0.11% 606.17$    3,741,966.81$     338.92$    3,742,305.73$     

Michigan Class (2020 Bond proceeds) 6 0.11% 1,591.34$    9,823,386.26$     889.71$    9,824,275.97$     

Kent County  - 0.76% 940.74$    1,213,209.30$     802.73$    1,291,512.03$     

 Total 3,138.25$    14,778,562.37$    2,031.36$    14,858,093.73$    

Certificates of Deposit

Chemical Bank ****

General Fund 12 month (sewer) 1479/5782 5/2/2020 5/2/2021 0.45% -$    547,619.82$   -$    547,619.82$   

General Fund 12 month (H20) 9544 7/1/2019 7/1/2021 0.18% -$    296,489.39$   -$    296,489.39$   

General Fund 24 month (HBS) 4179/3722 7/5/2019 7/5/2021 2.60% 1,407.65$    640,613.55$    1,410.75$    642,024.30$    

General Fund 12 month (HBS) 6930 8/11/2020 8/11/2021 0.30% 7,815.47$    1,706,828.80$    -$    1,706,828.80$      

Union Bank ***

General Fund 24 month (HBS) 4161/1843 12/9/2019 12/9/2021 1.87% -$    504,698.80$   2,378.86$    507,077.66$    

Total 9,223.12$    3,696,250.36$    3,789.61$    3,700,039.97$    

Bank Ratings from Bankrate.com

***** Superior

**** Sound

*** Performing

Totals ** Below peer group 12,537.79$    31,271,776.78$    5,992.92$    34,833,927.52$    

* Lowest rated

Prepared by:  Kevin Moran, Treasurer
Updated:12/30/2020

Note:  The interest rate shown is for the month for the cash accounts whereas the rate of interest for the certicates of deposit is for the term negotiated. 

XI B



ADA TOWNSHIP TREASURER'S
INVESTMENT REPORT 

October 31, 2020

 

Name Bank Rating Account #
Purchase 

Date Maturity Date Rate
September          

Interest
Balance   

09/30/2020 Purchases
October          
Interest

Balance   
10/31/2020

Cash

Chemical Bank ****

     General fund 3811 - - 0.00% 19.65$               2,391,738.75$      -$                   2,759,024.21$      

CB Muni Now (GO Capital 
Improvement Bonds proceeds)          6765 - - 0.00% 48.94$               48.94$                  -$                   -$                      

      Tax Checking 3829 - 0.00% 103.36$             13,884,006.13$    -$                   165,375.24$         

      DDA Account - 0.00% -$                   -$                      -$                   -$                      

                   Total 171.95$             16,275,793.82$    -$                   2,924,399.45$      

Pooled Funds

Michigan Class (Bond proceeds) 5 0.10% 338.92$             3,742,305.73$      318.53$             2,000,024.07$      

Michigan Class (2020 Bond proceeds) 6 0.10% 889.71$             9,824,275.97$      870.97$             9,825,146.94$      

Kent County    - 0.69% 802.73$             1,291,512.03$      773.30$             1,292,285.33$      

                  Total 2,031.36$          14,858,093.73$    1,962.80$          13,117,456.34$    

Certificates of Deposit  

Chemical Bank ****

General Fund 12 month (sewer) 1479/5782 5/2/2020 5/2/2021 0.45% -$                   547,619.82$         207.05$             547,826.87$         

General Fund 12 month (H20)  9544 7/1/2019 7/1/2021 0.18% -$                   296,489.39$         -$                   296,489.39$         

General Fund 24 month (HBS)  4179/3722 7/5/2019 7/5/2021 2.60% 1,410.75$          642,024.30$         1,368.25$          643,392.55$         

General Fund 12 month (HBS) 6930 8/11/2020 8/11/2021 0.30% -$                   1,706,828.80$      -$                   1,706,828.80$      

Union Bank ***

General Fund 24 month (HBS)  4161/1843 12/9/2019 12/9/2021 1.87% 2,378.86$          507,077.66$         -$                   507,077.66$         

Total 3,789.61$          3,700,039.97$      1,575.30$          3,701,615.27$      

Bank Ratings from Bankrate.com

***** Superior    

**** Sound

*** Performing

Totals ** Below peer group 5,992.92$          34,833,927.52$    3,538.10$          19,743,471.06$    

* Lowest rated

Prepared by:  Kevin Moran, Treasurer
Updated:02/18/2021

   

Note:  The interest rate shown is for the month for the cash accounts whereas the rate of interest for the certicates of deposit is for the term negotiated. 



ADA TOWNSHIP TREASURER'S
INVESTMENT REPORT 

November 30, 2020

 

Name Bank Rating Account #
Purchase 

Date Maturity Date Rate
October          
Interest

Balance   
10/31/2020 Purchases

November        
Interest

Balance   
11/30/2020

Cash

Chemical Bank ****

     General fund 3811 - - 0.00% -$                   2,759,024.21$      -$                   4,242,090.86$      

CB Muni Now (GO Capital 
Improvement Bonds proceeds)          6765 - - 0.00% -$                   -$                      -$                   -$                      

      Tax Checking 3829 - 0.00% -$                   165,375.24$         -$                   37,498.68$           

      DDA Account - 0.00% -$                   -$                      -$                   -$                      

                   Total -$                   2,924,399.45$      -$                   4,279,589.54$      

Pooled Funds

Michigan Class (Bond proceeds) 5 0.87% 318.53$             2,000,024.07$      122.99$             9.46$                    

Michigan Class (2020 Bond proceeds) 6 0.87% 870.97$             9,825,146.94$      697.59$             9,825,844.53$      

Kent County    - 0.73% 773.30$             1,292,285.33$      790.03$             1,293,075.36$      

                  Total 1,962.80$          13,117,456.34$    1,610.61$          11,118,929.35$    

Certificates of Deposit  

Chemical Bank ****

General Fund 12 month (sewer) 1479/5782 5/2/2020 5/2/2021 0.45% 207.05$             547,826.87$         -$                   547,826.87$         

General Fund 12 month (H20)  9544 7/1/2020 7/1/2021 0.18% -$                   296,489.39$         -$                   296,489.39$         

General Fund 24 month (HBS)  4179/3722 7/5/2019 7/5/2021 2.60% 1,368.25$          643,392.55$         1,416.87$          644,809.42$         

General Fund 12 month (HBS) 6930 8/11/2020 8/11/2021 0.30% -$                   1,706,828.80$      430.21$             1,707,259.01$      

Union Bank ***

General Fund 24 month (HBS)  4161/1843 12/9/2019 12/9/2021 1.87% -$                   507,077.66$         -$                   507,077.66$         

Total 1,575.30$          3,701,615.27$      1,847.08$          3,703,462.35$      

Bank Ratings from Bankrate.com

***** Superior    

**** Sound

*** Performing

Totals ** Below peer group 3,538.10$          19,743,471.06$    3,457.69$          19,101,981.24$    

* Lowest rated

Prepared by:  Kevin Moran, Treasurer
Updated:02/18/22021

   

Note:  The interest rate shown is for the month for the cash accounts whereas the rate of interest for the certicates of deposit is for the term negotiated. 



ADA TOWNSHIP TREASURER'S
INVESTMENT REPORT 

December 31, 2020

 

Name Bank Rating Account #
Purchase 

Date Maturity Date Rate
November        

Interest
Balance   

11/30/2020 Purchases
December      

Interest
Balance   

12/31/2020

Cash

Chemical Bank ****

     General fund 3811 - - 0.00% -$                   4,242,090.86$      -$                   3,157,403.80$      

CB Muni Now (GO Capital 
Improvement Bonds proceeds)          6765 - - 0.00% -$                   -$                      -$                   -$                      

      Tax Checking 3829 - 0.00% -$                   37,498.68$           -$                   5,162,935.45$      

      DDA Account - 0.00% -$                   -$                      -$                   -$                      

                   Total -$                   4,279,589.54$      -$                   8,320,339.25$      

Pooled Funds

Michigan Class (Bond proceeds) 5 0.79% 122.99$             9.46$                    -$                   9.46$                    

Michigan Class (2020 Bond proceeds) 6 0.79% 697.59$             9,825,844.53$      654.99$             9,826,499.52$      

Kent County    - 0.75% 790.03$             1,293,075.36$      830.76$             1,293,906.12$      

                  Total 1,610.61$          11,118,929.35$    1,485.75$          11,120,415.10$    

Certificates of Deposit  

Chemical Bank ****

General Fund 12 month (sewer) 1479/5782 5/2/2020 5/2/2021 0.45% -$                   547,826.87$         -$                   547,826.87$         

General Fund 12 month (H20)  9544 7/1/2020 7/1/2021 0.18% -$                   296,489.39$         272.83$             296,762.22$         

General Fund 24 month (HBS)  4179/3722 7/5/2019 7/5/2021 2.60% 1,416.87$          644,809.42$         1,374.18$          646,183.60$         

General Fund 12 month (HBS) 6930 8/11/2020 8/11/2021 0.30% 430.21$             1,707,259.01$      -$                   1,707,259.01$      

Union Bank ***

General Fund 24 month (HBS)  4161/1843 12/9/2019 12/9/2021 1.87% -$                   507,077.66$         2,364.09$          509,441.75$         

Total 1,847.08$          3,703,462.35$      4,011.10$          3,707,473.45$      

Bank Ratings from Bankrate.com

***** Superior    

**** Sound

*** Performing

Totals ** Below peer group 3,457.69$          19,101,981.24$    5,496.85$          23,148,227.80$    

* Lowest rated

Prepared by:  Kevin Moran, Treasurer
Updated:02/18/22021

   

Note:  The interest rate shown is for the month for the cash accounts whereas the rate of interest for the certicates of deposit is for the term negotiated. 


	Status Report 20210211 - Ada Library & Community Center.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14

	Utility Advisory Board- January 21, 2021 Minutes.pdf
	January Minutes
	Sewer Use Ordinance - Rewrite
	Proposed Sewer Use Ordinance – Rewrite History
	Summary of Proposed Sewer Use Ordinance Changes
	Summary of Proposed Sewer Use Ordinance Changes
	Proposed Sewer Use Ordinance – Next Steps

	GR SUO Exec Summary Final 01-27-21
	Summary of ordinance change detail
	Copy of 2021 - Water Sewer UAB Report
	4th Quarter Report  with YTD Map
	4th Quarter ICB Report
	2020Q4
	2020ytd


	Bond Refunding Resolution Packet.pdf
	2011A & 2011B Series Refunding Memo 2-18-21.pdf
	MEMORANDUM


	Engagement Letter & Memo - Ada Twp Proposed Refunding Bonds.pdf
	2011B Series Refunding Engagement Letter 2-19-21.pdf
	MEMORANDUM





